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UNITED STATES
 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q
(Mark One)
   

þ  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2009.

OR
   

o  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM_______________
TO_______________.

Commission File Number: 0-26176

DISH Network Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

   
Nevada  88-0336997

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)  (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
   

9601 South Meridian Boulevard   
Englewood, Colorado  80112

(Address of principal executive offices)  (Zip code)

(303) 723-1000
 (Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Not Applicable
 (Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes
o No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
       
Large Accelerated Filer þ

 
Accelerated Filer o

 
Non-Accelerated Filer o

 
Smaller reporting Company
o

    (Do not check if a smaller   
    reporting company)   
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No þ

As of April 24, 2009, the registrant’s outstanding common stock consisted of 208,281,590 shares of Class A common stock and
238,435,208 shares of Class B common stock.
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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 throughout this
report. Whenever you read a statement that is not simply a statement of historical fact (such as when we describe what we “believe,”
“intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “expect” or “anticipate” will occur, and other similar statements), you must remember that our
expectations may not be achieved, even though we believe they are reasonable. We do not guarantee that any future transactions or
events described herein will happen as described or that they will happen at all. You should read this report completely and with the
understanding that actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. Whether actual events or results will conform
with our expectations and predictions is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. The risks and uncertainties include, but are not
limited to, the following:

 
 •  Weakening economic conditions, including the recent downturn in financial markets and reduced consumer spending, may

adversely affect our ability to grow or maintain our business.
 

 •  If we do not improve our operational performance and customer satisfaction, our gross subscriber additions may decrease
and our subscriber churn may increase.

 

 •  If declines in DISH Network gross subscriber additions, increases in subscriber churn and higher subscriber acquisition and
retention costs continue, our financial performance will be further adversely affected.

 

 •  We face intense and increasing competition from satellite television providers, cable television providers,
telecommunications companies, and companies that provide/facilitate the delivery of video content via the internet.

 

 •  We may be required to make substantial additional investments in order to maintain competitive high definition, or HD,
programming offerings.

 

 •  Technology in our industry changes rapidly and could cause our services and products to become obsolete.
 

 •  We may need additional capital, which may not be available on acceptable terms or at all, in order to continue investing in
our business and to finance acquisitions and other strategic transactions.

 

 •  A portion of our investment portfolio is invested in securities that have experienced limited or no liquidity in recent months
and may not be immediately accessible to support our financing needs.

 

 •  The termination of our distribution agreement with AT&T Inc., or AT&T, may reduce subscriber additions and increase
churn if we are not able to develop alternative distribution channels.

 

 •  As technology changes, and in order to remain competitive, we may have to upgrade or replace subscriber equipment and
make substantial investments in our infrastructure.

 

 •  We rely on EchoStar Corporation, or EchoStar, to design and develop all of our new set-top boxes and certain related
components, and to provide transponder capacity, digital broadcast operations and other services for us. Our business would
be adversely affected if EchoStar ceases to provide these services to us and we are unable to obtain suitable replacement
services from third parties.

 

 •  We rely on one or a limited number of vendors, and the inability of these key vendors to meet our needs could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

 

 •  Our programming signals are subject to theft, and we are vulnerable to other forms of fraud that could require us to make
significant expenditures to remedy.

 

 •  We depend on third parties to solicit orders for DISH Network services that represent a significant percentage of our total
gross subscriber acquisitions.

 

 •  We depend on others to provide the programming that we offer to our subscribers and, if we lose access to this
programming, our subscriber losses and subscriber churn may increase.

i
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 •  Our competitors may be able to leverage their relationships with programmers so that they are able to reduce their
programming costs and offer exclusive content that will place them at a competitive advantage to us.

 

 •  We depend on the Cable Act for access to programming from cable-affiliate programmers at cost-effective rates.
 

 •  We face increasing competition from other distributors of foreign language programming that may limit our ability to
maintain our foreign language programming subscriber base.

 

 •  Our local programming strategy faces uncertainty because we may not be able to obtain necessary retransmission consents
from local network stations.

 

 •  We are subject to significant regulatory oversight and changes in applicable regulatory requirements could adversely affect
our business.

 

 •  We have made a substantial investment in certain 700 MHz wireless licenses and will be required to make significant
additional investments in order to commercialize these licenses and recoup our investment.

 

 •  We have substantial debt outstanding and may incur additional debt that could have a dilutive effect on our outstanding
equity capital or future earnings.

 

 •  If we are unsuccessful in defending Tivo’s litigation against us, we could be prohibited from offering digital video recorder,
or DVR, technology that would in turn put us at a significant disadvantage to our competitors.

 

 •  We have limited owned and leased satellite capacity and satellite failures could adversely affect our business.
 

 •  Our owned and leased satellites are subject to risks related to launch that could limit our ability to utilize these satellites.
 

 •  Our owned and leased satellites are subject to significant operational and atmospheric risks that could limit our ability to
utilize these satellites.

 

 •  Our owned and leased satellites have minimum design lives of 12 years, but could fail or suffer reduced capacity before
then.

 

 •  We currently have no commercial insurance coverage on the satellites we own and could face significant impairment charges
if one of our satellites fails.

 

 •  We may have potential conflicts of interest with EchoStar due to our common ownership and management.
 

 •  We rely on key personnel and the loss of their services may negatively affect our businesses.
 

 •  We are controlled by one principal stockholder who is also our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer.
 

 •  We are party to various lawsuits which, if adversely decided, could have a significant adverse impact on our business,
particularly lawsuits regarding intellectual property.

 

 •  We may pursue acquisitions and other strategic transactions to complement or expand our business that may not be
successful and with respect to which we may lose the entire value of our investment.

 

 •  Our business depends substantially on Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, licenses that can expire or be revoked
or modified and applications for FCC licenses that may not be granted.

 

 •  We are subject to digital HD “carry-one-carry-all” requirements that cause capacity constraints.
 

 •  It may be difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so may be beneficial to our shareholders, because of our
capital structure.

ii
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 •  We cannot assure you that there will not be deficiencies leading to material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting.

 

 •  We may face other risks described from time to time in periodic and current reports we file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC.

All cautionary statements made herein should be read as being applicable to all forward-looking statements wherever they appear.
Investors should consider the risks described herein and should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. We
assume no responsibility for updating forward-looking information contained or incorporated by reference herein or in other reports we
file with the SEC.

In this report, the words “DISH Network,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to DISH Network Corporation and its
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires. “EchoStar” refers to EchoStar Corporation and its subsidiaries.

iii 
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Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISH NETWORK CORPORATION
 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 (Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)
 (Unaudited)

         
  As of  
  March 31,   December 31,  
  2009   2008  
Assets         
Current Assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 263,936  $ 98,574 
Marketable investment securities   904,942   460,558 
Trade accounts receivable — other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $12,813 and

$15,207, respectively   775,838   799,139 
Trade accounts receivable — EchoStar   23,508   20,604 
Inventories, net   414,833   426,671 
Deferred tax assets   103,920   86,331 
Income tax receivable   —   148,747 
Other current assets   101,162   56,394 
Other current assets — EchoStar   966   966 
  

 
  

 
 

Total current assets   2,589,105   2,097,984 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Noncurrent Assets:         

Restricted cash and marketable investment securities   83,369   83,606 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $2,488,287 and $2,432,959,

respectively   2,816,998   2,663,289 
FCC authorizations   1,391,441   1,391,441 
Intangible assets, net   4,845   5,135 
Marketable and other investment securities   119,880   158,296 
Other noncurrent assets, net   57,773   60,296 
  

 
  

 
 

Total noncurrent assets   4,474,306   4,362,063 
  

 
  

 
 

Total assets  $ 7,063,411  $ 6,460,047 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)         
Current Liabilities:         

Trade accounts payable — other  $ 220,963  $ 174,216 
Trade accounts payable — EchoStar   315,992   297,629 
Deferred revenue and other   835,088   830,529 
Accrued programming   1,032,814   1,020,086 
Other accrued expenses   558,559   619,210 
Current portion of capital lease obligations, mortgages and other notes payable   23,400   13,333 
3% Convertible Subordinated Note due 2011   25,000   25,000 
  

 
  

 
 

Total current liabilities   3,011,816   2,980,003 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Long-term obligations, net of current portion:         

6 3/8% Senior Notes due 2011   1,000,000   1,000,000 
6 5/8% Senior Notes due 2014   1,000,000   1,000,000 
7 1/8% Senior Notes due 2016   1,500,000   1,500,000 
7% Senior Notes due 2013   500,000   500,000 
7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2015   750,000   750,000 
Capital lease obligations, mortgages and other notes payable, net of current portion   334,977   219,423 
Deferred tax liabilities   277,614   235,551 
Long-term deferred revenue, distribution and carriage payments and other long-term

liabilities   355,931   224,176 
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Total long-term obligations, net of current portion   5,718,522   5,429,150 
  

 
  

 
 

Total liabilities   8,730,338   8,409,153 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)         
         
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit):         

Class A common stock, $.01 par value, 1,600,000,000 shares authorized, 257,265,514 and
257,117,733 shares issued, 207,167,361 and 208,968,052 shares outstanding,
respectively   2,573   2,571 

Class B common stock, $.01 par value, 800,000,000 shares authorized, 238,435,208
shares issued and outstanding   2,384   2,384 

Class C common stock, $.01 par value, 800,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and
outstanding   —   — 

Additional paid-in capital   2,094,827   2,090,527 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   (124,211)   (107,998)
Accumulated earnings (deficit)   (2,180,120)   (2,492,804)
Treasury stock, at cost   (1,462,380)   (1,443,786)

  
 
  

 
 

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)   (1,666,927)   (1,949,106)
  

 
  

 
 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)  $ 7,063,411  $ 6,460,047 
  

 

  

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

1
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DISH NETWORK CORPORATION
 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

 AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
 (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
 (Unaudited)

         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
Revenue:         
Subscriber-related revenue  $2,864,939  $2,810,426 
Equipment sales and other revenue   32,346   25,052 
Equipment sales — EchoStar   2,683   2,638 
Transitional services and other revenue — EchoStar   5,353   6,278 
  

 
  

 
 

Total revenue   2,905,321   2,844,394 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Costs and Expenses:         
Subscriber-related expenses (exclusive of depreciation shown below — Note 11)   1,550,078   1,444,641 
Satellite and transmission expenses (exclusive of depreciation shown below — Note 11):         

EchoStar   80,757   78,253 
Other   7,021   7,664 

Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales   40,499   31,814 
Subscriber acquisition costs:         

Cost of sales — subscriber promotion subsidies — EchoStar (exclusive of depreciation shown
below — Note 11)   24,136   30,787 

Other subscriber promotion subsidies   217,560   280,197 
Subscriber acquisition advertising   50,507   63,972 

  
 
  

 
 

Total subscriber acquisition costs   292,203   374,956 
General and administrative expenses — EchoStar   11,142   13,770 
General and administrative expenses   125,765   115,760 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 11)   223,293   272,368 
  

 
  

 
 

Total costs and expenses   2,330,758   2,339,226 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Operating income (loss)   574,563   505,168 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Other Income (Expense):         
Interest income   4,784   14,101 
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized   (83,937)   (89,812)
Other, net   4,177   (7,028)
  

 
  

 
 

Total other income (expense)   (74,976)   (82,739)
  

 
  

 
 

         
Income (loss) before income taxes   499,587   422,429 
Income tax (provision) benefit, net   (186,903)   (163,846)
  

 
  

 
 

Net income (loss)  $ 312,684  $ 258,583 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Comprehensive Income (Loss):         
Foreign currency translation adjustments   (380)   (1,664)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities   (14,348)   (48,891)
Recognition of previously unrealized (gains) losses on available-for-sale securities included in

net income (loss)   (1,716)   (4,523)
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit   231   21,223 
  

 
  

 
 

Comprehensive income (loss)  $ 296,471  $ 224,728 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Denominator for basic and diluted net income (loss) per share — Class A and B common

stock:         
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per share — weighted-average common shares   446,874   448,803 
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outstanding
  

 

  

 

 

Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per share — weighted-average common shares
outstanding   448,033   460,218 

  

 

  

 

 

         
Net income (loss) per share — Class A and B common stock:         
Basic net income (loss) per share  $ 0.70  $ 0.58 
  

 

  

 

 

Diluted net income (loss) per share  $ 0.70  $ 0.57 
  

 

  

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

2
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DISH NETWORK CORPORATION
 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 (In thousands)
 (Unaudited)

         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:         
Net income (loss)  $ 312,684  $ 258,583 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flows from operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization   223,293   272,368 
Equity in losses (earnings) of affiliates   2,360   2,318 
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments   (844)   2,357 
Non-cash, stock-based compensation   3,209   3,559 
Deferred tax expense (benefit)   24,705   14,520 
Other, net   1,777   1,472 
Change in noncurrent assets   1,683   1,664 
Change in long-term deferred revenue, distribution and carriage payments and other long-term

liabilities   3,407   81,446 
Changes in current assets and current liabilities, net   328,942   267,450 

  
 
  

 
 

Net cash flows from operating activities   901,216   905,737 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:         
Purchases of marketable investment securities   (725,779)   (818,220)
Sales and maturities of marketable investment securities   264,507   700,289 
Purchases of property and equipment   (252,174)   (266,771)
Change in restricted cash and marketable investment securities   187   (77)
Purchase of strategic investments included in noncurrent marketable and other investment

securities   —   (115,253)
Other   —   (2,569)
  

 
  

 
 

Net cash flows from investing activities   (713,259)   (502,601)
  

 
  

 
 

         
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:         
Distribution of cash and cash equivalents to EchoStar in connection with the Spin-off   —   (585,147)
Repayment of capital lease obligations, mortgages and other notes payable   (5,093)   (1,979)
Class A common stock repurchases   (18,594)   — 
Net proceeds from Class A common stock options exercised and Class A common stock issued

under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan   1,092   930 
  

 
  

 
 

Net cash flows from financing activities   (22,595)   (586,196)
  

 
  

 
 

         
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   165,362   (183,060)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   98,574   919,542 
  

 
  

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 263,936  $ 736,482 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:         
Cash paid for interest  $ 58,250  $ 57,221 
  

 

  

 

 

Capitalized interest  $ 3,942  $ 3,848 
  

 

  

 

 

Cash received for interest  $ 3,366  $ 12,976 
  

 

  

 

 

Cash paid for income taxes  $ 7,978  $ 17,393 
  

 

  

 

 

Employee benefits paid in Class A common stock  $ —  $ 19,374 
  

 

  

 

 

Satellites and other assets financed under capital lease obligations  $ 130,714  $ — 
  

 

  

 

 

Net assets contributed in connection with the Spin-off, excluding cash and cash equivalents  $ —  $2,765,398 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DISH NETWORK CORPORATION
 NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 (Unaudited)

1. Organization and Business Activities

Principal Business

DISH Network Corporation is a holding company. Its subsidiaries (which together with DISH Network Corporation are referred to as
“DISH Network,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and/or “our”) operate the DISH Network® direct broadcast satellite (“DBS”)
subscription television service in the United States which had 13.584 million subscribers as of March 31, 2009. We have deployed
substantial resources to develop the “DISH Network DBS System.” The DISH Network DBS System consists of our licensed Federal
Communications Commission (“FCC”) authorized DBS and Fixed Satellite Service (“FSS”) spectrum, our owned and leased satellites,
receiver systems, third-party broadcast operations, customer service facilities, in-home service and call center operations and certain
other assets utilized in our operations.

Spin-off of Technology and Certain Infrastructure Assets

On January 1, 2008, we completed a tax-free distribution of our technology and set-top box business and certain infrastructure assets
(the “Spin-off”) into a separate publicly-traded company, EchoStar Corporation (“EchoStar”). DISH Network and EchoStar now
operate as separate publicly-traded companies, and neither entity has any ownership interest in the other. However, a substantial
majority of the voting power of both companies is owned beneficially by Charles W. Ergen, our Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer. The two entities consist of the following:

 •  DISH Network Corporation — which retained its DISH Network® subscription television business and
 

 •  EchoStar Corporation — which sells equipment, including set-top boxes and related components, to DISH Network and
international customers, and provides digital broadcast operations and satellite services to DISH Network and other
customers.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X
for interim financial information. Accordingly, these statements do not include all of the information and notes required for complete
financial statements prepared under GAAP. In our opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2009 are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2009. For further information, refer to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (“2008 10-
K”). Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Principles of Consolidation

We consolidate all majority owned subsidiaries and investments in entities in which we have controlling influence. Non-majority
owned investments are accounted for using the equity method when we have the ability to significantly influence the operating
decisions of the investee. When we do not have the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of an investee, the cost
method is used. For entities that are considered variable interest entities we apply the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51” (“FIN
46R”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for each reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things,
allowances for doubtful accounts, inventory allowances, self-insurance obligations, deferred taxes and related valuation allowances,
uncertain tax positions, loss contingencies, fair value of financial instruments, fair value of options granted under our stock-based
compensation plans, fair values of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations, capital leases, asset impairments, useful
lives of property, equipment and intangible assets, retailer incentives, programming expenses, subscriber lives and royalty obligations.
Illiquid credit markets and general downward economic conditions have increased the inherent uncertainty in the estimates and
assumptions indicated above. Actual results may differ from previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are
reflected prospectively in the period they occur.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-4 (“FSP 157-4”), which provides additional guidance on FASB Statement
No. 157 (“SFAS 157”), Fair Value Measurements, when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability has significantly
decreased. FSP 157-4 will be effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. We are currently evaluating
the impact that adoption of FSP 157-4 will have on our financial position and our results of operations.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 115-2 (“FSP 115-2”) and FASB Staff Position No. 124-2 (“FSP 124-2”),
which amends prior other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt and equity securities. FSP 115-2 and FSP 124-2 will be
effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact that adoption of
FSP 115-2 and FSP 124-2 will have on our financial position and our results of operations.

3. Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) Per Share

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS 128”) requires entities to present both basic
earnings per share (“EPS”) and diluted EPS. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
stock awards were exercised and convertible securities were converted to common stock.

The potential dilution from our subordinated notes convertible into common stock was computed using the “if converted method.” The
potential dilution from stock awards exercisable into common stock was computed using the treasury stock method based on the
average market value of our Class A common stock. The following table reflects the basic and diluted weighted-average shares
outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share. Earnings per share amounts for all periods are presented below in
accordance with the requirements of SFAS 128.
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  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Numerator:         
Numerator for basic net income (loss) per share — Net income (loss)  $312,684  $258,583 
Interest on dilutive subordinated convertible notes, net of related tax effect   117   2,461 
  

 
  

 
 

Numerator for diluted net income (loss) per common share  $312,801  $261,044 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Denominator:         
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per common share – weighted-average common shares

outstanding   446,874   448,803 
Dilutive impact of stock awards outstanding   677   2,634 
Dilutive impact of subordinated notes convertible into common shares   482   8,781 
  

 
  

 
 

Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per share – weighted-average common shares
outstanding   448,033   460,218 

  

 

  

 

 

         
Net income (loss) per share:         

Basic net income (loss)  $ 0.70  $ 0.58 
  

 

  

 

 

Diluted net income (loss)  $ 0.70  $ 0.57 
  

 

  

 

 

         
Shares of Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of:         

3% Convertible Subordinated Note due 2010 (repaid during third quarter 2008)   —   8,299 
3% Convertible Subordinated Note due 2011   482   482 

As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, there were stock awards to purchase 11.1 million and 3.4 million shares of Class A common stock
outstanding, respectively, not included in the above denominator as their effect is antidilutive.

Vesting of options and rights to acquire shares of our Class A common stock (“Restricted performance units”) granted pursuant to our
long-term incentive plans is contingent upon meeting certain long-term goals which have not yet been achieved. As a consequence, the
following are not included in the diluted EPS calculation:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Performance-based options   10,287   9,721 
Restricted performance units   603   590 
  

 
  

 
 

Total   10,890   10,311 
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4. Marketable Investment Securities, Restricted Cash and Other Investment Securities

Our marketable investment securities, restricted cash and other investment securities consist of the following:
         
  As of  
  March 31,   December 31, 
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Marketable investment securities:         
Current marketable investment securities — VRDNs  $ 699,847  $ 239,611 
Current marketable investment securities — strategic   23,756   13,561 
Current marketable investment securities — other   181,339   207,386 
  

 
  

 
 

Total current marketable investment securities   904,942   460,558 
Restricted marketable investment securities (1)   21,185   22,407 
Noncurrent marketable investment securities — ARS and MBS (2)   78,652   113,394 
  

 
  

 
 

Total marketable investment securities   1,004,779   596,359 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (1)   62,184   61,199 
  

 
  

 
 

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents   62,184   61,199 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Other investment securities:         
Other investment securities — cost method   15,795   15,795 
Other investment securities — equity method   24,045   26,784 
Other investment securities — fair value method   1,388   2,323 
  

 
  

 
 

Total other investment securities (2)   41,228   44,902 
  

 
  

 
 

         
Total marketable investment securities, restricted cash and other investment securities  $1,108,191  $ 702,460 
  

 

  

 

 

 

(1)  Restricted marketable investment securities and restricted cash and cash equivalents are included in “Restricted cash and
marketable investment securities” on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

 

(2)  Noncurrent marketable investment securities — ARS, MBS and other investment securities are included in “Marketable and other
investment securities” on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Marketable Investment Securities

Our marketable investment securities portfolio consists of various debt and equity instruments, all of which are classified as available-
for-sale.

Current Marketable Investment Securities — VRDNs

Variable rate demand notes (“VRDNs”) are long-term floating rate municipal bonds with embedded put options that allow the
bondholder to sell the security at par plus accrued interest. All of the put options are secured by a pledged liquidity source. While they
are classified as marketable investment securities, the put option allows for VRDNs to be liquidated on a same day or on a five
business day settlement basis.

Current Marketable Investment Securities — Strategic

Our strategic marketable investment securities are highly speculative and have experienced and continue to experience volatility. As of
March 31, 2009, a significant portion of our strategic investment portfolio consisted of securities of a single issuer and the value of that
portfolio therefore depends on that issuer.
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Current Marketable Investment Securities — other

Our other current marketable investment securities portfolio includes investments in various debt instruments including corporate and
government bonds.

Restricted Marketable Investment Securities

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, our restricted marketable investment securities, together with our restricted cash,
included amounts required as collateral for our letters of credit.

Noncurrent Marketable Investment Securities — ARS and MBS

We have investments in auction rate securities (“ARS”) and mortgage backed securities (“MBS”) which are classified as available-for-
sale securities and reported at fair value. Recent events in the credit markets have reduced or eliminated current liquidity for certain of
our ARS and MBS investments. As a result, we classify these investments as noncurrent assets as we intend to hold these investments
until they recover or mature.

The valuation of our ARS and MBS investments portfolio is subject to uncertainties that are difficult to estimate. The fair values of
these securities are estimated utilizing a combination of comparable instruments and liquidity assumptions. These analyses consider,
among other items, the collateral underlying the investments, credit ratings, and liquidity. These securities were also compared, when
possible, to other observable market data with similar characteristics.

For our ARS and MBS investments, due to the lack of observable market quotes for identical assets, we utilize analyses that rely on
Level 2 and/or Level 3 inputs as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS
157”). These inputs include observed prices on similar assets as well as our assumptions and estimates related to the counterparty credit
quality, default risk underlying the security and overall capital market liquidity.

Other Investment Securities

We have several strategic investments in certain equity securities that are included in noncurrent “Marketable and other investment
securities” on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets accounted for using the cost, equity or fair value methods of accounting.

Our ability to realize value from our strategic investments in companies that are not publicly traded depends on the success of those
companies’ businesses and their ability to obtain sufficient capital to execute their business plans. Because private markets are not as
liquid as public markets, there is also increased risk that we will not be able to sell these investments, or that when we desire to sell
them we will not be able to obtain fair value for them.

Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Marketable Investment Securities — Recorded on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had accumulated net unrealized losses of $132 million and $116 million, both net of
related tax effect, respectively, as a part of “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” within “Total stockholders’ equity
(deficit).” A full valuation allowance has been established against the deferred tax assets associated with these unrealized capital losses.
The components of our available-for-sale investments are detailed in the table below.
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  As of March 31, 2009   As of December 31, 2008  
  Marketable               Marketable    
  Investment   Unrealized   Investment   Unrealized  
  Securities   Gains   Losses   Net   Securities   Gains   Losses   Net  
  (In thousands)  
Debt securities:                                 

VRDNs  $ 699,847  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 239,611  $ —  $ —  $ — 
ARS and MBS   78,652   —   (135,308)   (135,308)   113,394   —   (103,943)   (103,943)
Other (including

restricted)   206,619   1,649   (11,495)   (9,846)   231,863   —   (12,442)   (12,442)
Equity securities:                                 

Other   19,661   12,841   (136)   12,705   11,491   —   —   — 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total marketable
investment
securities  $1,004,779  $14,490  $(146,939)  $(132,449)  $ 596,359  $ —  $(116,385)  $(116,385)
  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

As of March 31, 2009, restricted and non-restricted marketable investment securities include debt securities of $872 million with
contractual maturities of one year or less and $113 million with contractual maturities greater than one year. Actual maturities may
differ from contractual maturities as a result of our ability to sell these securities prior to maturity.

Marketable Investment Securities in a Loss Position

In accordance with the guidance of FASB Staff Position No. 115-1 (“FSP 115-1”) “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,” the following table reflects the length of time that the individual securities,
accounted for as available-for-sale, have been in an unrealized loss position, aggregated by investment category. As of March 31, 2009,
the unrealized losses on our investments in debt securities primarily represent investments in auction rate, mortgage and asset-backed
securities. We are not aware of any specific factors indicating that the underlying issuers of these investments would not be able to pay
interest as it becomes due or repay the principal at maturity. Therefore, we believe that these changes in the estimated fair values of
these marketable investment securities are related to temporary market fluctuations. In addition, we have the ability and intent to hold
our investments in these debt securities until they recover or mature.
                                 
          As of March 31, 2009  
  Primary   Total   Less than Six Months   Six to Nine Months   Nine Months or More  
Investment  Reason for   Fair   Fair   Unrealized  Fair   Unrealized  Fair   Unrealized  
Category  Unrealized Loss   Value   Value   Loss   Value   Loss   Value   Loss  
          (In thousands)  

Debt securities  
Temporary market

fluctuations  $219,120  $ 1,532  $ (5)  $ —  $ —  $217,588  $(146,798)
Equity securities  Temporary market fluctuations  120   120   (136)   —   —   —   — 
      

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total      $219,240  $ 1,652  $ (141)  $ —  $ —  $217,588  $(146,798)
      

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

                                 
          As of December 31, 2008

 
          

 

          (In thousands)
 

Debt securities  
Temporary market

fluctuations  $295,676  $ 2,070  $ (540)  $ 8,114  $ (24)  $285,492  $(115,821)
      

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total      $295,676  $ 2,070  $ (540)  $ 8,114  $ (24)  $285,492  $(115,821)
      

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 “Fair Value Measurements” established a new framework for measuring fair value for all financial and non-financial
instruments and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the SFAS 157 framework requires fair value to be determined based on the
exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. SFAS 157 established market or observable
inputs as the preferred source of values, followed by unobservable inputs or assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the
absence of market inputs.
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 •  Level 1, defined as observable inputs being quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
 

 •  Level 2, defined as observable inputs including quoted prices for similar assets; and
 

 •  Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring assumptions based on the
best information available.

Our assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows:
                 
  Total Fair Value As of March 31, 2009  
Assets  Total   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3  
      (In thousands)      
Marketable investment securities  $1,004,779  $24,166  $909,831  $70,782 
Other investment securities   1,388   —   —   1,388 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total assets at fair value  $1,006,167  $24,166  $909,831  $72,170 
  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Changes in Level 3 instruments are as follows:
             
  Level 3  
      Current and    
      Noncurrent     
      Marketable   Other  
      Investment   Investment 
  Total   Securities   Securities  
      (In thousands)     
Balance as of December 31, 2008  $106,679  $ 104,356  $ 2,323 
Transfers in (out) of level 3, net   —   —   — 
Net realized/unrealized gains/(losses) included in earnings   (935)   —   (935)
Net realized/unrealized gains/(losses) included in other comprehensive income

(loss)   (30,762)   (30,762)   — 
Purchases, issuances and settlements, net   (2,812)   (2,812)   — 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Balance as of March 31, 2009  $ 72,170  $ 70,782  $ 1,388 
  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Gains and Losses on Sales and Changes in Carrying Values of Investments — Recorded on the
 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

“Other, net” income and expense included on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(Loss) includes other changes in the carrying amount of our marketable and non-marketable investments as follows:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
Other Income (Expense):  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Marketable investment securities — gains (losses) on sales/exchange  $ 7,262  $ 2,275 
Other investment securities — unrealized gains (losses) on fair value investments and other-than-

temporary impairments   (935)   (4,632)
Other   (2,150)   (4,671)
  

 
  

 
 

Total  $ 4,177  $ (7,028)
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5. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:
         
  As of  
  March 31,   December 31, 
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Finished goods — DBS  $249,272  $ 238,343 
Raw materials   116,038   146,353 
Work-in-process — used   74,539   61,663 
Work-in-process — new   2,552   2,414 
  

 
  

 
 

Subtotal   442,401   448,773 
Inventory allowance   (27,568)   (22,102)
  

 
  

 
 

Inventories, net  $414,833  $ 426,671 
  

 

  

 

 

6. Satellites

We currently utilize twelve satellites in geostationary orbit approximately 22,300 miles above the equator, five of which are owned by
us. Each of the owned satellites had an original estimated minimum useful life of at least 12 years. We currently lease capacity on five
satellites from EchoStar with terms of up to two years and we account for these as operating leases. (See Note 12 for further discussion
of our satellite leases with EchoStar.) We also lease two satellites from third parties, which are accounted for as capital leases pursuant
to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases” (“SFAS 13”). The capital leases are depreciated over
the shorter of the economic life or the term of the satellite agreement.

Operation of our programming service requires that we have adequate satellite transmission capacity for the programming we offer.
Moreover, current competitive conditions require that we continue to expand our offering of new programming, particularly by
expanding local HD coverage and offering more HD national channels. While we generally have had in-orbit satellite capacity
sufficient to transmit our existing channels and some backup capacity to recover the transmission of certain critical programming, our
backup capacity is limited.

In the event of a failure or loss of any of our satellites, we may need to acquire or lease additional satellite capacity or relocate one of
our other satellites and use it as a replacement for the failed or lost satellite. Such a failure could result in a prolonged loss of critical
programming or a significant delay in our plans to expand programming as necessary to remain competitive and thus may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Prior to 2009, certain satellites in our fleet have experienced anomalies, some of which have had a significant adverse impact on their
commercial operation. There can be no assurance that future anomalies will not cause further losses, which could further impact the
remaining life or commercial operation of any of these satellites. See “Long-Lived Satellite Assets” below for further discussion of
evaluation of impairment. There can be no assurance that we can recover critical transmission capacity in the event one or more of our
in-orbit satellites were to fail. We do not anticipate carrying insurance for any of the in-orbit satellites that we own, and we will bear
the risk associated with any in-orbit satellite failures. Recent developments with respect to our satellites are discussed below.

Owned Satellites

EchoStar V. EchoStar V was originally designed with a minimum 12-year design life. Momentum wheel failures in prior years,
together with relocation of the satellite between orbital locations, resulted in increased fuel consumption, as previously disclosed. Prior
to 2009, EchoStar V experienced anomalies resulting in the loss of 13 solar array strings. During April 2009, EchoStar V lost an
additional solar array string. These issues have not impacted commercial operation of the satellite. However, during 2005, as a result of
the momentum wheel failures
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and the increased fuel consumption, we reduced the remaining estimated useful life of the satellite. As of October 2008, EchoStar V
was fully depreciated.

Leased Satellites

EchoStar XII. EchoStar XII was designed to operate 13 DBS transponders at 270 watts per channel when providing service to the
entire continental United States (“CONUS”), or 22 spot beams in a combination of 135 and 65 watts per channel. We currently operate
the satellite in spot beam/CONUS hybrid mode. EchoStar XII has a total of 24 solar array circuits, approximately 22 of which are
required to assure full power for the original minimum 12-year design life of the satellite. Prior to 2009, eight solar array circuits on
EchoStar XII experienced anomalous behavior resulting in both temporary and permanent solar array circuit failures. During
March 2009, EchoStar XII experienced an additional solar array circuit failure. Although the design life of the satellite has not been
affected, these circuit failures have resulted in a reduction in power to the satellite which will preclude us from using the full
complement of transponders on EchoStar XII for the 12-year design life of the satellite.

Long-Lived Satellite Assets

We account for impairments of long-lived satellite assets in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). SFAS 144 requires a long-lived
asset or asset group to be tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Based on the guidance under SFAS 144, we evaluate our satellite fleet for recoverability as one asset group. While
certain of the anomalies discussed above, and previously disclosed, may be considered to represent a significant adverse change in the
physical condition of an individual satellite, based on the redundancy designed within each satellite and considering the asset grouping,
these anomalies (none of which caused a loss of service to subscribers for an extended period) are not considered to be significant
events that would require evaluation for impairment recognition pursuant to the guidance under SFAS 144. Unless and until a specific
satellite is abandoned or otherwise determined to have no service potential, the net carrying amount related to the satellite would not be
written off.

7. Long-Term Debt

Capital Lease Obligations

Ciel II, a Canadian DBS satellite, was launched in December 2008 and commenced commercial operation at the 129 degree orbital
location in February 2009. We have leased 100% of the capacity on the satellite for an initial term of ten years. Prior to the launch, we
pre-paid $131 million to SES Americom in connection with the lease agreement and we capitalized $16 million of interest related to
this satellite. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases” (“SFAS 13”), we have
accounted for this agreement as a capital lease asset by recording $277 million as the estimated fair value of the satellite and recording
a capital lease obligation in the amount of $130 million.

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had $500 million and $223 million capitalized for satellites acquired under capital
leases included in “Property and equipment, net,” respectively, with related accumulated depreciation of $34 million and $26 million,
respectively. This increase during the three months ended March 31, 2009 related to the Ciel II satellite discussed above. In our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), we recognized $8 million and $4 million in
depreciation expense on satellites acquired under capital lease agreements during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under our capital lease obligations, together with the present value of the net minimum lease
payments as of March 31, 2009, are as follows (in thousands):
     
For the Years Ended December 31,     
2009 (remaining nine months)  $ 57,707 
2010   76,525 
2011   75,999 
2012   75,999 
2013   75,999 
Thereafter   542,328 
  

 
 

Total minimum lease payments   904,557 
Less: Amount representing lease of the orbital location and estimated executory costs (primarily insurance and

maintenance) including profit thereon, included in total minimum lease payments   (416,326)
  

 
 

Net minimum lease payments   488,231 
Less: Amount representing interest   (175,993)
  

 
 

Present value of net minimum lease payments   312,238 
Less: Current portion   (19,051)
  

 
 

Long-term portion of capital lease obligations  $ 293,187 
  

 

 

8. Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock Repurchase Program

Our board of directors previously authorized stock repurchases of up to $1.0 billion of our Class A common stock. During the three
months ended March 31, 2009, we repurchased 1.9 million shares of our common stock for $19 million. As of March 31, 2009, we
may repurchase up to $981 million under this plan.

9. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Incentive Plans

In connection with the Spin-off, as permitted by our existing stock incentive plans and consistent with the Spin-off exchange ratio, each
DISH Network stock option was converted into two stock options as follows:

 •  an adjusted DISH Network stock option for the same number of shares that were exercisable under the original DISH Network
stock option, with an exercise price equal to the exercise price of the original DISH Network stock option multiplied by
0.831219.

 •  a new EchoStar stock option for one-fifth of the number of shares that were exercisable under the original DISH Network stock
option, with an exercise price equal to the exercise price of the original DISH Network stock option multiplied by 0.843907.

Similarly, each holder of DISH Network restricted stock units retained his or her DISH Network restricted stock units and received one
EchoStar restricted stock unit for every five DISH Network restricted stock units that they held.

Consequently, the fair value of the DISH Network stock award and the new EchoStar stock award immediately following the Spin-off
was equivalent to the fair value of such stock award immediately prior to the Spin-off.

We maintain stock incentive plans to attract and retain officers, directors and key employees. Awards under these plans include both
performance and non-performance based equity incentives. As of March 31, 2009, we had outstanding under these plans stock options
to acquire 22.2 million shares of our Class A common stock and 0.9 million restricted stock awards. Stock options granted through
March 31, 2009 were granted with exercise prices equal to or greater than the market value of our Class A common stock at the date of
grant and with a maximum term of ten years. While historically we have issued stock options subject to vesting, typically at the rate of
20% per
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year, some stock options have been granted with immediate vesting and other stock options vest only upon the achievement of certain
company-wide objectives. As of March 31, 2009, we had 57.6 million shares of our Class A common stock available for future grant
under our stock incentive plans.

As of March 31, 2009, the following stock incentive awards were outstanding:
                 
  As of March 31, 2009  
  DISH Network Awards   EchoStar Awards  
      Restricted       Restricted 
  Stock   Stock   Stock   Stock  
Stock Incentive Awards Outstanding  Options   Units   Options   Units  
Held by DISH Network employees   18,629,714   487,735   1,622,315   81,366 
Held by EchoStar employees   3,603,669   427,249   N/A   N/A 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total   22,233,383   914,984   1,622,315   81,366 
  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

We are responsible for fulfilling all stock incentive awards related to DISH Network common stock and EchoStar is responsible for
fulfilling all stock incentive awards related to EchoStar common stock, regardless of whether such stock incentive awards are held by
our or EchoStar’s employees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, based on the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123R, “Share Based Payments” (“SFAS 123R”), our stock-based compensation expense, resulting from awards
outstanding at the Spin-off date, is based on the stock incentive awards held by our employees regardless of whether such awards were
issued by DISH Network or EchoStar. Accordingly, stock-based compensation that we expense with respect to EchoStar stock
incentive awards is included in “Additional paid-in capital” on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Stock Award Activity

Our stock option activity (including performance and non-performance based stock options) for the three months ended March 31,
2009 was as follows:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31, 2009  
      Weighted-  
      Average  
  Options   Exercise Price 
Total options outstanding, beginning of period   21,835,687  $ 22.50 
Granted   1,105,500   11.11 
Exercised   (98,597)   6.25 
Forfeited and cancelled   (609,207)   23.95 
  

 
     

Total options outstanding, end of period   22,233,383   21.97 
  

 

     

Performance based options outstanding, end of period (1)   10,286,750   16.94 
  

 

     

Exercisable at end of period   6,946,731   29.47 
  

 

     

(1) These stock options, which are included in the caption “Total options outstanding, end of period,” were issued pursuant to two
separate long-term, performance-based stock incentive plans. Vesting of these stock options is contingent upon meeting certain long-
term company goals. See discussion of the 2005 LTIP and 2008 LTIP below.

We did not realize a tax benefit from stock options exercised during the three months ended March 31, 2009. The tax benefit from
stock options exercised during the three months ended March 31, 2008 was less than $1 million. Based on the closing market price of
our Class A common stock on March 31, 2009, the aggregate intrinsic value of our outstanding stock options was $1 million. Of that
amount, stock options with an aggregate intrinsic value of $1 million were exercisable at the end of the period.
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Our restricted stock award activity (including performance and non-performance based stock awards) for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 was as follows:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31, 2009  
      Weighted-  
  Restricted   Average  
  Stock   Grant Date 
  Awards   Fair Value  
Total restricted stock awards outstanding, beginning of period   1,452,734  $ 27.87 
Granted   6,666   11.11 
Exercised   —   — 
Forfeited and cancelled   (544,416)   30.55 
  

 
     

Total restricted stock awards outstanding, end of period   914,984   26.16 
  

 

     

Restricted performance units outstanding, end of period (1)   602,734   24.08 
  

 

     

(1) These restricted performance units, which are included in the caption “Total restricted stock awards outstanding, end of period,”
were issued pursuant to two separate long-term, performance-based stock incentive plans. Vesting of these restricted performance units
is contingent upon meeting certain long-term company goals. See discussion of the 2005 LTIP and 2008 LTIP below.

Long-Term Performance-Based Plans

2005 LTIP. In 2005, we adopted a long-term, performance-based stock incentive plan (the “2005 LTIP”) within the terms of our 1999
Stock Incentive Plan. The 2005 LTIP provides stock options and restricted performance units, either alone or in combination, which
vest over seven years at the rate of 10% per year during the first four years, and at the rate of 20% per year thereafter. Exercise of the
stock options is subject to a performance condition that a company-specific subscriber goal is achieved prior to March 31, 2015.

Contingent compensation related to the 2005 LTIP will not be recorded in our financial statements unless and until management
concludes achievement of the performance condition is probable. Given the competitive nature of our business, small variations in
subscriber churn, gross subscriber addition rates and certain other factors can significantly impact subscriber growth. Consequently,
while it was determined that achievement of the goal was not probable as of March 31, 2009, that assessment could change at any time.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, if all of the awards under the 2005 LTIP were vested and the goal had been met or if we had
determined that achievement of the goal was probable during the three months ended March 31, 2009, we would have recorded total
non-cash, stock-based compensation expense for our employees as indicated in the table below. If the goal is met and there are
unvested stock options at that time, the vested amounts would be expensed immediately on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), with the unvested portion recognized ratably over the remaining vesting period.
         
  2005 LTIP  
      Vested  
  Total   Portion  
  (In thousands)  
DISH Network awards held by DISH Network employees  $47,171  $14,360 
EchoStar awards held by DISH Network employees   9,578   2,916 
  

 
  

 
 

Total  $56,749  $17,276 
  

 

  

 

 

2008 LTIP. In December 2008, we adopted a long-term, performance-based stock incentive plan (the “2008 LTIP”) within the terms of
our 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2008 LTIP provides stock options and restricted performance units, either alone or in combination,
which vest based on company-specific subscriber and financial goals. Exercise of the awards is contingent on achieving these goals
prior to December 31, 2015. Management has determined it is
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probable that a portion of the 2008 LTIP awards will vest and as a result, we recorded less than $1 million in non-cash, stock-based
compensation expense during the three months ended March 31, 2009. During the remainder of 2009, we expect to record an additional
$1 million in non-cash, stock-based compensation expense related to this portion which management has determined to be probable.
Additional compensation related to the 2008 LTIP will be recorded based on management’s assessment of the probability of meeting
the remaining performance conditions. If the remaining goals are achieved and the remaining 2008 LTIP awards vest, we will
recognize an additional $23 million in non-cash, stock-based compensation expense over the term of this stock incentive plan.

Of the 22.2 million stock options and 0.9 million restricted stock awards outstanding under our stock incentive plans as of March 31,
2009, the following awards were outstanding pursuant to the 2005 LTIP and the 2008 LTIP:
         
  As of March 31, 2009  
      Weighted-  
  Number of   Average  
Stock Options  Awards   Exercise Price 
 

 
 

2005 LTIP   4,279,250  $ 25.16 
2008 LTIP   6,007,500  $ 11.09 
  

 
     

Total   10,286,750  $ 16.94 
  

 

     

Restricted Performance Units         
 
       

2005 LTIP   521,912     
2008 LTIP   80,822     
  

 
     

Total   602,734     
  

 

     

No awards were granted under the 2005 LTIP during the three months ended March 31, 2009.

Stock-Based Compensation

Total non-cash, stock-based compensation expense for all of our employees is shown in the following table for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008 and was allocated to the same expense categories as the base compensation for such employees:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Subscriber-related  $ 259  $ 271 
General and administrative   2,950   3,288 
  

 
  

 
 

Total non-cash, stock-based compensation  $ 3,209  $ 3,559 
  

 

  

 

 

As of March 31, 2009, our total unrecognized compensation cost related to our non-performance based unvested stock options was
$30 million and includes compensation expense that we will recognize for EchoStar stock options held by our employees as a result of
the Spin-off. This cost is based on an estimated future forfeiture rate of approximately 4.3% per year and will be recognized over a
weighted-average period of approximately three years. Share-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards ultimately
expected to vest and is reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Changes in the estimated forfeiture rate can
have a significant effect on share-based compensation expense since the effect of adjusting the rate is recognized in the period the
forfeiture estimate is changed.
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The fair value of each award for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was estimated at the date of the grant using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:
       
  For the Three Months
  Ended March 31,
Stock Options  2009  2008
Risk-free interest rate  1.97% - 2.51%   2.74%
Volatility factor  29.72% - 32.04%  19.98%
Expected term of options in years  6.0 - 7.3   6.1 
Weighted-average fair value of options granted  $3.86 - $4.17  $ 7.64 

We do not currently plan to pay additional dividends on our common stock, and therefore the dividend yield percentage is set at zero
for all periods presented. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded stock
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Consequently, our estimate of fair value may differ from other
valuation models. Further, the Black-Scholes model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. Therefore, we do not believe the existing models provide as reliable a
single measure of the fair value of stock-based compensation awards as a market-based model would.

We will continue to evaluate the assumptions used to derive the estimated fair value of our stock options as new events or changes in
circumstances become known.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

Guarantees

In connection with the Spin-off, we distributed certain satellite lease agreements to EchoStar. We remain the guarantor under those
capital leases for payments totaling approximately $486 million over the next eight years.

In addition, during the first quarter of 2008, EchoStar entered into a satellite transponder service agreement for Nimiq 5 for a total of
$535 million in payments through 2024. We sublease this capacity from EchoStar and have also guaranteed its obligation under this
agreement. As of March 31, 2009, the remaining obligation under this agreement was $532 million.

As of March 31, 2009, we have not recorded a liability on the balance sheet for any of these guarantees.

Contingencies

In connection with the Spin-off, we entered into a separation agreement with EchoStar, which provides for, among other things, the
division of liability resulting from litigation. Under the terms of the separation agreement, EchoStar has assumed liability for any acts
or omissions that relate to its business whether such acts or omissions occurred before or after the Spin-off. Certain exceptions are
provided, including for intellectual property related claims generally, whereby EchoStar will only be liable for its acts or omissions that
occurred following the Spin-off and we have indemnified EchoStar for any potential liability or damages resulting from intellectual
property claims relating to the period prior to the effective date of the Spin-off.

Acacia

During 2004, Acacia Media Technologies (“Acacia”) filed a lawsuit against us and EchoStar in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California. The suit also named DirecTV, Comcast, Charter, Cox and a number of smaller cable companies as
defendants. Acacia is an intellectual property holding company that seeks to license an acquired patent portfolio. The suit alleges
infringement of United States Patent Nos. 5,132,992, 5,253,275, 5,550,863, 6,002,720 and 6,144,702, which relate to certain systems
and methods for transmission of
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digital data. In March 2008, the Court issued an order outlining a schedule for filing dispositive invalidity motions based on its claim
constructions. Acacia has agreed to stipulate to invalidity based on the Court’s claim constructions in order to proceed immediately to
the Federal Circuit on appeal. The Court, however, has permitted us to file additional invalidity motions.

 We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the patents, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Broadcast Innovation, L.L.C.

In 2001, Broadcast Innovation, L.L.C. (“Broadcast Innovation”) filed a lawsuit against us, EchoStar, DirecTV, Thomson Consumer
Electronics and others in United States District Court in Denver, Colorado. The suit alleges infringement of United States Patent Nos.
6,076,094 (the ‘094 patent) and 4,992,066 (the ‘066 patent). The ‘094 patent relates to certain methods and devices for transmitting and
receiving data along with specific formatting information for the data. The ‘066 patent relates to certain methods and devices for
providing the scrambling circuitry for a pay television system on removable cards. Subsequently, DirecTV and Thomson settled with
Broadcast Innovation leaving us as the only defendant.

During 2004, the judge issued an order finding the ‘066 patent invalid. Also in 2004, the Court found the ‘094 patent invalid in a
parallel case filed by Broadcast Innovation against Charter and Comcast. In 2005, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit overturned the ‘094 patent finding of invalidity and remanded the Charter case back to the District Court. During June 2006,
Charter filed a reexamination request with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The Court has stayed the Charter case
pending reexamination, and our case has been stayed pending resolution of the Charter case.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the patents, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Channel Bundling Class Action

On September 21, 2007, a purported class of cable and satellite subscribers filed an antitrust action against us in the United States
District Court for the Central District of California. The suit also names as defendants DirecTV, Comcast, Cablevision, Cox, Charter,
Time Warner, Inc., Time Warner Cable, NBC Universal, Viacom, Fox Entertainment Group, and Walt Disney Company. The suit
alleges, among other things, that the defendants engaged in a conspiracy to provide customers with access only to bundled channel
offerings as opposed to giving customers the ability to purchase channels on an “a la carte” basis. We filed a motion to dismiss, which
the Court denied in July 2008. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of
the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Enron Commercial Paper Investment

During October 2001, we received approximately $40 million from the sale of Enron commercial paper to a third party broker. That
commercial paper was ultimately purchased by Enron. During November 2003, an action was commenced in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York against approximately 100 defendants, including us, who invested in Enron’s
commercial paper. The complaint alleges that Enron’s October 2001 purchase of its commercial paper was a fraudulent conveyance
and voidable preference under bankruptcy laws. We dispute these allegations. We typically invest in commercial paper and notes that
are rated in one of the four highest rating categories by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. At the time of
our
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investment in Enron commercial paper, it was considered to be high quality and low risk. On April 7, 2009, we settled the litigation for
an immaterial amount.

ESPN

On January 30, 2008, we filed a lawsuit against ESPN, Inc., ESPN Classic, Inc., ABC Cable Networks Group, Soapnet L.L.C., and
International Family Entertainment (collectively “ESPN”) for breach of contract in New York State Supreme Court. Our complaint
alleges that ESPN failed to provide us with certain high-definition feeds of the Disney Channel, ESPN News, Toon, and ABC Family.
ESPN asserted a counterclaim, and then filed a motion for summary judgment, alleging that we owed approximately $35 million under
the applicable affiliation agreements. We brought a motion to amend our complaint to assert that ESPN was in breach of certain most-
favored-nation provisions under the affiliation agreements. On April 15, 2009, the trial court granted our motion to amend the
complaint, and granted, in part, ESPN’s motion on the counterclaim, finding that we are liable for some of the amount alleged to be
owing but that the actual amount owing is disputed and will have to be determined at a later date. We will appeal the partial grant of
ESPN’s motion. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or
determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Finisar Corporation

Finisar Corporation (“Finisar”) obtained a $100 million verdict in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas
against DirecTV for patent infringement. Finisar alleged that DirecTV’s electronic program guide and other elements of its system
infringe United States Patent No. 5,404,505 (the ‘505 patent).

In July 2006, we and EchoStar, together with NagraStar LLC, filed a Complaint for Declaratory Judgment in the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware against Finisar that asks the Court to declare that we do not infringe, and have not infringed, any
valid claim of the ‘505 patent. During April 2008, the Federal Circuit reversed the judgment against DirecTV and ordered a new trial.
Our case is stayed until the DirecTV action is resolved.

We intend to vigorously prosecute this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe this patent, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to modify our system
architecture. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or
damages.

Global Communications

On April 19, 2007, Global Communications, Inc. (“Global”) filed a patent infringement action against us and EchoStar in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. The suit alleges infringement of United States Patent No. 6,947,702 (the ‘702
patent), which relates to satellite reception. On October 24, 2007, the United States Patent and Trademark Office granted our request
for reexamination of the ‘702 patent and issued an Office Action finding that all of the claims of the ‘702 patent were invalid. At the
request of the parties, the District Court stayed the litigation until the reexamination proceeding is concluded and/or other Global patent
applications issue.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe the ‘702 patent, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.
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Guardian Media

On December 22, 2008, Guardian Media Technologies LTD (“Guardian”) filed suit against us, EchoStar, EchoStar Technologies
L.L.C., DirecTV and several other defendants in the United States District Court for the Central District of California alleging
infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,930,158 and 4,930,160. Both patents are expired and relate to certain parental lock
features.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the
outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Katz Communications

On June 21, 2007, Ronald A. Katz Technology Licensing, L.P. (“Katz”) filed a patent infringement action against us in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California. The suit alleges infringement of 19 patents owned by Katz. The patents
relate to interactive voice response, or IVR, technology.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Multimedia Patent Trust

On February 13, 2009, Multimedia Patent Trust (“MPT”) filed suit against us, EchoStar, DirecTV and several other defendants in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of California alleging infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,958,226,
5,227,878, 5,136,377, 5,500,678 and 5,563,593, which relate to video encoding, decoding and compression technology.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or
determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Personalized Media Communications

In February 2008, Personalized Media Communications, Inc. filed suit against us, EchoStar and Motorola, Inc. in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Texas alleging infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,694,490, 5,109,414, 4,965,825,
5,233,654, 5,335,277, and 5,887,243, which relate to satellite signal processing.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.
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Retailer Class Actions

During 2000, lawsuits were filed by retailers in Colorado state and federal courts attempting to certify nationwide classes on behalf of
certain of our retailers. The plaintiffs are requesting the Courts declare certain provisions of, and changes to, alleged agreements
between us and the retailers invalid and unenforceable, and to award damages for lost incentives and payments, charge backs, and other
compensation. We have asserted a variety of counterclaims. The federal court action has been stayed during the pendency of the state
court action. We filed a motion for summary judgment on all counts and against all plaintiffs. The plaintiffs filed a motion for
additional time to conduct discovery to enable them to respond to our motion. The state court granted limited discovery which ended
during 2004. The plaintiffs claimed we did not provide adequate disclosure during the discovery process. The state court agreed, and
denied our motion for summary judgment as a result. In April 2008, the state court granted plaintiff’s class certification motion and in
January 2009, the state court entered an order excluding certain evidence that we can present at trial based on the prior discovery
issues. The state court also denied plaintiffs’ request to dismiss our counterclaims. The final impact of the court’s evidentiary ruling
cannot be fully assessed at this time. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the
outcome of the lawsuit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Technology Development Licensing

On January 22, 2009, Technology Development and Licensing LLC (“TechDev”) filed suit against us and EchoStar in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois alleging infringement of United States Patent No. 35, 952, which relates to
certain favorite channel features.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Tivo Inc.

On January 31, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirmed in part and reversed in part the April 2006 jury verdict
concluding that certain of our digital video recorders, or DVRs, infringed a patent held by Tivo. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 5”), we previously recorded a total reserve of
$132 million on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the April 2006 jury verdict, supplemental damages and pre-
judgment interest awarded by the Texas court. This amount also includes the estimated cost of any software infringement prior to
implementation of our alternative technology, discussed below, plus interest subsequent to the jury verdict. In its January 2008
decision, the Federal Circuit affirmed the jury’s verdict of infringement on Tivo’s “software claims,” upheld the award of damages
from the District Court, and ordered that the stay of the District Court’s injunction against us, which was issued pending appeal, be
dissolved when the appeal becomes final. The Federal Circuit, however, found that we did not literally infringe Tivo’s “hardware
claims,” and remanded such claims back to the District Court for further proceedings. On October 6, 2008, the Supreme Court denied
our petition for certiorari. As a result, approximately $105 million of the total $132 million reserve was released from an escrow
account to Tivo.

We have developed and deployed “next-generation” DVR software to our customers’ DVRs. This improved software is fully
operational and has been automatically downloaded to current customers (our “alternative technology”). We have written legal
opinions from outside counsel that conclude that our alternative technology does not infringe, literally or under the doctrine of
equivalents, either the hardware or software claims of Tivo’s patent. Tivo has filed a motion for contempt alleging that we are in
violation of the Court’s injunction. We have vigorously opposed the motion arguing that the Court’s injunction does not apply to DVRs
that have received our
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alternative technology, that our alternative technology does not infringe Tivo’s patent, and that we are in compliance with the
injunction. An evidentiary hearing on Tivo’s motion for contempt was held mid-February 2009, the parties’ have submitted their post-
trial briefs and we are now awaiting a ruling from the Court. In January 2009, the Patent and Trademark Office (“PTO”) granted our
Petition for Re-Examination of the software claims of Tivo’s ‘389 patent, which are the subject of Tivo’s current motion for contempt.
The PTO found that there is a ‘substantial new question’ of patentability as to the software claims in light of prior patents that appear to
render Tivo’s ‘389 patent invalid as obvious.

If we are unsuccessful in defending against Tivo’s motion for contempt or any subsequent claim that our alternative technology
infringes Tivo’s patent, we could be prohibited from distributing DVRs, or could be required to modify or eliminate certain user-
friendly DVR features that we currently offer to consumers. In that event we would be at a significant disadvantage to our competitors
who could offer this functionality and, while we would attempt to provide that functionality through other manufacturers, the adverse
affect on our business could be material. We could also have to pay substantial additional damages.

Voom

On May 28, 2008, Voom HD Holdings (“Voom”) filed a complaint against us in New York Supreme Court. The suit alleges breach of
contract arising from our termination of the affiliation agreement we had with Voom for the carriage of certain Voom HD channels on
the DISH Network satellite television service. In January 2008, Voom sought a preliminary injunction to prevent us from terminating
the agreement. The Court denied Voom’s motion, finding, among other things, that Voom was not likely to prevail on the merits of its
case. Voom is claiming over $1.0 billion in damages. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of
certainty the outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Other

In addition to the above actions, we are subject to various other legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of
business, including among other things, disputes with programmers regarding fees. In our opinion, the amount of ultimate liability with
respect to any of these actions is unlikely to materially affect our financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

11. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense consists of the following:
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Equipment leased to customers  $192,568  $212,279 
Satellites   19,882   26,451 
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and other   9,297   28,237 
Identifiable intangible assets subject to amortization   291   4,331 
Buildings and improvements   1,255   1,070 
  

 
  

 
 

Total depreciation and amortization  $223,293  $272,368 
  

 

  

 

 

Cost of sales and operating expense categories included in our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) do not include depreciation expense related to satellites or equipment leased to customers.
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12. Related Party Transactions with EchoStar

Following the Spin-off, EchoStar has operated as a separate public company and we have no continued ownership interest in EchoStar.
However, a substantial majority of the voting power of the shares of both companies is owned beneficially by our Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer, Charles W. Ergen.

EchoStar is our primary supplier of set-top boxes and digital broadcast operations and our key supplier of transponder leasing.
Generally the prices charged for products and services provided under the agreements entered into in connection with the Spin-off are
based on pricing equal to EchoStar’s cost plus a fixed margin (unless noted differently below), which will vary depending on the nature
of the products and services provided. Prior to the Spin-off, these products were provided and services were performed internally at
cost.

In connection with the Spin-off, we and EchoStar also entered into certain transitional services agreements pursuant to which we obtain
certain services and rights from EchoStar, EchoStar obtains certain services and rights from us, and we and EchoStar have indemnified
each other against certain liabilities arising from our respective businesses. Subsequent to the Spin-off, we also entered into certain
agreements with EchoStar and may enter into additional agreements with EchoStar in the future. The following is a summary of the
terms of the principal agreements that we have entered into with EchoStar that may have an impact on our results of operations.

“Equipment sales — EchoStar”

Remanufactured Receiver Agreement. We entered into a remanufactured receiver agreement with EchoStar under which EchoStar has
the right to purchase remanufactured receivers and accessories from us for a two-year period ending, January 1, 2010. Under the
remanufactured receiver agreement, EchoStar has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase remanufactured receivers and
accessories from us at cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the nature of the equipment purchased. EchoStar may
terminate the remanufactured receiver agreement for any reason upon sixty days written notice to us. We may also terminate this
agreement if certain entities acquire us.

“Transitional services and other revenue — EchoStar”

Transition Services Agreement. We entered into a transition services agreement with EchoStar pursuant to which EchoStar has the
right, but not the obligation, to receive the following services from us: finance, information technology, benefits administration, travel
and event coordination, human resources, human resources development (training), program management, internal audit and corporate
quality, legal, accounting and tax, and other support services. The fees for the services provided under the transition services agreement
are cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the nature of the services provided. The transition services agreement has a
term of two years ending on January 1, 2010. EchoStar may terminate the transition services agreement with respect to a particular
service for any reason upon thirty days prior written notice.

Management Services Agreement. We entered into a management services agreement with EchoStar pursuant to which we make certain
of our officers available to provide services (which are primarily legal and accounting services) to EchoStar. Specifically, Bernard L.
Han, R. Stanton Dodge and Paul W. Orban remain employed by us, but also serve as EchoStar’s Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, Executive Vice President and General Counsel, and Senior Vice President and Controller, respectively. EchoStar
makes payments to us based upon an allocable portion of the personnel costs and expenses incurred by us with respect to such officers
(taking into account wages and fringe benefits). These allocations are based upon the estimated percentages of time to be spent by our
executive officers performing services for EchoStar under the management services agreement. EchoStar also reimburses us for direct
out-of-pocket costs incurred by us for management services provided to EchoStar. We and EchoStar evaluate all charges for
reasonableness at least annually and make any adjustments to these charges as we and EchoStar mutually agree upon.

The management services agreement is for a one year period commencing on January 1, 2008, and will be renewed automatically for
successive one-year periods thereafter, unless terminated earlier (i) by EchoStar at any time upon
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at least 30 days’ prior written notice, (ii) by us at the end of any renewal term, upon at least 180 days’ prior notice; or (iii) by us upon
written notice to EchoStar, following certain changes in control.

Real Estate Lease Agreement. During 2008, we subleased space at 185 Varick Street, New York, New York to EchoStar for a period of
approximately seven years. The rent on a per square foot basis for this sublease was comparable to per square foot rental rates of
similar commercial property in the same geographic area at the time of the sublease, and EchoStar is responsible for its portion of the
taxes, insurance, utilities and maintenance of the premises.

Packout Services Agreement. We entered into a packout services agreement with EchoStar, whereby EchoStar has the right, but not the
obligation, to engage us to package and ship satellite receivers to customers that are not associated with us. The fees charged by us for
the services provided under the packout services agreement are equal to our cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the
nature of the products and services provided. The original one year term of the packout services agreement was extended for an
additional one year term and expires on December 31, 2009. EchoStar may terminate this agreement for any reason upon sixty days’
prior written notice to us. In the event of an early termination of this agreement, EchoStar will be entitled to a refund of any unearned
fees paid to us for the services.

“Satellite and transmission expenses — EchoStar”

Broadcast Agreement. We entered into a broadcast agreement pursuant to which EchoStar provides us broadcast services, including
teleport services such as transmission and downlinking, channel origination, and channel management services for a two year period
ending on January 1, 2010. We have the right, but not the obligation, to extend the broadcast agreement annually for up to two years.
We have exercised our right to renew this agreement for an additional year. We may terminate channel origination services and channel
management services for any reason and without any liability upon sixty days written notice to EchoStar. If we terminate teleport
services for a reason other than EchoStar’s breach, we must pay EchoStar the aggregate amount of the remainder of the expected cost
of providing the teleport services.

Satellite Capacity Agreements. We entered into satellite capacity agreements pursuant to which we lease satellite capacity on satellites
owned or leased by EchoStar. The fees for the services to be provided under the satellite capacity agreements are based on spot market
prices for similar satellite capacity and depend, among other things, upon the orbital location of the satellite and the frequency on
which the satellite provides services. Generally, each satellite capacity agreement will terminate upon the earlier of: (i) the end of life
or replacement of the satellite; (ii) the date the satellite fails; (iii) the date that the transponder on which service is being provided under
the agreement fails; or (iv) January 1, 2010.

Nimiq 5 Lease Agreement. During March 2008, EchoStar entered into a fifteen-year satellite service agreement with Bell TV, to receive
service on 16 DBS transponders on the Nimiq 5 satellite at the 72.7 degree orbital location. The Nimiq 5 satellite is expected to be
launched in the second half of 2009. Bell TV currently has the right to receive service on the entire communications capacity of the
Nimiq 5 satellite pursuant to an agreement with Telesat Canada. During March 2008, EchoStar also entered into a transponder service
agreement (“Nimiq 5 Transponder Agreement”) with us, pursuant to which we will receive service from EchoStar on all of the DBS
transponders covered by EchoStar’s satellite service agreement with Bell TV. We have guaranteed certain obligations of EchoStar
under the Nimiq 5 Transponder Agreement.

Under the terms of the Nimiq 5 Transponder Agreement, we will make certain monthly payments to EchoStar commencing when the
Nimiq 5 satellite is placed into service and continuing through the service term. Unless earlier terminated under the terms and
conditions of the Nimiq 5 Transponder Agreement, the service term will expire ten years following the date it is placed in service.
Upon expiration of the initial term we have the option to renew the Nimiq 5 Transponder Agreement on a year-to-year basis through
the end-of-life of the Nimiq 5 satellite. Upon a launch failure, in-orbit failure or end-of-life of the Nimiq 5 satellite, and in certain other
circumstances, we have certain rights to receive service from EchoStar on a replacement satellite.
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QuetzSat-1 Lease Agreement. During November 2008, EchoStar entered into a ten-year satellite service agreement with SES, which
provides, among other things, for the provision by SES to EchoStar of service on 32 DBS transponders on the QuetzSat-1 satellite
expected to be placed in service at the 77 degree orbital location. During November 2008, EchoStar also entered into a transponder
service agreement (“QuetzSat-1 Transponder Agreement”) with us pursuant to which we will receive service from EchoStar on 24 of
the DBS transponders.

Under the terms of the QuetzSat-1 Transponder Agreement, we will make certain monthly payments to EchoStar commencing when
the QuetzSat-1 satellite is placed into service and continuing through the service term. Unless earlier terminated under the terms and
conditions of the QuetzSat-1 Transponder Agreement, the service term will expire ten years following the actual service
commencement date. Upon expiration of the initial term, we have the option to renew the QuetzSat-1 Transponder Agreement on a
year-to-year basis through the end-of-life of the QuetzSat-1 satellite. Upon a launch failure, in-orbit failure or end-of-life of the
QuetzSat-1 satellite, and in certain other circumstances, we have certain rights to receive service from EchoStar on a replacement
satellite.

TT&C Agreement. We entered into a telemetry, tracking and control (“TT&C”) agreement pursuant to which we receive TT&C
services from EchoStar for a two year period ending on January 1, 2010. DISH Network has the right, but not the obligation, to extend
the agreement annually for up to two years. We have exercised our right to renew this agreement for an additional year. The fees for the
services provided under the TT&C agreement are cost plus a fixed margin. We may terminate the TT&C agreement for any reason
upon sixty days prior written notice.

Satellite Procurement Agreement. We entered into a satellite procurement agreement pursuant to which we have the right, but not the
obligation, to engage EchoStar to manage the process of procuring new satellite capacity for DISH Network. The satellite procurement
agreement has a two year term expiring on January 1, 2010. The fees for the services to be provided under the satellite procurement
agreement are cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the nature of the services provided. We may terminate the satellite
procurement agreement for any reason upon sixty days prior written notice.

“Cost of sales — subscriber promotion subsidies — EchoStar”

Receiver Agreement. EchoStar is currently our sole supplier of set-top box receivers. During the three months ended March 31, 2009
and 2008, we purchased set-top box and other equipment from EchoStar totaling $320 million and $372 million, respectively. Of these
amounts, $24 million and $31 million are included in “Cost of sales — subscriber promotion subsidies — EchoStar” on our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The remaining amount is included in “Inventories, net” and “Property and equipment, net” on our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Under our receiver agreement with EchoStar, we have the right but not the obligation to purchase digital set-top boxes and related
accessories, and other equipment from EchoStar for a two year period ending on January 1, 2010. We also have the right, but not the
obligation, to extend the receiver agreement annually for up to two years. We have exercised our right to renew this agreement for an
additional year. The receiver agreement allows us to purchase receivers and accessories from EchoStar at cost plus a fixed margin,
which varies depending on the nature of the equipment purchased. Additionally, EchoStar provides us with standard manufacturer
warranties for the goods sold under the receiver agreement. We may terminate the receiver agreement for any reason upon sixty days
written notice to EchoStar. EchoStar may terminate the receiver agreement if certain entities were to acquire us. The receiver
agreement also includes an indemnification provision, whereby the parties indemnify each other for certain intellectual property
matters.

“General and administrative — EchoStar”

Product Support Agreement. We entered into a product support agreement pursuant to which we have the right, but not the obligation to
receive product support from EchoStar (including certain engineering and technical support services) for all digital set-top boxes and
related accessories that EchoStar has previously sold and in the future sells to us. The fees for the services provided under the product
support agreement are cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the nature of the services provided. The term of the product
support agreement is the economic life of such receivers and related accessories, unless terminated earlier. We may terminate the
product support
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agreement for any reason upon sixty days prior written notice. In the event of an early termination of this agreement, we are entitled to
a refund of any unearned fees paid to EchoStar for the services.

Real Estate Lease Agreements. We entered into certain lease agreements with EchoStar. The rent on a per square foot basis for each of
the leases is comparable to per square foot rental rates of similar commercial property in the same geographic area, and EchoStar is
responsible for its portion of the taxes, insurance, utilities and maintenance of the premises. The term of each of the leases is set forth
below:

Inverness Lease Agreement. The lease for certain space at 90 Inverness Circle East in Englewood, Colorado, is for a period of two
years ending on January 1, 2010.

Meridian Lease Agreement. The lease for all of 9601 S. Meridian Blvd. in Englewood, Colorado, is for a period of two years ending
on January 1, 2010 with annual renewal options for up to three additional years.

Santa Fe Lease Agreement. The lease for all of 5701 S. Santa Fe Dr. in Littleton, Colorado, is for a period of two years ending on
January 1, 2010 with annual renewal options for up to three additional years.

Gilbert Lease Agreement. The lease for certain space at 801 N. DISH Dr. in Gilbert, Arizona, is for a period of two years ending on
January 1, 2010 with annual renewal options for up to three additional years.

EDN Sublease Agreement. The sublease for certain space at 211 Perimeter Center in Atlanta, Georgia, is for a period of three years,
ending on April 30, 2011.

Services Agreement. We entered into a services agreement pursuant to which we have the right, but not the obligation, to receive
logistics, procurement and quality assurance services from EchoStar. The fees for the services provided under this services agreement
are cost plus a fixed margin, which varies depending on the nature of the services provided. This agreement has a term of two years
ending on January 1, 2010. We may terminate the services agreement with respect to a particular service for any reason upon sixty days
prior written notice.

Other Agreements — EchoStar

Tax Sharing Agreement. We entered into a tax sharing agreement with EchoStar which governs our respective rights, responsibilities
and obligations after the Spin-off with respect to taxes for the periods ending on or before the Spin-off. Generally, all pre-Spin-off
taxes, including any taxes that are incurred as a result of restructuring activities undertaken to implement the Spin-off, will be borne by
us, and we will indemnify EchoStar for such taxes. However, we will not be liable for and will not indemnify EchoStar for any taxes
that are incurred as a result of the Spin-off or certain related transactions failing to qualify as tax-free distributions pursuant to any
provision of Section 355 or Section 361 of the Code because of (i) a direct or indirect acquisition of any of EchoStar’s stock, stock
options or assets, (ii) any action that EchoStar takes or fails to take or (iii) any action that EchoStar takes that is inconsistent with the
information and representations furnished to the IRS in connection with the request for the private letter ruling, or to counsel in
connection with any opinion being delivered by counsel with respect to the Spin-off or certain related transactions. In such case,
EchoStar will be solely liable for, and will indemnify us for, any resulting taxes, as well as any losses, claims and expenses. The tax
sharing agreement terminates after the later of the full period of all applicable statutes of limitations including extensions or once all
rights and obligations are fully effectuated or performed.
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You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with the condensed
consolidated financial statements and notes to the financial statements included elsewhere in this quarterly report. This management’s
discussion and analysis is intended to help provide an understanding of our financial condition, changes in financial condition and
results of our operations and contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements
are not historical facts, but rather are based on current expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about our industry,
business and future financial results. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking
statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008, under the caption “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview

DISH Network’s subscriber base decreased by 94,000 subscribers during the three months ended March 31, 2009. Factors common to
the pay-TV industry, as well as factors that were specific to DISH Network, each continued to contribute to this decline.

The current overall economic environment has negatively impacted many industries including ours. In addition, the overall growth rate
in the pay-TV industry has slowed in recent years as the penetration of pay-TV households approaches 90%. Within this maturing
industry, competition has intensified with the rapid growth of fiber-based pay-TV services offered by telecommunications companies.
Furthermore, new internet protocol television (“IPTV”) products/services have begun to impact the pay-TV industry and such
products/services will become more viable competition over time as their quality improves. In spite of these factors that have impacted
the entire pay-TV industry, certain of our competitors have been able to achieve relatively strong results in the current environment.

While economic factors have impacted the entire pay-TV industry, our relative performance has been mostly driven by issues specific
to DISH Network. In recent years, DISH Network’s position as the low cost provider in the pay-TV industry has been eroded by
increasingly aggressive promotional pricing used by our competitors to attract new subscribers and similarly aggressive promotions
and tactics used to retain existing subscribers. Some competitors have been especially aggressive and effective in marketing the value
and quality of their service. Furthermore, our subscriber growth has been adversely affected by signal theft and other forms of fraud
and by operational inefficiencies at DISH Network. We have not always met our own standards for performing high quality
installations, effectively resolving customer issues when they arise, answering customer calls in an acceptable timeframe, effectively
communicating with our subscriber base, reducing calls driven by the complexity of our business, improving the reliability of certain
systems and subscriber equipment, and aligning the interests of certain third party retailers and installers to provide high quality
service.

Our distribution relationship with AT&T was a substantial contributor to our gross and net subscriber additions over the past several
years, accounting for approximately 17% of our gross subscriber additions for the year ended December 31, 2008. This distribution
relationship ended on January 31, 2009. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, AT&T contributed 5% of our gross subscriber
additions. AT&T has entered into a new distribution relationship with DirecTV. It may be difficult for us to develop alternative
distribution channels that will fully replace AT&T and if we are unable to do so, our gross and net subscriber additions may be further
impacted, our subscriber churn may increase, and our results of operations may be adversely affected. In addition, approximately one
million of our current subscribers were acquired through our distribution relationship with AT&T and subscribers acquired through this
channel have historically churned at a higher rate than our overall subscriber base. Although AT&T is not permitted to target these
subscribers for transition to another pay-TV service and we and AT&T are required to maintain bundled billing and cooperative
customer service for these subscribers, these subscribers may still churn at higher than historical rates following termination of the
AT&T distribution relationship.

We have been investing more in advanced technology equipment as part of our subscriber acquisition and retention efforts. Recent
initiatives to transmit certain programming only in MPEG-4 and to activate certain new subscribers only with MPEG-4 receivers have
accelerated our deployment of MPEG-4 receivers. To meet current demand, we have increased the rate at which we upgrade existing
subscribers to HD and DVR receivers. While these efforts
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may increase our subscriber acquisition and retention costs, we believe that they will help reduce subscriber churn and costs over the
long run.

We have also been changing equipment for certain subscribers to free up satellite bandwidth in support of HD and other initiatives. We
expect to implement these initiatives at least through the first half of 2009. We believe that the benefit from the increase in available
satellite bandwidth outweighs the short-term cost of these equipment changes.

To combat signal theft and improve the security of our broadcast system, we are in the process of replacing our security access devices
and expect this initiative to last through the first half of 2009. To combat other forms of fraud, we have taken a wide range of actions
including terminating retailers that we believe were in violation of DISH Network’s business rules. While these initiatives may
inconvenience our subscribers and disrupt our distribution channels in the short-term, we believe that the long-term benefits will
outweigh the costs.

To address our operational inefficiency, we continue to make significant investments in staffing, training, information systems, and
other initiatives, primarily in our call center and in-home service businesses. These investments are intended to help combat
inefficiencies introduced by the increasing complexity of our business, improve customer satisfaction, reduce churn, increase
productivity, and allow us to scale better over the long run. We cannot, however, be certain that our increased spending will ultimately
be successful in yielding such returns. In the meantime, we may continue to incur higher costs as a result of both our operational
inefficiencies and increased spending.

Over the long run, we will use Slingbox “placeshifting” technology and other technologies to maintain and enhance our
competitiveness. We may also partner with or acquire companies whose lines of business are complementary to ours should attractive
opportunities arise.

The adoption of the above measures has contributed to higher expenses and lower margins. While we believe that the increased costs
will be outweighed by longer-term benefits, there can be no assurance when or if we will realize these benefits at all. Programming
costs represent a large percentage of our “Subscriber-related expenses.” As a result, our margins may face further downward pressure
from price escalations in current contracts and the renewal of long-term programming contracts on less favorable pricing terms.

Liquidity Drivers

Like many companies, we make general investments in property such as satellites, information technology, and facilities that support
our overall business. As a subscriber-based company, however, we also make customer-specific investments to acquire new subscribers
and retain existing subscribers. While the general investments may be deferred without impacting the business in the short-term, the
customer-specific investments are less discretionary. Our overall objective is to generate sufficient cash flow over the life of each
subscriber in order to provide an adequate return against the upfront investment. Once the upfront investment has been made for each
subscriber, the subsequent cash flow is generally positive.

From a company standpoint, there are a number of factors that impact our future cash flow compared to the cash flow we generate at a
given point in time. The first factor is how successful we are at retaining our current subscribers. As we lose subscribers from our
existing base, the positive cash flow from that base is correspondingly reduced. The second factor is how successful we are at
maintaining our subscriber-related margins. To the extent our “Subscriber-related expenses” grow faster than our “Subscriber-related
revenue,” the amount of cash flow that is generated per existing subscriber is reduced. The third factor is the rate at which we acquire
new subscribers. The faster we acquire new subscribers, the more our positive ongoing cash flow from existing subscribers is offset by
the negative upfront cash flow associated with new subscribers. Finally, our future cash flow is impacted by the rate at which we make
general investments and any cash flow from financing activities.
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As our business has slowed due to the external and internal factors previously discussed, the biggest impact to our cash flow has been a
reduction in customer-specific investments to acquire new subscribers. While fewer subscribers might translate into lower ongoing
cash flow in the long-term, cash flow is actually aided in the short-term by the reduction in customer-specific investment spending. As
a result, a slow down in our business due to external or internal factors does not introduce the same level of short-term liquidity risk as
it might in other industries.

Availability of Credit and Effect on Liquidity

While the ability to raise capital has generally existed for DISH Network even during the recent market turmoil, the cost of such capital
has not been as attractive as in prior periods. Because of the cash flow situation of our company and the absence of any material debt
payments over the next two years, the higher cost of capital will not impact our current operations. However, we might be less likely
than we would otherwise be to pursue initiatives which could increase shareholder value over the long run, such as making strategic
investments, prepaying debt, or buying back our own stock. Alternatively, if we decided to still pursue such initiatives, the cost of
doing so would be greater. Currently, we have no existing lines of credit, nor have we historically.

Future Liquidity

The most material trends that we experienced in 2008, being the net loss of subscribers and the reduction in subscriber-related margins,
have continued into the first quarter of 2009. We lost 102,000 net subscribers in 2008 and an additional 94,000 net subscribers in the
first quarter of 2009. Our AT&T agreement expired on February 1, 2009 but we continued to activate new subscribers that had ordered
DISH Network service through AT&T prior to February 1st through the end of February. Our “Subscriber-related expenses” as a
percentage of “Subscriber-related revenue” grew from 51.4% to 52.2% in 2008 and reached 54.1% in the first quarter of 2009. Our
“Subscriber-related expenses” continued to be negatively impacted by initiatives to retain subscribers, free up transponder capacity, and
improve customer service. Uncertainties about these trends may impact our cash flow and results of operations but, as discussed above,
are unlikely to impact current operations.

The Spin-off

On January 1, 2008, we completed the separation of the assets and businesses we historically owned and operated into two companies
(the “Spin-off”):

 •  DISH Network Corporation — which retained its DISH Network® subscription television business, and
 

 •  EchoStar Corporation (“EchoStar”) — which sells equipment, including set-top boxes and related components, to DISH
Network and international customers, and provides digital broadcast operations and satellite services to DISH Network and
other customers.

DISH Network and EchoStar now operate as separate publicly traded companies, and neither entity has any ownership interest in the
other. However, a substantial majority of the voting power of both companies is owned beneficially by Charles W. Ergen, our
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. In connection with the Spin-off, DISH Network entered into certain agreements with
EchoStar to define responsibility for obligations relating to, among other things, set-top box sales, transition services, taxes, employees
and intellectual property, which impact several of our key operating metrics. Subsequent to the Spin-off, we have entered into certain
other agreements with EchoStar and may enter into additional agreements with EchoStar in the future.
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EXPLANATION OF KEY METRICS AND OTHER ITEMS

Subscriber-related revenue. “Subscriber-related revenue” consists principally of revenue from basic, movie, local, pay-per-view,
Latino and international subscription television services, equipment rental fees and other hardware related fees, including fees for
DVRs and additional outlet fees from subscribers with multiple receivers, advertising services, fees earned from our DishHOME
Protection Plan, equipment upgrade fees, HD programming and other subscriber revenue. Certain of the amounts included in
“Subscriber-related revenue” are not recurring on a monthly basis.

Equipment sales and other revenue. “Equipment sales and other revenue” principally includes the unsubsidized sales of DBS
accessories to retailers and other third-party distributors of our equipment domestically and to DISH Network subscribers.

Equipment sales, transitional services and other revenue — EchoStar. “Equipment sales, transitional services and other revenue —
EchoStar” includes revenue related to equipment sales, and transitional services and other agreements with EchoStar associated with
the Spin-off.

Subscriber-related expenses. “Subscriber-related expenses” principally include programming expenses, costs incurred in connection
with our in-home service and call center operations, billing costs, refurbishment and repair costs related to receiver systems, subscriber
retention and other variable subscriber expenses.

Satellite and transmission expenses — EchoStar. “Satellite and transmission expenses — EchoStar” includes the cost of digital
broadcast operations provided to us by EchoStar, including satellite uplinking/downlinking, signal processing, conditional access
management, telemetry, tracking and control and other professional services. In addition, this category includes the cost of leasing
satellite and transponder capacity on satellites from EchoStar.

Satellite and transmission expenses — other. “Satellite and transmission expenses — other” includes executory costs associated with
capital leases and costs associated with transponder leases and other related services.

Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales. “Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales” principally includes
the cost of unsubsidized sales of DBS accessories to retailers and other distributors of our equipment domestically and to DISH
Network subscribers. In addition, this category includes costs related to equipment sales, transitional services and other agreements
with EchoStar associated with the Spin-off.

Subscriber acquisition costs. In addition to leasing receivers, we generally subsidize installation and all or a portion of the cost of our
receiver systems in order to attract new DISH Network subscribers. Our “Subscriber acquisition costs” include the cost of these
receiver systems sold to retailers and other distributors of our equipment, the cost of these receiver systems sold directly by us to
subscribers, net costs related to our promotional incentives, and costs related to installation and acquisition advertising. We exclude the
value of equipment capitalized under our lease program for new subscribers from “Subscriber acquisition costs.”

SAC. Management believes subscriber acquisition cost measures are commonly used by those evaluating companies in the pay-TV
industry. We are not aware of any uniform standards for calculating the “average subscriber acquisition costs per new subscriber
activation,” or SAC, and we believe presentations of SAC may not be calculated consistently by different companies in the same or
similar businesses. Our SAC is calculated as “Subscriber acquisition costs,” plus the value of equipment capitalized under our lease
program for new subscribers, divided by gross subscriber additions. We include all the costs of acquiring subscribers (e.g., subsidized
and capitalized equipment) as our management believes it is a more comprehensive measure of how much we are spending to acquire
subscribers. We also include all new DISH Network subscribers in our calculation, including DISH Network subscribers added with
little or no subscriber acquisition costs.

General and administrative expenses. “General and administrative expenses” consists primarily of employee-related costs associated
with administrative services such as legal, information systems, accounting and finance, including non-cash, stock-based compensation
expense. It also includes outside professional fees (e.g., legal, information systems and accounting services) and other items associated
with facilities and administration.

30

001606

TX 102-001993

JA002731



11/19/2018 e10vq

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1001082/000095013409010200/d67597e10vq.htm 42/60

Table of Contents
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Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized. “Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized” primarily includes interest expense,
prepayment premiums and amortization of debt issuance costs associated with our senior debt and convertible subordinated debt
securities (net of capitalized interest) and interest expense associated with our capital lease obligations.

“Other, net.” The main components of “Other, net” are unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value of non-marketable
strategic investments accounted for at fair value, equity in earnings and losses of our affiliates, gains and losses realized on the sale of
investments, and impairment of marketable and non-marketable investment securities.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”). EBITDA is defined as “Net income (loss)” plus
“Interest expense” net of “Interest income,” “Taxes” and “Depreciation and amortization.” This “non-GAAP measure” is reconciled to
net income (loss) in our discussion of “Results of Operations” below.

DISH Network subscribers. We include customers obtained through direct sales, and third-party retailers and other distribution
relationships in our DISH Network subscriber count. We also provide DISH Network service to hotels, motels and other commercial
accounts. For certain of these commercial accounts, we divide our total revenue for these commercial accounts by an amount
approximately equal to the retail price of our Classic Bronze 100 programming package (but taking into account, periodically, price
changes and other factors), and include the resulting number, which is substantially smaller than the actual number of commercial units
served, in our DISH Network subscriber count. Previously, our end of period DISH Network subscriber count was rounded down to the
nearest five thousand. However, beginning December 31, 2008, we round to the nearest one thousand.

Average monthly revenue per subscriber (“ARPU”). We are not aware of any uniform standards for calculating ARPU and believe
presentations of ARPU may not be calculated consistently by other companies in the same or similar businesses. We calculate average
monthly revenue per subscriber, or ARPU, by dividing average monthly “Subscriber-related revenue” for the period (total “Subscriber-
related revenue” during the period divided by the number of months in the period) by our average DISH Network subscribers for the
period. Average DISH Network subscribers are calculated for the period by adding the average DISH Network subscribers for each
month and dividing by the number of months in the period. Average DISH Network subscribers for each month are calculated by
adding the beginning and ending DISH Network subscribers for the month and dividing by two.

Subscriber churn rate. We are not aware of any uniform standards for calculating subscriber churn rate and believe presentations of
subscriber churn rates may not be calculated consistently by different companies in the same or similar businesses. We calculate
subscriber churn rate for any period by dividing the number of DISH Network subscribers who terminated service during the period by
the average monthly DISH Network subscribers during the period, and further dividing by the number of months in the period. When
calculating subscriber churn, as is the case when calculating ARPU, the number of subscribers in a given month is based on the average
of the beginning-of-month and the end-of-month subscriber counts.

Free cash flow. We define free cash flow as “Net cash flows from operating activities” less “Purchases of property and equipment,” as
shown on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 Compared to the Three Months Ended March 31, 2008.
                 
  For the Three Months     
  Ended March 31,   Variance  
  2009   2008   Amount   %  
Statements of Operations Data  (In thousands)  
Revenue:                 
Subscriber-related revenue  $2,864,939  $2,810,426  $ 54,513   1.9 
Equipment sales and other revenue   32,346   25,052   7,294   29.1 
Equipment sales, transitional services and other revenue —

EchoStar   8,036   8,916   (880)   (9.9)
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total revenue   2,905,321   2,844,394   60,927   2.1 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

                 
Costs and Expenses:                 
Subscriber-related expenses   1,550,078   1,444,641   105,437   7.3 

% of Subscriber-related revenue   54.1%  51.4%        
Satellite and transmission expenses — EchoStar   80,757   78,253   2,504   3.2 

% of Subscriber-related revenue   2.8%  2.8%        
Satellite and transmission expenses — Other   7,021   7,664   (643)   (8.4)

% of Subscriber-related revenue   0.2%  0.3%        
Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales   40,499   31,814   8,685   27.3 
Subscriber acquisition costs   292,203   374,956   (82,753)   (22.1)
General and administrative expenses   136,907   129,530   7,377   5.7 

% of Total revenue   4.7%  4.6%        
Depreciation and amortization   223,293   272,368   (49,075)   (18.0)
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total costs and expenses   2,330,758   2,339,226   (8,468)   (0.4)
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

                 
Operating income (loss)   574,563   505,168   69,395   13.7 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

                 
Other Income (Expense):                 
Interest income   4,784   14,101   (9,317)   (66.1)
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized   (83,937)   (89,812)   5,875   6.5 
Other, net   4,177   (7,028)   11,205   159.4 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total other income (expense)   (74,976)   (82,739)   7,763   9.4 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

                 
Income (loss) before income taxes   499,587   422,429   77,158   18.3 
Income tax (provision) benefit, net   (186,903)   (163,846)   (23,057)   (14.1)

Effective tax rate   37.4%  38.8%        
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Net income (loss)  $ 312,684  $ 258,583  $ 54,101   20.9 
  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

                 
Other Data:                 
DISH Network subscribers, as of period end (in millions)   13.584   13.815   (0.231)   (1.7)
DISH Network subscriber additions, gross (in millions)   0.653   0.730   (0.077)   (10.5)
DISH Network subscriber additions, net (in millions)   (0.094)   0.035   (0.129)  NM
Average monthly subscriber churn rate   1.83%   1.68%   0.15%  8.9 
Average monthly revenue per subscriber (“ARPU”)  $ 70.03  $ 67.93  $ 2.10   3.1 
Average subscriber acquisition cost per subscriber (“SAC”)  $ 659  $ 709  $ (50)   (7.1)
EBITDA  $ 802,033  $ 770,508  $ 31,525   4.1 
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Overview. Revenue totaled $2.905 billion for the three months ended March 31, 2009, an increase of $61 million or 2.1% compared to
the same period in 2008. Net income totaled $313 million, an increase of $54 million or 20.9%.

DISH Network’s net new subscribers continued to decline during the quarter and “Subscriber-related expenses” have continued to
increase, negatively impacting our subscriber-related margins. Factors common to the pay-TV industry, as well as factors that were
specific to DISH Network, each continued to contribute to this decline. Our “Subscriber-related expenses” continued to be negatively
impacted by initiatives to retain subscribers, free up transponder capacity, and improve customer service.

DISH Network subscribers. As of March 31, 2009, we had approximately 13.584 million DISH Network subscribers compared to
approximately 13.815 million subscribers at March 31, 2008, a decrease of 1.7%. DISH Network added approximately 653,000 gross
new subscribers for the three months ended March 31, 2009, compared to approximately 730,000 gross new subscribers during the
same period in 2008.

DISH Network lost approximately 94,000 net new subscribers for the three months ended March 31, 2009, compared to adding
approximately 35,000 net new subscribers during the same period in 2008. This decrease primarily resulted from the decrease in gross
new subscribers discussed above and an increase in our subscriber churn rate. Our percentage monthly subscriber churn for the three
months ended March 31, 2009 was 1.83%, compared to 1.68% for the same period in 2008. Given the increasingly competitive nature
of our industry and the current weaker economic conditions, especially the downturn in the financial and consumer markets, we may
not be able to reduce churn without significantly increasing our spending on customer retention incentives, which would have a
negative effect on our results of operations and free cash flow.

We believe our gross and net subscriber additions as well as our subscriber churn have been negatively impacted by weaker economic
conditions, aggressive promotional and retention offerings by our competition, the loss of our distribution relationship with AT&T
discussed below, the heavy marketing of HD service by our competition, the growth of fiber-based and Internet-based pay TV
providers, signal theft and other forms of fraud, and operational inefficiencies at DISH Network. We have not always met our own
standards for performing high quality installations, effectively resolving customer issues when they arise, answering customer calls in
an acceptable timeframe, effectively communicating with our customer base, reducing calls driven by the complexity of our business,
improving the reliability of certain systems and customer equipment, and aligning the interests of certain third party retailers and
installers to provide high quality service.

Most of these factors have affected both gross new subscriber additions as well as existing subscriber churn. Our future gross
subscriber additions and subscriber churn may continue to be negatively impacted by these factors, which could in turn adversely affect
our revenue growth.

Our distribution relationship with AT&T was a substantial contributor to our gross and net subscriber additions over the past several
years, accounting for approximately 17% of our gross subscriber additions for the year ended December 31, 2008. This distribution
relationship ended on January 31, 2009. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, AT&T contributed 5% of our gross subscriber
additions. AT&T has entered into a new distribution relationship with DirecTV. It may be difficult for us to develop alternative
distribution channels that will fully replace AT&T and if we are unable to do so, our gross and net subscriber additions may be further
impacted, our subscriber churn may increase, and our results of operations may be adversely affected. In addition, approximately one
million of our current subscribers were acquired through our distribution relationship with AT&T and subscribers acquired through this
channel have historically churned at a higher rate than our overall subscriber base. Although AT&T is not permitted to target these
subscribers for transition to another pay-TV service and we and AT&T are required to maintain bundled billing and cooperative
customer service for these subscribers, these subscribers may still churn at higher than historical rates following termination of the
AT&T distribution relationship.

Subscriber-related revenue. DISH Network “Subscriber-related revenue” totaled $2.865 billion for the three months ended March 31,
2009, an increase of $55 million or 1.9% compared to the same period in 2008. This increase was primarily related to the increase in
“ARPU” discussed below.
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ARPU. Monthly average revenue per subscriber was $70.03 during the three months ended March 31, 2009 versus $67.93 during the
same period in 2008. ARPU is driven by a number of factors including, among other things, price increases and penetration rates of our
programming and hardware offerings. The $2.10 or 3.1% increase in ARPU was primarily attributable to price increases in
February 2009 and 2008 on some of our most popular programming packages and changes in the sales mix toward HD programming
packages and advanced hardware offerings. As a result of our current promotions, which provide an incentive for subscribers to select
HD programming packages and advanced hardware offerings, we continue to see increased penetration in our HD programming and
hardware related fees, which include fees for DVRs, rental fees and fees earned from our DishHOME Protection Plan. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in pay-per-view buys and premium movie revenue.

Equipment sales and other revenue. “Equipment sales and other revenue” totaled $32 million during the three months ended
March 31, 2009, an increase of $7 million or 29.1% compared to the same period during 2008. The increase in “Equipment sales and
other revenue” primarily resulted from the sales of digital converter boxes, which is a product line developed to support the digital
conversion scheduled for June 2009.

Subscriber-related expenses. “Subscriber-related expenses” totaled $1.550 billion during the three months ended March 31, 2009, an
increase of $105 million or 7.3% compared to the same period 2008. The increase in “Subscriber-related expenses” was primarily
attributable to higher costs for: (i) customer retention, (ii) call center and in-home service operations, and (iii) programming content,
partially offset by a non-recurring programming expense adjustment of approximately $27 million. The increase in customer retention
expense was primarily driven by more upgrading of existing customers to HD and DVR receivers and the changing of equipment for
certain subscribers to free up satellite bandwidth in support of HD and other initiatives. We expect to implement the satellite bandwidth
initiatives at least through the first half of 2009. We believe that the benefit from the increase in available satellite bandwidth outweighs
the short-term cost of these equipment changes. The increases related to call center and in-home service operations were driven in part
by our investments in staffing, training, information systems, and other initiatives. These investments are intended to help combat
inefficiencies introduced by the increasing complexity of our business and technology, improve customer satisfaction, reduce churn,
increase productivity, and allow us to better scale our business over the long run. We cannot, however, be certain that our increased
spending will ultimately yield these benefits. In the meantime, we may continue to incur higher costs as a result of both our operational
inefficiencies and increased spending. The increase in programming content costs was primarily related to annual price escalation
clauses in certain of our programming contracts and the renewal of certain contracts at higher rates. “Subscriber-related expenses”
represented 54.1% and 51.4% of “Subscriber-related revenue” during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The increase in this expense to revenue ratio primarily resulted from the increase in “Subscriber-related expenses,” partially offset by
an increase in ARPU.

In the normal course of business, we enter into contracts to purchase programming content in which our payment obligations are fully
contingent on the number of subscribers to whom we provide the respective content. Our programming expenses will continue to
increase to the extent we are successful growing our subscriber base. In addition, our “Subscriber-related expenses” may face further
upward pressure from price escalations in current contracts and the renewal of long-term programming contracts on less favorable
pricing terms.

Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales. “Equipment, transitional services and other cost of sales” totaled $40 million
during the three months ended March 31, 2009, an increase of $9 million or 27.3% compared to the same period in 2008. The increase
primarily resulted from costs associated with the sales of digital converter boxes discussed above, and in charges for defective, slow
moving and obsolete inventory.

Subscriber acquisition costs. “Subscriber acquisition costs” totaled $292 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009, a
decrease of $83 million or 22.1% compared to the same period in 2008. This decrease was primarily attributable to the decline in gross
new subscribers and the decrease in SAC discussed below.

SAC. SAC was $659 during the three months ended March 31, 2009 compared to $709 during the same period in 2008, a decrease of
$50, or 7.1%. This decrease was primarily attributable to a shift in the mix of sales from independent retailers to direct sales which
resulted in lower incentives paid. In addition, we spent less in advertising costs per subscriber acquisition during the period. The
increase in deployment of more advanced set-top boxes, such as HD receivers and HD DVRs, was in large part offset by lower
hardware costs for the same receiver model.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount of equipment capitalized under our lease program for new
subscribers totaled $138 million and $143 million, respectively. This decrease in capital expenditures under our lease program for new
subscribers resulted primarily from lower subscriber growth.

Capital expenditures resulting from our equipment lease program for new subscribers have been, and are expected to continue to be,
partially mitigated by, among other things, the redeployment of equipment returned by disconnecting lease program subscribers.
However, to remain competitive we upgrade or replace subscriber equipment periodically as technology changes, and the costs
associated with these upgrades may be substantial. To the extent technological changes render a portion of our existing equipment
obsolete, we would be unable to redeploy all returned equipment and consequently would realize less benefit from the SAC reduction
associated with redeployment of that returned lease equipment.

Our SAC calculation does not reflect any benefit from payments we received in connection with equipment not returned to us from
disconnecting lease subscribers and returned equipment that is made available for sale rather than being redeployed through our lease
program. During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, these amounts totaled $38 million and $31 million, respectively.

Several years ago, we began deploying receivers that utilize 8PSK modulation technology and receivers that utilize MPEG-4
compression technology. These technologies, when fully deployed, will allow more programming channels to be carried over our
existing satellites. A majority of our customers today, however, do not have receivers that use MPEG-4 compression and a smaller but
still significant percentage do not have receivers that use 8PSK modulation. We may choose to invest significant capital to accelerate
the conversion of customers to MPEG-4 and/or 8PSK in order to realize the bandwidth benefits sooner. In addition, given that all of
our HD content is broadcast in MPEG-4, any growth in HD penetration will naturally accelerate our transition to these newer
technologies and may increase our subscriber acquisition and retention costs. All new receivers that we purchase from EchoStar now
have MPEG-4 technology. Although we continue to refurbish and redeploy MPEG-2 receivers, as a result of our HD initiatives and
current promotions, most new customers in certain markets will be required to activate higher priced MPEG-4 technology. This limits
our ability to redeploy MPEG-2 receivers and, to the extent that our new promotion in certain markets are successful, will accelerate
the transition to MPEG-4 technology, resulting in an adverse effect on our SAC.

Our “Subscriber acquisition costs” and “SAC” may materially increase in the future to the extent that we transition to newer
technologies, introduce more aggressive promotions, or provide greater equipment subsidies. See further discussion under “Liquidity
and Capital Resources — Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs.”

General and administrative expenses. “General and administrative expenses” totaled $137 million during the three months ended
March 31, 2009, an increase of $7 million or 5.7% compared to the same period in 2008. This increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in personnel costs and professional fees to support the DISH Network. “General and administrative expenses” represented
4.7% and 4.6% of “Total revenue” during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase in the ratio of
the expenses to “Total revenue” was primarily attributable to the changes in expenses discussed above.

Depreciation and amortization. “Depreciation and amortization” expense totaled $223 million during the three months ended
March 31, 2009, a $49 million or 18.0% decrease compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease in “Depreciation and
amortization” expense was primarily due to the decline in depreciation expense related to set-top boxes used in our lease programs and
the abandonment of a software development project designed to support our IT systems during the three months ended March 31,
2008. The decrease in expense related to set-top boxes resulted from an increase in the number of fully-depreciated set-top boxes still
in service and in the capitalization of new advanced equipment which has a longer estimated useful life.

Interest income. “Interest income” totaled $5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009, a decrease of $9 million
compared to the same period in 2008. This decrease principally resulted from lower cash and marketable investment securities balances
and total percentage returns earned on our cash and marketable investment securities during the first quarter of 2009.
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Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA was $802 million during the three months ended March 31,
2009, an increase of $32 million or 4.1% compared to the same period in 2008. The following table reconciles EBITDA to the
accompanying financial statements.
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
EBITDA  $802,033  $770,508 
Less:         

Interest expense, net   79,153   75,711 
Income tax provision (benefit), net   186,903   163,846 
Depreciation and amortization   223,293   272,368 

  
 
  

 
 

Net income (loss)  $312,684  $258,583 
  

 

  

 

 

EBITDA is not a measure determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP, and
should not be considered a substitute for operating income, net income or any other measure determined in accordance with GAAP.
EBITDA is used as a measurement of operating efficiency and overall financial performance and we believe it to be a helpful measure
for those evaluating companies in the pay-TV industry. Conceptually, EBITDA measures the amount of income generated each period
that could be used to service debt, pay taxes and fund capital expenditures. EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Income tax (provision) benefit, net. Our income tax provision was $187 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009, an
increase of $23 million compared to the same period in 2008. The increase in the provision was primarily related to the increase in
“Income (loss) before income taxes” partially offset by a decrease in the effective state tax rate due to changes in state apportionment
percentages.

Net income (loss). Net income was $313 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009, an increase of $54 million compared
to $259 million for the same period in 2008. The increase was primarily attributable to the changes in revenue and expenses discussed
above.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Investment Securities

We consider all liquid investments purchased within 90 days of their maturity to be cash equivalents. See “Item 3. — Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for further discussion regarding our marketable investment securities. As of March 31,
2009, our cash, cash equivalents and current marketable investment securities totaled $1.169 billion compared to $559 million as of
December 31, 2008, an increase of $610 million. This increase in cash, cash equivalents and current marketable investment securities
was primarily related to an increase in cash generated from operations, partially offset by capital expenditures, the repurchase of our
common stock and the repayment of debt.

The following discussion highlights our cash flow activities during the three months ended March 31, 2009.

Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we reported net cash flows from operating activities of $901 million. This amount
includes net income adjusted for depreciation and amortization of $536 million and timing differences between book expense and cash
payments related to income taxes of $179 million, interest expense of $26 million and other differences related to operating expenses.

Cash flows from investing activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we reported net cash outflows from investing activities of $713 million primarily related
to net purchases of marketable investment securities of $461 million and for capital expenditures totaling $252 million, of which
$239 million is associated with our subscriber acquisition and retention lease programs. The remaining $13 million includes $4 million
of non-discretionary spending for satellite capital expenditures and $9 million of other corporate capital expenditures.

Cash flows from financing activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we reported net cash outflows from financing activities of $23 million resulting from
common stock repurchases of $19 million and repayments of debt of $5 million.

Free Cash Flow

We define free cash flow as “Net cash flows from operating activities” less “Purchases of property and equipment,” as shown on our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We believe free cash flow is an important liquidity metric because it measures,
during a given period, the amount of cash generated that is available to repay debt obligations, make investments, fund acquisitions and
for certain other activities. Free cash flow is not a measure determined in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered a
substitute for “Operating income,” “Net income,” “Net cash flows from operating activities” or any other measure determined in
accordance with GAAP. Since free cash flow includes investments in operating assets, we believe this non-GAAP liquidity measure is
useful in addition to the most directly comparable GAAP measure “Net cash flows from operating activities.”

During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, free cash flow was significantly impacted by changes in operating assets and
liabilities as shown in the “Net cash flows from operating activities” section of our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
included herein. Operating asset and liability balances can fluctuate significantly from period to period and there can be no assurance
that free cash flow will not be negatively impacted by material changes in operating assets and liabilities in future periods, since these
changes depend upon, among other things, management’s timing of payments and control of inventory levels, and cash receipts. In
addition to fluctuations resulting from changes in operating assets and liabilities, free cash flow can vary significantly from period to
period depending upon, among other things, subscriber growth, subscriber revenue, subscriber churn, subscriber acquisition
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costs including amounts capitalized under our equipment lease programs, operating efficiencies, increases or decreases in purchases of
property and equipment and other factors.

The following table reconciles free cash flow to “Net cash flows from operating activities.”
         
  For the Three Months  
  Ended March 31,  
  2009   2008  
  (In thousands)  
Free cash flow  $649,042  $638,966 
Add back:         

Purchases of property and equipment   252,174   266,771 
  

 
  

 
 

Net cash flows from operating activities  $901,216  $905,737 
  

 

  

 

 

Subscriber Churn

DISH Network lost approximately 94,000 net subscribers for the three months ended March 31, 2009, compared to adding
approximately 35,000 net new subscribers during the same period in 2008. This decrease primarily resulted from the decrease in gross
new subscribers and an increase in our subscriber churn rate of 1.83% compared to 1.68% for the same period in 2008. See “Results of
Operations” above for further discussion.

Our distribution relationship with AT&T was a substantial contributor to our gross and net subscriber additions over the past several
years, accounting for approximately 17% of our gross subscriber additions for the year ended December 31, 2008. This distribution
relationship ended on January 31, 2009. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, AT&T contributed 5% of our gross subscriber
additions. AT&T has entered into a new distribution relationship with DirecTV. It may be difficult for us to develop alternative
distribution channels that will fully replace AT&T and if we are unable to do so, our gross and net subscriber additions may be further
impacted, our subscriber churn may increase, and our results of operations may be adversely affected. In addition, approximately one
million of our current subscribers were acquired through our distribution relationship with AT&T and subscribers acquired through this
channel have historically churned at a higher rate than our overall subscriber base. Although AT&T is not permitted to target these
subscribers for transition to another pay-TV service and we and AT&T are required to maintain bundled billing and cooperative
customer service for these subscribers, these subscribers may still churn at higher than historical rates following termination of the
AT&T distribution relationship.

Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs

We incur significant up-front costs to acquire subscribers, including advertising, retailer incentives, equipment, installation, and new
customer promotions. While we attempt to recoup these up-front costs over the lives of their subscription, there can be no assurance
that we will. We deploy business rules such as higher credit requirements and contractual commitments, and we strive to provide
outstanding customer service, to increase the likelihood of customers keeping their DISH Network service over longer periods of time.
Our subscriber acquisition costs may vary significantly from period to period.

We incur significant costs to retain our existing customers, mostly by upgrading their equipment to HD and DVR receivers. As with
our subscriber acquisition costs, our retention spending includes the cost of equipment and installation. We also offer free programming
and/or promotional pricing for limited periods for existing customers in exchange for a commitment. A major component of our
retention efforts includes the installation of equipment for customers who move. Our subscriber retention costs may vary significantly
from period to period.

Satellites

Operation of our subscription television service requires that we have adequate satellite transmission capacity for the programming we
offer. Moreover, current competitive conditions require that we continue to expand our offering of new programming, particularly by
expanding local HD coverage and offering more HD national channels. While we generally have had in-orbit satellite capacity
sufficient to transmit our existing channels and some backup
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capacity to recover the transmission of certain critical programming, our backup capacity is limited. In the event of a failure or loss of
any of our satellites, we may need to acquire or lease additional satellite capacity or relocate one of our other satellites and use it as a
replacement for the failed or lost satellite. Such a failure could result in a prolonged loss of critical programming or a significant delay
in our plans to expand programming as necessary to remain competitive and cause us to expend a significant portion of our cash to
acquire or lease additional satellite capacity.

Security Systems

Increases in theft of our signal, or our competitors’ signals, could in addition to reducing new subscriber activations, also cause
subscriber churn to increase. We use microchips embedded in credit card-sized access cards, called “smart cards,” or security chips in
our receiver systems to control access to authorized programming content (“Security Access Devices”). Our signal encryption has been
compromised in the past and may be compromised in the future even though we continue to respond with significant investment in
security measures, such as Security Access Device replacement programs and updates in security software, that are intended to make
signal theft more difficult. It has been our prior experience that security measures may be only effective for short periods of time or not
at all and that we remain susceptible to additional signal theft. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in reducing or
controlling theft of our programming content. During the third quarter of 2008, we began implementing a plan to replace our existing
Security Access Devices to re-secure our system, which is expected to take approximately nine to twelve months to complete. We
cannot assure you that we will be successful in reducing or controlling theft of our programming content and we may incur additional
costs in the future if our Security Access Device replacement plan is not effective.

Stock Repurchases

Our board of directors previously authorized stock repurchases of up to $1.0 billion of our Class A common stock. During the three
months ended March 31, 2009, we repurchased 1.9 million shares of our common stock for $19 million. As of March 31, 2009, we
may repurchase up to $981 million under this plan.

Other

We are also vulnerable to fraud, particularly in the acquisition of new subscribers. While we are addressing the impact of subscriber
fraud through a number of actions, including eliminating certain payment options for subscribers, there can be no assurance that we
will not continue to experience fraud which could impact our subscriber growth and churn. The current economic downturn may create
greater incentive for signal theft and subscriber fraud, which could lead to higher subscriber churn and reduced revenue.

Obligations and Future Capital Requirements

We expect to fund our future working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirements from cash generated from operations,
existing cash and marketable investment securities balances, and cash generated through new additional capital. The amount of capital
required to fund our future working capital and capital expenditure needs varies, depending on, among other things, the rate at which
we acquire new subscribers and the cost of subscriber acquisition and retention, including capitalized costs associated with our new
and existing subscriber equipment lease programs. The amount of capital required will also depend on the levels of investment
necessary to support potential strategic initiatives, including our plans to expand our national and local HD offerings and other strategic
opportunities that may arise from time to time. Our capital expenditures vary depending on the number of satellites leased or under
construction at any point in time, and could increase materially as a result of increased competition, significant satellite failures, or
continued general economic downturn. These factors could require that we raise additional capital in the future.

From time to time we evaluate opportunities for strategic investments or acquisitions that may complement our current services and
products, enhance our technical capabilities, improve or sustain our competitive position, or otherwise offer growth opportunities. We
may make investments in or partner with others to expand our business into mobile and portable video, data and voice services. Future
material investments or acquisitions may require that we obtain additional capital, assume third party debt or incur other long-term
obligations.
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We paid $712 million to acquire certain 700 MHz wireless licenses, which were granted to us by the FCC in February 2009. In order to
commercialize these licenses and satisfy FCC build-out requirements, we may be required to make significant additional investments
or partner with others. Depending on the nature and scope of such commercialization and build-out, our investment could vary
significantly. Part or all of our licenses may be terminated for failure to satisfy FCC build-out requirements. We currently plan to
perform a market test to evaluate different technologies and consumer acceptance over the next year.

Recent developments in the financial markets have made it more difficult for issuers of high yield indebtedness, such as us, to access
capital markets at acceptable terms. These developments may have a significant effect on our cost of financing and our liquidity
position.

A portion of our investment portfolio is invested in asset backed securities, auction rate securities, mortgage backed securities, special
investment vehicles and strategic investments and as a result a portion of our portfolio has restricted liquidity. Liquidity in the markets
for these investments has been impacted in the past year and these market conditions have adversely affected our liquidity. In addition,
certain of these securities have defaulted or have been materially downgraded, causing us to record impairment charges. If the credit
ratings of these securities further deteriorate or the lack of liquidity in the marketplace becomes prolonged, we may be required to
record further impairment charges. Moreover, the current significant volatility of domestic and global financial markets has greatly
affected the volatility and value of our marketable investment securities. To the extent we require access to funds, we may need to sell
these securities under unfavorable market conditions, record further impairment charges and fall short of our financing needs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In general, we do not engage in off-balance sheet financing activities.
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Market Risks Associated With Financial Instruments

Our investments and debt are exposed to market risks, discussed below.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Investment Securities. As of March 31, 2009, our restricted and unrestricted cash, cash
equivalents and current and noncurrent marketable investment securities had a fair value of $1.331 billion. Of that amount, a total of
$1.227 billion was invested in: (a) cash; (b) debt instruments of the U.S. Government and its agencies; (c) commercial paper and
corporate notes with an overall average maturity of less than one year and rated in one of the four highest rating categories by at least
two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; and (d) instruments with similar risk, duration and credit quality
characteristics to the commercial paper described above. The primary purpose of these investing activities has been to preserve
principal until the cash is required to, among other things, fund operations, make strategic investments and expand the business.
Consequently, the size of this portfolio fluctuates significantly as cash is received and used in our business. As of March 31, 2009, all
of the $1.227 billion was invested in fixed or variable rate instruments. The value of these investments can be impacted by interest rate
fluctuations, but while an increase in interest rates would ordinarily adversely impact the fair value of fixed rate investments, we
normally hold these investments to maturity. Further, the value could be lowered by credit losses should economic conditions worsen.

Auction Rate and Mortgage Backed Securities. As of March 31, 2009, we held investments in auction rate securities (“ARS”) and
mortgage backed securities (“MBS”) of $79 million, which are reported at fair value. Recent events in the credit markets have reduced
or eliminated current liquidity for certain of our ARS and MBS investments. As a result, we classify these investments as noncurrent
assets as we intend to hold these investments until they recover or mature. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in the price of these
investments would result in an approximate $8 million decrease in the fair value of these investments.

Strategic Marketable Investment Securities. In general, our marketable investment securities portfolio includes debt and equity of
public companies we hold for strategic and financial purposes. As of March 31, 2009, we held strategic and financial debt and equity
investments of public companies with a fair value of $24 million. These investments, which are concentrated in a small number of
companies, are highly speculative and have experienced and continue to experience volatility. The fair value of our strategic and
financial debt and equity investments can be significantly impacted by the risk of adverse changes in securities markets generally, as
well as risks related to the performance of the companies whose securities we have invested in, risks associated with specific
industries, and other factors. These investments are subject to significant fluctuations in fair value due to the volatility of the securities
markets and of the underlying businesses. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in the price of our public strategic debt and equity
investments would result in approximately a $2 million decrease in the fair value of these investments.

Other Investment Securities. We are exposed to risk as it relates to changes in the market value of our other investments which totaled
$41 million as of March 31, 2009. We invest in equity instruments of public and private companies for operational and strategic
business purposes. These securities are subject to significant fluctuations in fair value due to volatility of the stock market and the
industry in which the companies operate. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in the price of these equity instruments would result in
an approximate $4 million decrease in the value of these investments.

Our ability to realize value from our strategic investments in companies that are not publicly traded depends on the success of those
companies’ businesses and their ability to obtain sufficient capital to execute their business plans. Because private markets are not as
liquid as public markets, there is also increased risk that we will not be able to sell these investments, or that when we desire to sell
them we will not be able to obtain fair value for them.

Interest Rate Risk. Our cash, cash equivalents and marketable investment securities had an average annual return for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 of 1.7%. A decrease in interest rates does have the effect of reducing our future annual interest income from this
portfolio, since funds would be re-invested at lower rates as the instruments
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mature. A hypothetical 10% decrease in average interest rates during 2009 would result in a decrease of approximately $2 million in
annual interest income.

Fixed Rate Debt, Mortgages and Other Notes Payable. At March 31, 2009, we had fixed-rate debt, mortgages and other notes payable
of $4.821 billion on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. We estimated the fair value of this debt to be approximately
$4.431 billion using quoted market prices for our publicly traded debt, which constitutes approximately 99% of our debt, and an
analysis based on certain assumptions discussed below for our private debt. In completing our analysis for our private debt, we
evaluate market conditions, related securities, various public and private offerings, and other publicly available information. In
performing this analysis, we make various assumptions regarding credit spreads, volatility, and the impact of these factors on the value
of the notes. The fair value of our debt is affected by fluctuations in interest rates. A hypothetical 10% decrease in assumed interest
rates would increase the fair value of our debt by approximately $175 million. To the extent interest rates increase, our costs of
financing would increase at such time as we are required to refinance our debt. As of March 31, 2009, a hypothetical 10% increase in
assumed interest rates would increase our annual interest expense by approximately $33 million.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In general, we do not use derivative financial instruments for hedging or speculative purposes, but we may do so in the future.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this
report.

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.
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Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In connection with the Spin-off, we entered into a separation agreement with EchoStar, which provides for, among other things, the
division of liability resulting from litigation. Under the terms of the separation agreement, EchoStar has assumed liability for any acts
or omissions that relate to its business whether such acts or omissions occurred before or after the Spin-off. Certain exceptions are
provided, including for intellectual property related claims generally, whereby EchoStar will only be liable for its acts or omissions that
occurred following the Spin-off and we have indemnified EchoStar for any potential liability or damages resulting from intellectual
property claims relating to the period prior to the effective date of the Spin-off.

Acacia

During 2004, Acacia Media Technologies (“Acacia”) filed a lawsuit against us and EchoStar in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California. The suit also named DirecTV, Comcast, Charter, Cox and a number of smaller cable companies as
defendants. Acacia is an intellectual property holding company that seeks to license an acquired patent portfolio. The suit alleges
infringement of United States Patent Nos. 5,132,992, 5,253,275, 5,550,863, 6,002,720 and 6,144,702, which relate to certain systems
and methods for transmission of digital data. In March 2008, the Court issued an order outlining a schedule for filing dispositive
invalidity motions based on its claim constructions. Acacia has agreed to stipulate to invalidity based on the Court’s claim
constructions in order to proceed immediately to the Federal Circuit on appeal. The Court, however, has permitted us to file additional
invalidity motions.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the patents, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Broadcast Innovation, L.L.C.

In 2001, Broadcast Innovation, L.L.C. (“Broadcast Innovation”) filed a lawsuit against us, EchoStar, DirecTV, Thomson Consumer
Electronics and others in United States District Court in Denver, Colorado. The suit alleges infringement of United States Patent Nos.
6,076,094 (the ‘094 patent) and 4,992,066 (the ‘066 patent). The ‘094 patent relates to certain methods and devices for transmitting and
receiving data along with specific formatting information for the data. The ‘066 patent relates to certain methods and devices for
providing the scrambling circuitry for a pay television system on removable cards. Subsequently, DirecTV and Thomson settled with
Broadcast Innovation leaving us as the only defendant.

During 2004, the judge issued an order finding the ‘066 patent invalid. Also in 2004, the Court found the ‘094 patent invalid in a
parallel case filed by Broadcast Innovation against Charter and Comcast. In 2005, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit overturned the ‘094 patent finding of invalidity and remanded the Charter case back to the District Court. During June 2006,
Charter filed a reexamination request with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The Court has stayed the Charter case
pending reexamination, and our case has been stayed pending resolution of the Charter case.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the patents, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.
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Channel Bundling Class Action

On September 21, 2007, a purported class of cable and satellite subscribers filed an antitrust action against us in the United States
District Court for the Central District of California. The suit also names as defendants DirecTV, Comcast, Cablevision, Cox, Charter,
Time Warner, Inc., Time Warner Cable, NBC Universal, Viacom, Fox Entertainment Group, and Walt Disney Company. The suit
alleges, among other things, that the defendants engaged in a conspiracy to provide customers with access only to bundled channel
offerings as opposed to giving customers the ability to purchase channels on an “a la carte” basis. We filed a motion to dismiss, which
the Court denied in July 2008. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of
the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Enron Commercial Paper Investment

During October 2001, we received approximately $40 million from the sale of Enron commercial paper to a third party broker. That
commercial paper was ultimately purchased by Enron. During November 2003, an action was commenced in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York against approximately 100 defendants, including us, who invested in Enron’s
commercial paper. The complaint alleges that Enron’s October 2001 purchase of its commercial paper was a fraudulent conveyance
and voidable preference under bankruptcy laws. We dispute these allegations. We typically invest in commercial paper and notes that
are rated in one of the four highest rating categories by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. At the time of
our investment in Enron commercial paper, it was considered to be high quality and low risk. On April 7, 2009, we settled the litigation
for an immaterial amount.

ESPN

On January 30, 2008, we filed a lawsuit against ESPN, Inc., ESPN Classic, Inc., ABC Cable Networks Group, Soapnet L.L.C., and
International Family Entertainment (collectively “ESPN”) for breach of contract in New York State Supreme Court. Our complaint
alleges that ESPN failed to provide us with certain high-definition feeds of the Disney Channel, ESPN News, Toon, and ABC Family.
ESPN asserted a counterclaim, and then filed a motion for summary judgment, alleging that we owed approximately $35 million under
the applicable affiliation agreements. We brought a motion to amend our complaint to assert that ESPN was in breach of certain most-
favored-nation provisions under the affiliation agreements. On April 15, 2009, the trial court granted our motion to amend the
complaint, and granted, in part, ESPN’s motion on the counterclaim, finding that we are liable for some of the amount alleged to be
owing but that the actual amount owing is disputed and will have to be determined at a later date. We will appeal the partial grant of
ESPN’s motion. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or
determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Finisar Corporation

Finisar Corporation (“Finisar”) obtained a $100 million verdict in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas
against DirecTV for patent infringement. Finisar alleged that DirecTV’s electronic program guide and other elements of its system
infringe United States Patent No. 5,404,505 (the ‘505 patent).

In July 2006, we and EchoStar, together with NagraStar LLC, filed a Complaint for Declaratory Judgment in the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware against Finisar that asks the Court to declare that we do not infringe, and have not infringed, any
valid claim of the ‘505 patent. During April 2008, the Federal Circuit reversed the judgment against DirecTV and ordered a new trial.
Our case is stayed until the DirecTV action is resolved.

We intend to vigorously prosecute this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe this patent, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to modify our system
architecture. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or
damages.
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Global Communications

On April 19, 2007, Global Communications, Inc. (“Global”) filed a patent infringement action against us and EchoStar in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. The suit alleges infringement of United States Patent No. 6,947,702 (the ‘702
patent), which relates to satellite reception. On October 24, 2007, the United States Patent and Trademark Office granted our request
for reexamination of the ‘702 patent and issued an Office Action finding that all of the claims of the ‘702 patent were invalid. At the
request of the parties, the District Court stayed the litigation until the reexamination proceeding is concluded and/or other Global patent
applications issue.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe the ‘702 patent, we may be
subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially modify
certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the
suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Guardian Media

On December 22, 2008, Guardian Media Technologies LTD (“Guardian”) filed suit against us, EchoStar, EchoStar Technologies
L.L.C., DirecTV and several other defendants in the United States District Court for the Central District of California alleging
infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,930,158 and 4,930,160. Both patents are expired and relate to certain parental lock
features.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the
outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Katz Communications

On June 21, 2007, Ronald A. Katz Technology Licensing, L.P. (“Katz”) filed a patent infringement action against us in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California. The suit alleges infringement of 19 patents owned by Katz. The patents
relate to interactive voice response, or IVR, technology.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Multimedia Patent Trust

On February 13, 2009, Multimedia Patent Trust (“MPT”) filed suit against us, EchoStar, DirecTV and several other defendants in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of California alleging infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,958,226,
5,227,878, 5,136,377, 5,500,678 and 5,563,593, which relate to video encoding, decoding and compression technology.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome of the suit or
determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.
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Personalized Media Communications

In February 2008, Personalized Media Communications, Inc. filed suit against us, EchoStar and Motorola, Inc. in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Texas alleging infringement of United States Patent Nos. 4,694,490, 5,109,414, 4,965,825,
5,233,654, 5,335,277, and 5,887,243, which relate to satellite signal processing.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Retailer Class Actions

During 2000, lawsuits were filed by retailers in Colorado state and federal courts attempting to certify nationwide classes on behalf of
certain of our retailers. The plaintiffs are requesting the Courts declare certain provisions of, and changes to, alleged agreements
between us and the retailers invalid and unenforceable, and to award damages for lost incentives and payments, charge backs, and other
compensation. We have asserted a variety of counterclaims. The federal court action has been stayed during the pendency of the state
court action. We filed a motion for summary judgment on all counts and against all plaintiffs. The plaintiffs filed a motion for
additional time to conduct discovery to enable them to respond to our motion. The state court granted limited discovery which ended
during 2004. The plaintiffs claimed we did not provide adequate disclosure during the discovery process. The state court agreed, and
denied our motion for summary judgment as a result. In April 2008, the state court granted plaintiff’s class certification motion and in
January 2009, the state court entered an order excluding certain evidence that we can present at trial based on the prior discovery
issues. The state court also denied plaintiffs’ request to dismiss our counterclaims. The final impact of the court’s evidentiary ruling
cannot be fully assessed at this time. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the
outcome of the lawsuit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Technology Development Licensing

On January 22, 2009, Technology Development and Licensing LLC (“TechDev”) filed suit against us and EchoStar in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois alleging infringement of United States Patent No. 35, 952, which relates to
certain favorite channel features.

We intend to vigorously defend this case. In the event that a Court ultimately determines that we infringe any of the asserted patents,
we may be subject to substantial damages, which may include treble damages, and/or an injunction that could require us to materially
modify certain user-friendly features that we currently offer to consumers. We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the outcome
of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Tivo Inc.

On January 31, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirmed in part and reversed in part the April 2006 jury verdict
concluding that certain of our digital video recorders, or DVRs, infringed a patent held by Tivo. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 5”), we previously recorded a total reserve of
$132 million on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the April 2006 jury verdict, supplemental damages and pre-
judgment interest awarded by the Texas court. This amount also includes the estimated cost of any software infringement prior to
implementation of our alternative technology, discussed below, plus interest subsequent to the jury verdict. In its January 2008
decision, the Federal Circuit affirmed the jury’s verdict of infringement on Tivo’s “software claims,” upheld the award of damages
from the District Court, and ordered that the stay of the District Court’s injunction against us, which was issued pending appeal, be
dissolved when the appeal becomes final. The Federal Circuit, however, found that we did not literally infringe Tivo’s “hardware
claims,” and remanded such claims back to the District Court for further proceedings. On
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October 6, 2008, the Supreme Court denied our petition for certiorari. As a result, approximately $105 million of the total $132 million
reserve was released from an escrow account to Tivo.

We have developed and deployed “next-generation” DVR software to our customers’ DVRs. This improved software is fully
operational and has been automatically downloaded to current customers (our “alternative technology”). We have written legal
opinions from outside counsel that conclude that our alternative technology does not infringe, literally or under the doctrine of
equivalents, either the hardware or software claims of Tivo’s patent. Tivo has filed a motion for contempt alleging that we are in
violation of the Court’s injunction. We have vigorously opposed the motion arguing that the Court’s injunction does not apply to DVRs
that have received our alternative technology, that our alternative technology does not infringe Tivo’s patent, and that we are in
compliance with the injunction. An evidentiary hearing on Tivo’s motion for contempt was held mid- February 2009, the parties’ have
submitted their post-trial briefs and we are now awaiting a ruling from the Court. In January 2009, the Patent and Trademark Office
(“PTO”) granted our Petition for Re-Examination of the software claims of Tivo’s ‘389 patent, which are the subject of Tivo’s current
motion for contempt. The PTO found that there is a ‘substantial new question’ of patentability as to the software claims in light of prior
patents that appear to render Tivo’s ‘389 patent invalid as obvious.

If we are unsuccessful in defending against Tivo’s motion for contempt or any subsequent claim that our alternative technology
infringes Tivo’s patent, we could be prohibited from distributing DVRs, or could be required to modify or eliminate certain user-
friendly DVR features that we currently offer to consumers. In that event we would be at a significant disadvantage to our competitors
who could offer this functionality and, while we would attempt to provide that functionality through other manufacturers, the adverse
affect on our business could be material. We could also have to pay substantial additional damages.

Voom

On May 28, 2008, Voom HD Holdings (“Voom”) filed a complaint against us in New York Supreme Court. The suit alleges breach of
contract arising from our termination of the affiliation agreement we had with Voom for the carriage of certain Voom HD channels on
the DISH Network satellite television service. In January 2008, Voom sought a preliminary injunction to prevent us from terminating
the agreement. The Court denied Voom’s motion, finding, among other things, that Voom was not likely to prevail on the merits of its
case. Voom is claiming over $1.0 billion in damages. We intend to vigorously defend this case. We cannot predict with any degree of
certainty the outcome of the suit or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

Other

In addition to the above actions, we are subject to various other legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of
business, including among other things, disputes with programmers regarding fees. In our opinion, the amount of ultimate liability with
respect to any of these actions is unlikely to materially affect our financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes a detailed discussion of
our risk factors. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, there were no material changes in risk factors as previously disclosed.
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Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information regarding repurchases of our Class A common stock from January 1, 2009 through March 31,
2009.
                 
          Total Number of   Maximum Approximate 
  Total       Shares Purchased as  Dollar Value of Shares  
  Number of   Average   Part of Publicly   that May Yet be  
  Shares   Price Paid  Announced Plans or  Purchased Under the  
Period  Purchased   per Share   Programs   Plans or Programs (a)  
              (In thousands)  
January 1 - January 31, 2009   —  $ —   —  $ 999,173 
February 1 - February 28, 2009   —  $ —   —  $ 999,173 
March 1 - March 31, 2009   1,948,462  $ 9.54   1,948,462  $ 980,580 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

Total   1,948,462  $ 9.54   1,948,462  $ 980,580 
  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

(a)  Our board of directors previously authorized stock repurchases of up to $1.0 billion of our Class A common stock. In
November 2008, our board of directors extended the plan and authorized an increase in the maximum dollar value of shares that
may be repurchased under the plan, such that we are authorized to repurchase up to $1.0 billion of our outstanding shares through
and including December 31, 2009, subject to a limitation to purchase no more than 20% of our outstanding common stock. As of
March 31, 2009, we may repurchase up to $981 million under this plan. Purchases under our repurchase program may be made
through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, or Rule 10b5-1 trading plans, subject to market conditions and
other factors. We may elect not to purchase the maximum amount of shares allowable under this program and we may also enter
into additional share repurchase programs authorized by our Board of Directors.

Item 6. EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibits.
   
31.1o  Section 302 Certification by Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
   
31.2o  Section 302 Certification by Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
   
32.1o  Section 906 Certification by Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
   
32.2o  Section 906 Certification by Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

 

o  Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
     
 DISH NETWORK CORPORATION

   

 By:  /s/ Charles W. Ergen   
  Charles W. Ergen  

  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
 (Duly Authorized Officer)  

 
   
 By:  /s/ Robert E. Olson   
  Robert E. Olson  

  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 (Principal Financial Officer)  

 
   
 By:  /s/ Bernard L. Han   
  Bernard L. Han  

  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
 (Principal Financial Officer During the Quarter Ended March 31, 2009)  

 
Date: May 11, 2009
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***************************************************************** 

                                   Before the 

                       Federal Communications Commission 

                             Washington, D.C. 20554 

                                         )                                
                                                                          
                                         )                                
                                                                          
                                         )                                
                                                                          
                                         )   File No. EB- 07-TC-578       
     In the Matter of                                                     
                                         )   NAL/Acct. No. 200832170010   
     AZ Prime One Mortgage Corporation                                    
                                         )   FRN: 0017433095              
                                                                          
                                         )                                
                                                                          
                                         )                                
                                                                          
                                         )                                

                                FORFEITURE ORDER 

   Adopted: June 15, 2009 Released: June 16, 2009 

   By the Chief, Enforcement Bureau: 

   I. INTRODUCTION 

   1. In this Forfeiture Order ("Order"), we issue a monetary forfeiture in 
   the amount of $10,000 against AZ Prime One Mortgage Corporation ("AZ Prime 
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   One") for willful or repeated violations of section 64.1200(c)(2) of the 
   Commission's rules, by making a telephone call for the purpose of 
   delivering a telephone solicitation to a residential telephone consumer 
   who had registered her telephone number on the National Do-Not-Call 
   Registry. 

   II. BACKGROUND 

   2. The facts and circumstances surrounding this case are set forth in the 
   Commission's Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and need not be 
   reiterated at length. 

   3. Section 64.1200(c)(2) of the Commission's rules generally prohibits the 
   delivery of telephone solicitations to residential telephone numbers that 
   are contained in the National Do-Not-Call Registry, except in certain 
   limited situations. Under the Communications Act of 1934, as amended 
   ("Act"), and the Commission's rules, a "telephone solicitation" means "the 
   initiation of a telephone call or message for the purpose of encouraging 
   the purchase or rental of, or investment in, property, goods, or services, 
   which is transmitted to any person." Not every promotional call, however, 
   constitutes a prohibited telephone solicitation under this rule. Calls 
   made by or on behalf of a tax-exempt nonprofit organization are not 
   considered to be telephone solicitations. Similarly, calls that are made 
   to a person who either has provided prior express invitation or permission 
   to call or has an established business relationship with the caller are 
   not considered to be telephone solicitations. In addition to these 
   statutory exemptions, section 64.1200(c)(2)(iii) also permits telephone 
   solicitations to National Do-Not-Call registrants in the limited situation 
   in which the caller has a personal relationship with the called party. 

    3. Entities making telephone solicitations must honor do-not-call 
       registrations no later than 31 days after a number is placed on the 
       National Do-Not-Call Registry, and for a period of no less than five 
       years. To accomplish this, section 64.1200(c)(2)(i)(D) requires 
       entities making telephone solicitations to use a version of the 
       National Do-Not-Call Registry obtained no more than 31 days before any 
       telephone solicitation is made, and to document this process. An 
       entity that does not claim one of the exemptions set forth above is 
       not liable for calling a telephone number on the National Do-Not-Call 
       Registry only if it is able to demonstrate both that it has fully 
       complied with the Commission's standards governing use of the National 
       Do-Not-Call Registry as set out in section 64.1200(c)(2)(i)(A)-(E) of 
       the rules, and that the particular telephone solicitation call was the 
       result of specific error. 

    4. In order to comply with the Commission's standards, a person or entity 
       initiating a telephone solicitation must first demonstrate that, as 
       part of its routine business practice it has: (1) established and 
       implemented written procedures to comply with the do-not-call rules; 
       (2) trained its personnel, and any entity assisting in its compliance, 
       in the procedures established pursuant to the do-not-call rules; (3) 
       maintained and recorded a list of telephone numbers the seller may not 
       contact; (4) used a process to prevent telemarketing to any telephone 
       number on any list established pursuant to the do-not-call rules 
       employing a version of the National Do-Not-Call Registry obtained from 
       the administrator of the Registry within a designated time frame, and 
       has maintained records documenting this process; and (5) used a 
       process to ensure that it does not sell, rent, lease, purchase, or use 
       the Registry for any purpose except national do-not-call compliance, 
       and that it has purchased access to the Registry from the Registry 
       administrator without participating in any cost sharing arrangement 
       with any other entity. We reiterate, however, that the "safe harbor" 
       from liability only applies if such person or entity is able to show 
       that the particular violative calls made in spite of adherence to the 
       enumerated do-not-call procedures were the result of specific error. 001628
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    5. On February 28, 2007, in response to a consumer complaint alleging 
       that AZ Prime One had made a telephone call for the purpose of 
       delivering telephone solicitations to a residential telephone consumer 
       who had registered a telephone number on the National Do-Not-Call 
       Registry, the Bureau issued a citation to AZ Prime One, pursuant to 
       section 503(b)(5) of the Act. The Bureau cited AZ Prime One for 
       delivering one or more telephone solicitations to residential 
       telephone consumers who had registered their telephone numbers on the 
       National Do-Not-Call Registry, in violation of section 64.1200(c)(2) 
       of the Commission's rules. The citation warned AZ Prime One that 
       subsequent violations could result in the imposition of monetary 
       forfeitures of up to $11,000 per violation, and included a copy of the 
       consumer complaint that formed the basis of the citation. The citation 
       informed AZ Prime One that within 30 days of the date of the citation, 
       it could either request an interview with Commission staff, or could 
       provide a written statement responding to the citation. AZ Prime One 
       did not request an interview or otherwise respond to the citation. 

    6. Following the issuance of the citation, the Commission received at 
       least one complaint from a consumer alleging that AZ Prime One had 
       delivered telephone solicitations to a residential telephone consumer 
       who had registered a telephone number on the National Do-Not-Call 
       Registry. The solicitations were for mortgage loans and refinancing. 
       This violation, which occurred after the Bureau's citation, resulted 
       in the issuance of a Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture 
       against AZ Prime One on February 15, 2008 in the amount of $10,000. 
       The NAL ordered AZ Prime One to either pay the proposed forfeiture 
       amount within thirty (30) days or submit evidence or arguments in 
       response to the NAL to show that no forfeiture should be imposed or 
       that some lesser amount should be assessed. AZ Prime One did not 
       respond to the NAL or pay the proposed forfeiture amount. 

   III. DISCUSSION 

   7. Section 503(b) of the Act authorizes the Commission to assess a 
   forfeiture for each violation of the Act or of any rule, regulation, or 
   order issued by the Commission under the Act by a non-common carrier or 
   other entity not specifically designated in section 503 of the Act. The 
   maximum penalty for such a violation is $11,000 for a violation occurring 
   before September 2, 2008, and $16,000 for a violation occurring on or 
   after September 2, 2008. In exercising such authority, we are to take into 
   account "the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation 
   and, with respect to the violator, the degree of culpability, any history 
   of prior offenses, ability to pay, and such other matters as justice may 
   require." 

   8. Although the Commission's Forfeiture Policy Statement does not 
   establish a base forfeiture amount for violating the prohibition on making 
   telephone solicitations to customers who have registered on the National 
   Do-Not-Call Registry, the Commission has found that a national do-not-call 
   violation implicates the same concern as a violation of the company 
   specific do-not-call rules and, accordingly, justifies the application of 
   the $10,000 base amount that the Commission previously proposed for 
   company specific do-not call violations. We apply that base amount to the 
   apparent violation. 

   9. AZ Prime One did not respond to the NAL or pay the proposed forfeiture 
   amount. AZ Prime One has failed to identify facts or circumstances to 
   persuade us that there is a basis for modifying the proposed forfeiture, 
   and we are not aware of any further mitigating circumstances sufficient to 
   warrant a reduction of the forfeiture penalty. For these reasons, and 
   based on the information before us, we hereby impose a total forfeiture of 
   $10,000 for AZ Prime One willful or repeated violation of section 227 of 
   the Act and the Commission's related rules and orders, as set forth in the 001629
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   NAL. 

   IV. ORDERING CLAUSES 

   10. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to section 503(b) of the 
   Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. S: 503(b), and section 
   1.80(f)(4) of the Commission's rules, 47 C.F.R. 

   S: 1.80(f)(4), and under authority delegated by sections 0.111 and 0.311 
   of the Commission's rules, 47 C.F.R. S:S: 0.111, 0.311, that AZ Prime One 
   Mortgage Corporation IS LIABLE FOR A MONETARY FORFEITURE to the United 
   States Government the sum of $10,000 for willfully and repeatedly 
   violating section 227(b)(1)(c) of the Communications Act, 47 U.S.C. S: 
   227(b)(1)(c), section 64.1200(a)(3) of the Commission's rules, 47 C.F.R. 
   S: 64.1200(a)(3), and the related orders as described in the paragraphs 
   above. 

   11. Payment of the forfeiture shall be made in the manner provided for in 
   section 1.80 of the Commission's rules within thirty (30) days of the 
   release of this Order. If the forfeiture is not paid within the period 
   specified, the case may be referred to the Department of Justice for 
   collection pursuant to section 504(a) of the Act. Payment of the 
   forfeiture must be made by check or similar instrument, payable to the 
   order of the Federal Communications Commission. The payment must include 
   the NAL/Account Number and FRN Number referenced above. Payment by check 
   or money order may be mailed to Federal Communications Commission, P.O. 
   Box 979088, St. Louis, MO 63197-9000. Payment by overnight mail may be 
   sent to U.S. Bank - Government Lockbox #979088, SL-MO-C2-GL, 1005 
   Convention Plaza, St. Louis, MO 63101. Payment by wire transfer may be 
   made to ABA Number 021030004, receiving bank TREAS/NYC, and account number 
   27000001. For payment by credit card, an FCC Form 159 (Remittance Advice) 
   must be submitted.  When completing the FCC Form 159, enter the 
   NAL/Account number in block number 23A (call sign/other ID), and enter the 
   letters "FORF" in block number 24A (payment type code). AZ Prime One will 
   also send electronic notification on the date said payment is made to 
   Johnny.drake@fcc.gov. Requests for full payment under an installment plan 
   should be sent to:  Chief Financial Officer -- Financial Operations, 445 
   12th Street, S.W., Room 1-A625, Washington, D.C.  20554.   Please contact 
   the Financial Operations Group Help Desk at 1-877-480-3201 or Email: 
   ARINQUIRIES@fcc.gov with any questions regarding payment procedures. 

   12. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of the Forfeiture Order  shall be 
   sent by First Class mail and certified mail return receipt requested to AZ 
   Prime One Mortgage Corporation,aka HomePlaceLoans.com, Attention: Kimberly 
   Callan, President; Brian Ramsey, Secretary; and Donald W. Hudspeth, 
   Registered Agent, 7145 E. 1st St., Scottsdale, AZ 85251-5307 and 20601 N. 
   19th Ave. #100, Phoenix, AZ 85027-3587. 

   FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

   Kris Anne Monteith 

   Chief, Enforcement Bureau 

   See 47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(c)(2). 

   AZ Prime One Mortgage Corporation, 23 FCC Rcd 1964 (Enf. Bur. 2008) 

   47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(c)(2). 

   47 U.S.C. S:227(a)(3); 47 C.F.R. S:64.1200(f)(12). 

   47 U.S.C S: 227(a)(3); 47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(f)(12). 

   Section 64.1200(c)(2)(ii) of our rules requires that prior express 001630
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   invitation or permission "must be evidenced by a signed, written agreement 
   between the consumer and seller which states that the consumer agrees to 
   be contacted by this seller and includes the telephone number to which the 
   calls may be placed." 47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(c)(2)(ii). 

   For do-not-call purposes, the term "established business relationship" 
   means "a prior or existing relationship formed by a voluntary two-way 
   communication between a person or entity and a residential subscriber with 
   or without an exchange of consideration, on the basis of the subscriber's 
   purchase or transaction with the entity within the eighteen (18) months 
   immediately preceding the date of the telephone call or on the basis of 
   the subscriber's inquiry or application regarding products or services 
   offered by the entity within the three months immediately preceding the 
   date of the call, which relationship has not been previously terminated by 
   either party." 47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(f)(4). The established business 
   relationship exception does not apply when a telephone subscriber has made 
   a company-specific do-not-call request. A company-specific do-not-call 
   request terminates an established business relationship for telemarketing 
   purposes even if the requester continues to do business with the company. 
   47 C.F.R. S: 64.1200(f)(4)(i); see also Rules and Regulations Implementing 
   the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, Report and Order, 18 FCC 
   Rcd 14014, 14070, para. 96 (2003); Rules and Regulations Implementing the 
   Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, Report and Order, 7 FCC Rcd 
   8752, 8766 n.47, 8770 n.63 (1992); see also H.R. Rep. 102-317, 1st Sess., 
   102nd Cong. at 15 (1991); Charvat v. Dispatch Consumer Services, Inc., 95 
   Ohio St. 3d 505, 769 N.E.2d 829 (2002). 

   The term "personal relationship" means "any family member, friend, or 
   acquaintance of the telemarketer making the call." 47 C.F.R. S: 
   64.1200(f)(14). 

   The 31-day requirement applies to telephone solicitations made on or after 
   January 1, 2005. Rules and Regulations Implementing the Telephone Consumer 
   Protection Act of 1991, Order, 19 FCC Rcd 19215 (2004). Previously, the 
   Commission's rules provided that do-not-call registrations had to be 
   honored within 3 months. Rules and Regulations Implementing the Telephone 
   Consumer Protection Act of 1991, Report and Order, 18 FCC Rcd 14014, 
   14040, para. 38 (2003). The 3-month provision applied to telephone 
   solicitations made before January 1, 2005. 

   47 C.F.R. S:64.1200(c0(2)(1)(A)-(E). 

   Citation from Kurt A. Schroeder, Deputy Chief, Telecommunications 
   Consumers Division, Enforcement Bureau, File No. EB-07-TC-578, issued to 
   AZ Prime One Mortgage Company on February 28, 2007. 

   See 47 U.S.C. S: 503(b)(5) (authorizing the Commission to issue citations 
   to persons who do not hold a license, permit, certificate or other 
   authorization issued by the Commission or an applicant for any of those 
   listed instrumentalities for violations of the Act or of the Commission's 
   rules and orders). 

   Commission staff mailed the citation to AZ Prime One Mortgage Company , 
   Attn: Brian Ramsey, President, 7145 East 1st Street, Scottsdale, Arizona 
   85251-5307. 

   See n.2 supra; see also 47 U.S.C. S: 503(b)(1). 

   Section 503(b)(2)(C) provides for forfeitures of up to $10,000 for each 
   violation in cases not covered by subparagraph (A) or (B), which address 
   forfeitures for violations by licensees and common carriers, among others. 
   See 47 U.S.C. S: 503(b). In accordance with the inflation adjustment 
   requirements contained in the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 
   Pub. L. 104-134, Sec. 31001, 110 Stat. 1321, the Commission implemented an 
   increase of the maximum statutory forfeiture under section 503(b)(2)(C) 001631
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   first to $11,000 and more recently to $16,000. See 47 C.F.R. S:1.80(b)(3); 
   Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Commission's Rules and Adjustment of 
   Forfeiture Maxima to Reflect Inflation, 15 FCC Rcd 18221 (2000)(forfeiture 
   maximum for this type of violator set at $11,000); Amendment of Section 
   1.80(b) of the Commission's Rules and Adjustment of Forfeiture Maxima to 
   Reflect Inflation, 19 FCC Rcd 10945 (2004) (amendment of section 1.80(b) 
   to reflect inflation left the forfeiture maximum for this type of violator 
   at $11,000); Amendment of Section 1.80(b) of the Commission's Rules, 
   Adjustment of Forfeiture Maxima to Reflect Inflation, 23 FCC Rcd 9845 
   (2008) (amendment of section 1.80(b) to reflect inflation increased the 
   forfeiture maximum for this type of violator to $16,000). 

   See 47 U.S.C. S: 503(b)(2)(D); see also The Commission's Forfeiture Policy 
   Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Rules to Incorporate the 
   Forfeiture Guidelines, Report and Order, 12 FCC Rcd 17087, 17100-01 para. 
   27 (1997) (Forfeiture Policy Statement), recon. denied, 15 FCC Rcd 303 
   (1999). 

   The Commission's Forfeiture Policy Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 
   of the Rules to Incorporate the Forfeiture Guidelines, Report and Order, 
   12 FCC Rcd 17087 (1997), recon. denied, 15 FCC Rcd 303 (1999) (Forfeiture 
   Policy Statement). 

   Dynasty Mortgage, LLC, Order of Forfeiture, 22 FCC Rcd 9453, 9469, para. 
   43 (2007). 

   47 U.S.C. S: 504(a). 

   (...continued from previous page) 

                                                              (continued....) 

   Federal Communications Commission DA 09-1328 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ~ 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN r 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
AUG 10 2009 

CLERK'S OFFICE 
DETROIT 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
Plaintiff, 

v. 

VISION QUEST, LLC, and 

BRIAN K. CA VETI, individually and as a 
member of VISION QUEST, LLC, 

Defendants. 

Case No.:2:09-cv-1I 102-AJT-VMM 

STIPULATED JUDGMENT AND 
ORDER FOR PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION 

Plaintiff, acting upon notification and authorization to the Attorney General by the 

Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or the "Commission"), has commenced this action by filing 

the complaint herein, and defendants Vision Quest, L.L.C. , and Brian Cavett, have waived 

service of the summons and complaint. Plaintiff, and the above·named Defendants, have agreed 

to settlement of this action. 

THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED, 

ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to 

28 U.S.c. §§ 1331 , 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(I)(A), 53 (b), 56(a), and 

57b. 

2. Plaintiff, and Defendants consent to jurisdiction and venue in this District. 
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CLERK'S OFFICE 
DETROIT 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
Plaintiff, 

v. 

VISION QUEST, LLC, and 

BRIAN K. CAVETT, individually and as a 
member of VISION QUEST, LLC, 

Defendants. 

Case No.:2:09-cv-II I02-AJT-VMM 

STIPULATED JUDGMENT AND 
ORDER FOR PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION 

Plaintiff, acting upon notification and authorization to the Anomey General by the 

Federal Trade Commission (<<FTC" or the "Commission',). has commenced this action by filing 

the complaint herein, and defendants Vision Quest, L.L.C., and Brian Cavett, have waived 

service of the summons and complaint. Plainti ff, and the above-named Defendants. have agreed 

to settlement of this action. 

THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED, 

ADJUDGED AND DECREED as fo llows: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and \355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(mXIXA), 53(b), 56(a), and 

57b. 

2. Plaintiff, and Defendants consent to jurisdiction and venue in this District. 
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3. The activities of Defendants are in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section 4 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

4. The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against Defendants 

under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1 )(A), !3(b), and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC 

Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 57b. 

5. Defendants have entered into this Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent 

Injunction ("Order") freely and without coercion. Defendants further acknowledge that they have 

read the provisions of this Order and are prepared to abide by them. 

6. Defendants hereby waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of this Order. 

7. Defendants have agreed that this Order does not entitle Defendants to obtain 

attorneys' fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, as 

amended, and Defendants further waive any rights to attorneys' fees that may arise under said 

provision of law. 

8. Entry of this Order is in the public interest. 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply: 

I. "Asset" means any legal or equitable interest in, or right or claim to, any real or 

personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment, fixtures, 

general intangibles, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts, 

credits, contracts, receivables, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever located. 
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2. "Customer" means any person who is or may be required to pay for goods or 

services offered through telemarketing. 

3. "Defendants" means Vision Quest, L.L.C, and Brian Cavett. 

4. "Established business relationship" means a relationship between the seller and a 

person based on: (a) the person's purchase, rental , or lease of the seller's goods or services or a 

financial transaction between the person and seller, within the eighteen (18) months immediately 

preceding the date of the telemarketing call; or (b) the person's inquiry or application regarding a 

product or service offered by the seller, within the three (3) months immediately preceding the 

date of a telemarketing call. 

5. ''National Do Not Call Registry" means the National Do Not Call Registry 

maintained by the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(I)(iii)(B). 

6. "Outbound telephone call" means a telephone call initiated by a telemarketer to 

induce the purchase of goods or services or to solicit a charitable contribution. 

7. "Person" means any individual, group, unincorporated association, limited or 

general partnership, corporation, or other business entity. 

8. "Representatives" means Defendants' successors, assigns, officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive 

actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise. 

9. "SeUer" means any person who, in connection with a telemarketing transaction, 

provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide goods or services to the customer in 
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general partnership, corporation, or other business entity. 

8. "Representatives" means Defendants' successors, assigns, officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive 

actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise. 

9. "Seller" means any person who, in connection with a telemarketing transaction, 

provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide goods or services to the customer in 
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exchange for consideration. whether or not such person is under the jurisdiction of the Federa1 

Trade Commission. 

10. "Telemarketer" means any person who, in connection with telemarketing, initiates 

or receives telephone calls to or from a customer or donor. 

II . "Telemarketing" means a plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to 

induce the purchase of goods or services or a charitable contribution, by use of one or more 

telephones and which involves more than one interstate telephone call. The term does not 

include the solicitation of sales through the mailing of a catalog which: contains a written 

description or illustration of the goods or services offered for sale; includes the business address 

of the seller; includes multiple pages of written material or illustrations; and has been issued not 

less frequently than once a year, when the person making the solicitation does not solicit 

customers by telephone but only receives calls initiated by customers in response to the catalog 

and during those calls takes orders only without further solicitation. For purposes of the previous 

sentence, the term "further solicitation" does not include providing the customer with 

information about, or attempting to sell. any other item included in the same catalog which 

prompted the customer's call or in a substantially similar catalog. 

12. The "Telemarketing Sales Rule" or "Rule" means the FTC Rule entitled 

"Telemarketing Sales Rule," 16 C.F.R. § 310, attached hereto as Appendix A, or as it may he 

amended. 
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ORDER 

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST ABUSIVE TELEMARKETING PRACTICES 

IT IS ORDERED that, in connection with telemarketing, Defendants and their 

Representatives are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, causing other 

persons to engage in, or assisting other persons to engage in, violations of the Telemarketing 

Sales Rule, including but not limited to: 

A. Initiating any outbound telephone call to any person at a telephone number on the 

National Do Not CaB Registry unless the seller proves that: 

t . the seller has obtained the express agreement, in writing, of such person to 

place calls to that person. Such written agreement shall clearly evidence such person's 

authorization that calls made by or on behalf of a specific party may be placed to that person, and 

shall include the telephone number to which the calls may be placed and the signature of that 

person; or 

2. the seller has an established business relationship with such person and 

that person has not previously stated that he or she does not wish to receive outbound telephone 

calls made by or on behalf of the seller; or 

B. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a person when that person has previously 

stated that he or she does not wish to receive an outbound telephone call made by or on behalf of 

the seller whose goods or services are being offered or made by or on behalf of the charitable 

organization for which a charitable contribution is being solicited; or 
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C. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a telephone number within a given area 

code without first paying the required annual fee for access to the telephone numbers within that 

area code that are on the National Do Not Call Registry; or 

D. Initiating any outbound telephone call that delivers a prerecorded message, other 

than a prerecorded message pennitted for compliance with the call abandonment safe harbor in 

16 C.F.R. §310.4(b)(4)(iii), unless: 

(I) in any such call to induce the purchase of any good or service. the seller has 

obtained from the recipient of the call an express agreement, in writing, that: 

(a) the seller obtained only after a clear and conspicuous disclosure that the 

purpose of the agreement is to authorize the seller to place prerecorded 

calls to such person; 

(b) the seller obtained without requiring, directly or indirectly, that the 

agreement be executed as a condition of purchasing any good or service; 

(c) evidences the willingness of the recipient of the call to receive calls that 

deliver prerecorded messages by or on behalf of a specific seller; and 

(d) includes such person' s telephone number and signature. The tenn 

"signature" shall include an electronic or digital fonn of signature, to the 

extent that such fonn of signature is recognized as a valid signature under 

applicable federal law or state contract law; and 

(2) in any such call to induce the purchase of any good or service, the seller or 

telemarketer: 
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(a) allows the telephone to ring for at least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) 

rings before disconnecting an unanswered call; and 

(b) within two (2) seconds after the completed greeting of the person called, 

plays a prerecorded message that promptly provides the disclosures 

required by 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(d) or (e), followed immediately by a 

disclosure of one or both of the following: 

(i) in the case of a caJl that could be answered in person by a 

consumer, that the person called can use an automated interactive 

voice and/or keypress-activated opt-out mechanism to assert a Do 

Not Call request pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 31O.4(b)(I)(iii)(A) at any 

time during the message. The mechanism must: 

(AJ automatically add the number called to the seller's entity­

specific Do Not Call list; 

(B) once invoked, immediately disconnect the call; and 

(e) be available for use at any time during the message; and 

(ii) in the case of a call that could be answered by an answering 

machine or voicemail service, that the person called can use a toll ­

free telephone number to assert a Do Not Call request pursuant to 

16 C.F.R.§ 31O.4(b)(I)(iii)(A). The number provided must 

connect directly to an automated interactive voice or keypress­

activated opt-out mechanism that: 
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(AJ automatically adds the number called to the seller's entity­

specific Do Not Call list; 

(B) immediately thereafter disconnects the call; and is 

accessible at any time throughout the duration of the 

telemarketing campaign; and 

(C) Complies with all other requirements of the Telemarketing 

Sales Rule and other applicable federal and state laws. 

(iii) Any call that complies with all applicable requirements of this 

paragraph [D] of this order shall not be deemed to violate 16 

C.F.R. § 31O.4(b)(I)(iv). 

Provided, however, that if the Commission promulgates any rule that modifies or 

supersedes the Telemarketing Sales Rule, in whole or part, Defendants shall comply fully and 

completely with all applicable requirements thereof, on and after the effective date of any such 

rule. 

II. CIVIL PENALTY 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Judgment in the amount of Six Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($690,000.00) 

is hereby entered against Defendants Vision Quest, L.L.C, and Brian Cavett. jointly and 

severally, as a civil penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(l )(A) of the Federal Trade Commission 

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(l)(A). Based upon Defendants' sworn representations in financial 

statements provided to the Commission. full payment for the foregoing is suspended contingent 
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upon the accuracy and completeness of the fmancial statements as set forth in subparagraph B 

and C of this Paragraph. 

S. Plaintiff' s agreement to this Order is expressly premised upon the truthfulness, 

accuracy, and completeness of Defendants' sworn fmancial statements and supporting documents 

submitted to the Commission and dated February 5, 2009, all of which include material 

infonnation upon which Plaintiff relied in negotiating and agreeing to this Order. 

C. lf, upon motion by Plaintiff, this Court finds that Defendants failed to disclose any 

material asset, materially misrepresented the value of any asset, made any other material 

misrepresentation or omission in the sworn financial statements described above, then this Order 

shall be reopened and suspension of the judgment shall be lifted for the purpose of requiring 

payment ofa civil penalty in the full amount of the j udgment ($690,000.00) by any Defendant 

who made such material misstatement or omission. Provided, however, that in all other respects 

this Order shall remain in full force and effect, unless otherwise ordered by the Court. 

D. In accordance with 31 U.S.c. § 7701, Defendants are hereby required, unless they 

have done so already, to furnish to Plaintiff and the FTC their taxpayer identifYing number(s) 

(social security numbers or employer identification numbers) which shall be used for purposes of 

collecting and reporting on any delinquent amount arising out of Defendants' relationship with 

the government. 

E. lbis judgment represents a civil penalty owed to the United States Government, is 

not compensation for actual pecuniary loss, and, therefore, is not subject to discharge under the 

Bankruptcy Code pursuant to II U.S.C. § 523(a)(7). Defendants agree that the facts as alleged in 
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the complaint filed in this action shall be taken as true, without further proof, in any subsequent 

civil litigation filed by or on behalf of the Commission to enforce its rights to any payment or 

money judgment pursuant to this Order. 

F. Proceedings instituted Wlder this Paragraph are in addition to, and not in lieu of, 

any other civil or criminal remedies as may be provided by law, including any other proceedings 

that the Plaintiff may initiate to enforce this Order. 

III. RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry of 

this Order, Defendants, and their successors and assigns, shall maintain and make available to the 

Plaintiff or Commission, within seven (7) days of the receipt of a written request, business 

records demonstrating compliance with the tenns and provisions of this Order. 

IV. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS AND 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants. and their successors and assigns, shall 

within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Order, provide a copy of this Order with Appendix A 

to all of their owners, principals, members, officers, and directors, as well as managers, agents, 

servants, employees, and attorneys having decision-making authority with respect to the subject 

matter of this Order; secure from each such person a signed statement acknowledging receipt of a 

copy of this Order; and shall, within ten (10) days of complying with this Paragraph, file an 

affidavit with the Court and serve the Commission, by mailing a copy thereof, to the Associate 

Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 
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Pennsylvania Ave., N. W., Washington, D.C. 20580, setting forth the fact and manner of its 

compliance, including the name and title of each person to whom a copy of the Order has been 

provided. 

V. NOTIFICATION OF BUSINESS CHANGES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall 

notify the Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Conswner Protection, Federal Trade 

Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N. W. , Washington, D.C. 20580, at least thirty (30) days 

prior to any change in such Defendant 's business, including, but not limited to, merger, 

incorporation, dissolution, assignment, and sale, which results in the emergence of a successor 

corporation, the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary or parent, or any other change, which may 

affect such Defendant's obligations under this Order. 

VI. NOTIFICATION OF INDIVIDUAL'S AFFILIATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Brian Cavett shall, for a period of five (5) 

years from the date of entry of this Order, notify Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of 

Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington, 

D.C. 20580, within thirty (30) days of his affiliation with a new business or employment whose 

activities include telemarketing or his affiliation with a new business or employment in which his 

duties involve the sale or offering for sale of satellite programming. 

VO. COMMUNICATION WITH DEFENDANTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for the purposes of compliance reporting, Plaintiff 

and the Commission are authorized to communicate directly with Defendants. 
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VIII. FEES AND COSTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its own 

costs and attorneys' fees incurred in connection with this action. 

IX. SEVERABILITY 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of this Order are separate and 

severable from one another. If any provision is stayed or detennined to be invalid. the remaining 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

X. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for 

purposes of construction, modification and enforcement of this Order. 

XI. COMPLETE SETTLEMENT 

The parties hereby consent to entry of the foregoing Order which shall constitute a fmal 

judgment and order in this matter. The parties further stipulate and agree that the entry of the 

foregoing Order shall constitute a full , complete and final settlement of this action. 

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE ENTERED in favor of Plaintiff and against 

Defendants, pursuant to all the tenns and conditions recited above. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DATED: [--Ill-I? 
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WE CONSENT TO ENTRY of the above Stipulated Judgment and Order for Pennanent 
injunction: 

Doted: My tL 2009 

~~~~2~~ .tBn.. 
ret)ll1d m.'COfJ>O<ZIc dcfC1ldaru 

/' Vj~06~lLC 
575815 Milo Rd.' 
Slerli",llciplS.M1 48310 
Tolopbc:1c: (586) 977·9900 
Fox: (586) 977-9905 
E-"",il: 8h.~Udatedogencie<.cam 
PS4393 
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Dated: loll' f:i, 2009 

Dat<d: July i: 2009 

FOR nn; DEF£NJlI~rs: 

5758 IS Mile Rd. 
SlerUnc Ilcip's, Ml 48310 
Tolopltooo: (S86) 977·9900 
F .. : (586) 917·9905 
E-m.il: gh.nry@consolldatedogencies.com 
PS4393 
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Dated: July 10, 2009 

~': . S,E~ 
f\..~;:;:;. ~=_~=-__ 

IS C. GREISMAN 
Associate Director fot Marketing Practices 

RUSSELL DEITCH 
GARY IVENS 
Attorneys 
Federa1 Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave. NW 
Washington, DC 20580 

FOR PLAINTIFF THE UNITED STATES 
OF AMERICA: 

TONY WEST 
Assistant Attorney General 
Civil Division 
U.s. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

TERRENCE BERG 
United States Attorney 

CA~~ 
CAROLBELL HARBIN 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 
U.S. Attorney's Office for the 
Eastern District of Michigan 
211 W. Fort Street, Suite 2001 
Detroit, MI 48226 
Telephone: 313-226-9114 
Fax: 313-226-3800 
Email: Carolyn.Bell-Harbin@usdoj.gov 
P273S0 

EUGENE M. THIROLF, Director 
KENNETH L. JOST, Deputy Director 
Office of Consumer Litigation 

·&JKCa~ ·~ 
DANIEL K. CRANE-HIRSCH 
Trial Attorney 
Office of Consumer Litigation 
U.S. Department of Justice 
PO Box 386 
Washington, D.C. 20044 
Telephone: 202-616-8242 
Fax: 202-5 14-8742 
E-mail: Daniel.Crane-Hirsch@usdoj.gov 
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ALTERNATIVE FUELED VEHICLE BUYERS GUIDE 
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[60 F R 26956. May 19, 1995. aa amended at 69 FR 55339, SDpt. 14, 2004] 

PART 31Q-TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE 

s~. 
310.1 SCope or rep;uiatioDI! tn thll! part. 
310.2 OennltlODI!. 
310.3 Deceptive telemarketing &eta or Pr&(\­

tlcea. 
310.4 AbuBivlI tolem ark lltlng act.ll or prac-

t iCel!. 
310.5 Reeol"dkeeplng reQulreme n t.ll. 
310.6 E xem pt ions. 
310.7 Actloul! by statell and private persoDS. 

310.8 lo'ee (Of ~cef18 to the National Do Not 
Call Registry. 

310.9 Severability. 

A\rI"HORrl"Y: 15 U.S.C. 6101~108 . 

SOURCe: 68 F R 4669, Jan. 29, 2003. unI ll11l1 
othefWl&e noted. 

§S tO.1 Scope or regulations in this 
pa .... 

This par t Implements the Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Pr evention Act, 15 U.S .C. 6101-
6108, as am ended. 
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ALTERNATIVE FUELED VEHICLE BUYERS GUIDE 
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of- 7 IncheI -+ 
FlgUN' 

lao J.' R 261/1$5. May 19. 1995 ... f.meaded a t 619 FR $5339. Sept. 14. :1004) 

PART 31G-TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE _. 

310.1 Scope or reculatlo~ In thJs p&rt. 
310.2 DenaltloD. 
310.3 Deceptive telemarketing actlb or prae­

tic • . 
310.4 Abu,lve telemarketing &etlb or prac.-

t ice,. 
310.$ Recordkeeplng I"&qulremeotll. 
310.6 Ez:emptloili. 
310.7 ACtions by , t.at.u and pcivate pef'llOn lb. 

310.' Pee ror acoeM to llIe NatIonll Do Not 
CIlI Rewiltll' . 

S10.9 8everabillt.;y. 

AtmlORITT: 15 U.S .C. '101~10l. 

SOu.c.:: 51 PR .... Jan. 29. 2003. unless 
o tberwlae nOted. 

t 310.1 Scope or re,wa tio ru: in this 
p ..... 

Thi ll part tmplementa the Tele­
marketlnr and Consumer Fraud aDd 
AbuBe Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101· 
6108, as amended. 
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§310.2 

1310.2 DefinitioDs. 
(a) Acquirer means a business organi­

zation, financial institution, or an 
agent of a bUSiness organization or fi­
nancial Institution that has authority 
from an organization that operates or 
licenses a credit card system to autbor­
Ize merchants to accept, transmit, or 
process payment by credit card 
through the credit card system fo r 
money, goods or services, or anything 
else of value. 

(b) AUorney General means t he chief 
legal officer ot a state. 

(e) Billing fnformation means any data 
that enables any person to access a 
customer's or donor's account. such 8.8 
a credit card, checking, savings. share 
or Similar account, utility bill, mort­
gage loan account. or debit card. 

(d) Caller fdentiFlCaUon service means a 
service that allows a telephone sub­
scriber to bave the telephone number, 
and, where available, name of tbe call­
ing party transmitted contempora­
neously with tbe telephone call. and 
displayed on a device in or connected 
to the subscriber 's telephone, 

(e) Cardholder means a person to 
wbom a credi t card is Issued or who is 
a.uthorlzed to use a credit card on be­
ha.H of or In addition to the person to 
whom the cr edit card Is issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any 
donation or gift of money or any other 
thing of value. 

(g) Commission means t he Federal 
Trade Commission. 

(h) Credit means the right granted by 
a creditor to a debtor to defer payment 
of debt or to Incur debt and defer its 
payment. 

(1) CTedit card means any card. plate. 
coupon book. or other credit device ex­
isting for the purpose of obtaining 
money. property, labor. or services on 
credit. 

(j) CTedit card sal~ draft means any 
record or evidence of a credit card 
transaction. 

(k) CTedit card !1/stem means any 
method or procedure used to process 
credit card transactions Involving cred­
It cards Issued or Ucensed by the oper­
ator of that system . 

(I) Customer means any person who is 
or may be required to pay for goods or 
services offered through tele­
marketing. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 EdiHon) 

(m) Donor means any person solici ted 
to make a chari table contribution. 

(n) Established business relationship 
means a relationship between a seller 
and a consumer based on: 

(1) the consumer's purchase, rental. 
or lease of the seller's goods or services 
or a Onanclal transaction between the 
consumer and seller. within the eight­
een (18) months Immediately preceding 
the date of a telemarketing call : or 

(2) t he consumer's Inquiry or applica­
tion regarding a product or service of­
fered by the seller , witMn the three (3) 
months Immediately preceding the 
date of a telemarketing call. 

(0) Free-to-pay conversion mea.ns. In 
an offer or agreement to sell or proVide 
any goods or services. a prOVision 
under which a customer receives a 
product or service for free for an InJUal 
period and wtll Incur an obligation to 
pay for the product or service If he or 
she does not take afnrmatlve action to 
cancel before the end of that period. 

(p) I nvestment oppor tunftJl means any­
thing, tangible or Intangible. that is of­
fered. offered for sale, sold. or traded 
based wholly or In part on representa­
tions. either express or ImpUed, about 
past, present, or future Income, profit. 
or appreciation. 

(Q.) Material means Ukely to affect a 
person's choice of, or conduct regard­
Ing, goods or services or a charitable 
contribution . 

(r) Merchant means a person who Is 
authorized under a written contract 
with an aCQulter to honor or accept 
credit cards. or to t ransmit or process 
for payment credit card payments, for 
the purchase of goods or services or a 
charitable contribution. 

(s) Merchant agreement means a writ­
ten contract between a merchant and 
an ll.CQulrer to honor or accept credit 
cards. or to transmit or process for 
payment credit card payments, for the 
purchase of goods or services or a char­
Itable contribution. 

(t) Negative option feature means. in 
an offer or agreement to sell or proVide 
any goods or services, a provl.slon 
under which the customer's silence or 
failure to take an afOrmatlve action to 
reject goods or services or to cancel the 
agreemen t Is Interpreted by the seller 
as acceptance of the offer . 
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1310.2 DefinitioIlA. 
(a) Acquirer means a business organi­

zation, financial institution, or an 
agent of a business organIzation or fi­
nancial Institution that bas autborlty 
from an organization that operates or 
licenses a credit card system to author­
Ize merchants to accept, transmit, or 
process payment by credit card 
through the credit card system for 
money, goods or services, or anything 
else of value. 

(b) Attorney General means the chief 
legal officer of a state. 

(e) Billing fnformation means any data 
that enables any person to access a 
customer's or donor's account. such as 
a credit card, checking, savings, sbare 
or simUar account, utility bill, mort­
gage loan account. or debit card. 

(d) Cllller identification service means a 
service that allows a telephone BUb­
seMber to bave the telephone number. 
and, where available. name of tbe call­
Ing party transmitted contempora· 
neoU81y with the telephone call. and 
displayed on a device in or connected 
to the subscrlber's telephone. 

(e) Cardholder means a person to 
whom a credi t card Is Issued or who Is 
authorized to use a credit ca.rd on be· 
half of or in addition to the person to 
whom the credit card Is Issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any 
donation or g i ft of money or any other 
thing of value. 

(g) Commission means the Federal 
T1.'ade Commission. 

(h) Credit means the right granted by 
a creditor to a debtor to defer payment 
of debt or to incur debt and defer its 
payment. 

(1) Credit card means any card. plate. 
coupon book, or other credit device ex­
istlnif for the purpose of obtaining 
money. property. labor. or services on 
credit. 

(j) Credit card sales draft means any 
record or evidence of a credit card 
transaction. 

(k) Credit card !]Istem means any 
method or procedure used to process 
credit card transactions involving cred· 
it cards issued or licensed by the ope~ 
ator o( that system. 

(I) Customer means any person wbo is 
or may be requIred to pay for goods or 
services offered through tele· 
marketing. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1 - 1-09 Edition) 

(m) Donor means any person solicited 
to make a cha ri table contribution. 

(n ) Established b~ness relaUonship 
means a relationship between a seller 
and a consumer based on: 

(1) the consumer's purchase. rental. 
or lease of tbe seller's goods or services 
or a nnanclal transaction between the 
consumer and seller. within tbe eight­
een (18) months Immediately preceding 
t he date of a telemarketing call ; or 

(2) the conswner's inquiry or appUca· 
tlon regarding a product or service of· 
fered by tbe seller, within the three (3) 
months Immediately preceding the 
date o( a telemarketing- call . 

(0) Fre~lo-pay conversion means. in 
an o[fer or agreement to sell or provide 
any goods or services. a provision 
under wblch a customer receives a 
product or &ervloe for free for an initial 
period and wlll Incur an obllgatton to 
pay for the product or service If he or 
she does not take 8!nrmattve action to 
cancel before t be end ot that period. 

(P) Investment opportunitJl means any­
thing. tangible or Inta.ns'lble. that Is of· 
rered. o[fered for sale. sold. or traded 
based wholly or In part on representa· 
tlons. either express or implied . about 
past. present. or fUture income. profit. 
or a ppreciation. 

(q ) Material means likely to affect a 
person's choice of, or conduct regard· 
tng. goods or services or a charitable 
contrlbut lon. 

(r) Merchant means a person who Is 
authorized under a written contract 
with a n acquire!' to honor or accept 
credit cards. or to t ransmit or process 
for payment credit card payments. for 
the purchase or goods or services or a 
charitable contrlbutton. 

(s) Merchant agreement means a writ-­
Len contract between a merchant and 
an acqutrer to honor or accept credit 
cards. or to transmit or process for 
payment credit card payments, (or the 
purchase o r goods or services or a char­
Itable cont ribut ion. 

(t) Negative option feature means. in 
an offer or agrtlement to sell or provide 
any goods or servics!. a provillion 
under which the customer'S sIlence or 
failure to take an affirmative action to 
reject goods or services or to cancel the 
agreement is Interpreted by the seller 
as acceptance of tbe o[fer . 
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Federal Trade Commission 

(u) Outbound telephone call means a 
telephone call initiated by a tele­
marketer to induce the purchase of 
goods or services or to solicit a chari­
table contribution. 

(v) Person means any individual, 
gl'oup, unincorporated association. lim­
Ited or general partnership, corpora­
t ion, or other buslne88 entity. 

(w) PreaCQuired account in/annat/on 
means any Information that enables a 
seller or telemarketer to cause a 
charge to be placed against a cus­
tomer's or donor's account without ob­
taining the account number directly 
from the customer or donor during the 
telemarketing tr8.1lB8.ctlon pursuant to 
which the account will be charged. 

(x) Pme means anything offered. or 
purportedly offered, and given. or pur­
portedly given, to a person by chance. 
For purposes of this deClnltion, chance 
exists If a person Is guaranteed to re­
ceive an Item and. at the time of the 
offer or purported offer, the tele­
marketer does not Identify the specific 
Item that the person will receive. 

(y) Prize promotion means: 
(1) A sweepstakes or other game of 

chance: or 
(2) An oral or written expre88 or Im­

plied representation that a person has 
won, has been selected to receive, or 
may be eligible to receive a prize or 
purported prize. 

(z) Seller means any person who. in 
connection with a telemarketing t rans­
action. provides, offers to provide, or 
arranges for others to provide goods or 
services to the customer in exchange 
for consideration. 

(8.8.) State means any state of the 
United States, the District of Colum­
bia. Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana 
Islands, and any territory or posse88lon 
of the United States. 

(bb) Teiemarketer means any person 
who, tn connection with telemarketing. 
Initiates or receives telephone calls to 
or from a customer or donor. 

fcc} Telemarketing means a plan. pro­
gram. or campaign which Is conducted 
to Induce the purchase of goods or serv­
Ices or a charitable contribution, by 
use of one or more telephones and 
which Involves more than one Inter­
state telephone call. The term does not 
Include the solicitation of sales 
through tbe mailing of a catalog 

§31O.3 

which: contains a written description 
or illustration of the goods or services 
offered for sale; Includes the business 
address of the seller: Includes multiple 
pages of written material or illustra.­
t ions; and has been Issued not le88 fre­
quently than once a year , when the 
person making the sol1citation does 
not solicit customers by telephone but 
only receives calls tnlttated by cus­
tomers In response to the catalog and 
during those calls takes orders only 
without fu rther solicitation. For pur­
poses of the previous sentence. the 
term " further solicitation" does not 
Include providing the customer with 
information about, or attempting to 
sell, any other Item Included In the 
same catalog which prompted the cus­
tomer's call or In a substantIally simi­
lar catalog. 

(dd) Upselling means soltclting the 
purchase of goods or services following 
an Initial transaction during a single 
telephone call. The upsell Is a separate 
telemarketing tra.nsactlon. not a con­
tinuation of the initial transaction. An 
"external upsell" Is a solicitation 
made by or on behalf of a seller dif­
ferent from the seller In the Initial 
tr8.1lB8.ctlon. regardless of whether the 
Initial t ransaction and the subsequent 
solicitation ar e made by the same tele­
marketer. An "Internal upsell " is a so­
liCitation made by or on behalf of the 
same seller as In the initial trans­
action. regardless of whether the Ini­
t ial transaction a nd subsequent solici­
tation are made by the same tele­
marketer. 

§ 810.8 Deceptive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Prohibited deceptive telemarketing 
aeLl or practiCeS. It Is a deceptive tele­
marketing act or practice and a viola­
tion of this Rule for any seller or tele­
marketer to engage I.n the following 
conduct: 

(1) Before a customer paysl for goods 
or services offered. failing to disclose 

• When a seller or t-e lemarketer usell, or di­
rects .. CUlltomer to ulle ... courier to tnLns­
port payment. tbe seller or telemarketer 
mUlt make tbe d.18cJOIIure ~ requiNld. by 
1310.3(a)( l ) before lIendln( a courier to pick 
up payment or authorltatlon Cor payment, or 

Co"ti,,~ 

355 

$ipulated Judgment and Permanent Order of Injunction 
Appendix A 

Federal Trade Commission 

(u) Outbound telephone call means a 
telephone call init.iated by a tele­
ma.rketer t.o induce the purchase of 
goods or services or t.o solicit a. chari­
table contrlbut.ton. 

(v) Perron means any Individual, 
lfI'OUP, unincorporated association, lim­
Ited or general partnership, corpora­
t ion, or other business entity. 

( w) PreacQuired account in/ormation 
means any Information that enables a 
seUer or telemarketer to cause a 
chara'e to be placed against a cuJ!.­
tomer's Or donor's account. without ob­
taining the account number directly 
from the customer or donor during the 
telemarket.lng transaction pu.rsuant. to 
which the account will be charged. 

( x ) PriU means anytb1ng offered. or 
purportedly offered, and given. or pur­
portedly given, to a person by chance. 
For purposes of t.h1s definition, chance 
exists If a peraon is guara.nteed to re­
ceive an item and, at the time of the 
offer or purported offer. the tele­
marketer does not identifY the speclDc 
item that the peraon will receive. 

(y) Prize promotion means: 
(1) A sweepstakes or other game of 

chance; or 
(2) An oral or written express or Im­

plied representation that a person bas 
won, baa been selected to receive, or 
may be eligible to receive a prize or 
pu rported prize. 

(z) Seller means a ny person who, In 
connection with a telemarketing tranJ!.­
act.lon, provides, offers to provide. or 
arrl\l1i'es for others to provide goods or 
services to the customer in exchange 
for consideration. 

(aa) State means any state of the 
Unlted States, the Dlstrtct of Colum­
bia, Puerto Rico. the Northern Mariana 
Islanda, and any tenit.or-y or possession 
of the United States. 

(bb) Telemariceter means any person 
wbo, in connection with telemarketing, 
Initiates or receives telepbone calls to 
or from a customer or donor. 

(ee) Telemarketing means a plan. pro­
gram, or campaign whlch is conducted 
to induce the purchase of goods or serv­
ices or a charitable contribution, by 
use of ODe or more telepbones and 
wblch involves more than one inLer­
state telephone caU. The term does not 
Incl ude tbe aoltcltatlon of sales 
through the mailing of a catalog 

§310.3 

which: contains a. wri tten description 
or illustration of the goods or services 
offored for sale: Includes the business 
address of the seller: includes multiple 
pagos or written material or illustra.­
t ions: and has been lS8ued not. less fre­
quently tbn..n once a year , when the 
person making the soltcitatlon does 
not solicit customers by telephone but 
only receives calls In itiated by cus­
tomers In response to the catalog a nd 
during those calls takes orders only 
Without further solicitation. For pur­
poses of the previous sentence, the 
term "fUr t her solicitatIon" does not 
Include providing the customer with 
information about, or attempting to 
sell. any other Item Included In tbe 
same catalQfr which prompted the cus­
tomer's call or In a substantially simi­
lar catalog. 

(dd) Upullinll meLDS soliciting the 
purchase of ,ood8 or services following 
an Initial transaction during a single 
telephone call . The upeell is a separate 
telemarketing transaction, not a con­
tinuation of the Initial transaction. An 
"extemal upsell" Is a soUcltatlon 
made by or on behalf of a seller dif­
ferent rI-om tbe seller In the Initial 
transaction, regardless a! whether tbe 
InitIal transaction and the subsequent 
solicItation ar e made by the same tele­
marketer . An "Internal upsell " is a so­
licitation made by or on llehaU of the 
r.ame se ller as In the Initia l t r ans­
aotlon, regardless of whether the Ini­
t ial transaotlon and subsequent solici­
tation are made by the same tele­
marketer. 

,:uo.s Deceptive telemarketing actt or 
practiCfll. 

(a) Prohibited ckceptfue telemarketing 
act! or proctlca. It. Is a deceptive tele­
marketing a.ct or practice and a viola­
tion of this Rule for a.ny seller or tele­
marketer to engage In the following 
conduct: 

(1) Before a customer p&yst for goods 
or services otfered. fa1Ung to disclose 

• WbeD a Miler or tf!lemarkeur~. or d1-
NIC .... a CUlt.omer to UII8. a courier to tranB­
port payment. the Miler or telemarketer 
must make Ute d1acloeures rtlQulted by 
1310.3(a)(1) before I18Ddtnr .. courier to pick 
up payment or autborl~tlon for payment, or 

C<'o~Ii~tlN 
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§ 310.3 

truthfully, In 9. clear and conspicuous 
manner, the following material infor­
mation: 

(I) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any 
goods or services that are the subject 
of the sales offer: Z 

(11) All material restrictions. limita­
t ions. or conditions to purchase, re­
ceive, or use the goods or services that 
are the Bubject of the sales offer; 

(111) If the selier haa a policy of not 
making refunds. cancellations. ex­
changes, or repurchases, a. statement 
informing the customer that th1g Is the 
seller's poUcy; or. If the seller or tele­
marketer makes a representation 
about a refund, cancellation, exchange. 
Of repurchase policy. a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of sucb 
policy; 

(Iv) In any prize promotion, the odds 
Of being able to receive the prize. and, 
U the odds are not calculable in ad­
vance, the factors used In calculating 
the odds: t hat no purchase or payment 
Is required to win a prize or to partici­
pate In a prize promotion and that any 
purchase or payment win not Increase 
the person's chances of winning: and 
the no-purchaselno-payment method oC 
part icipating in the prize promotion 
with either Instructions on how to par­
t icipate or an address or local or toll­
froe telephone n umber to which cus­
tomers may write or call Cor Informa­
tion on how to partiCipate; 

(v) All material costs or conditions 
to receive or redeem a prize that is the 
subject of the prize promotion: 

(vt) In the sale of any goods or serv­
Ices represented to protect, Insure, or 
otherwise ltmlt a customer's Iiabtllty 
In the event of unauthorized use of the 
customer's credJt card, the limits on a 
cardholder's liability for unauthorized 
use of a credit card pursuant to 15 
U,S,C, 1643: and 

(vII) If the oCCer includes a negative 
option feature, all material terms and 

directJng II. cUlltomer to have a collfier pick 
up paymen t or authorization for pa.yme.ot. 

'For oUen of consumer credit products 
subjec t to tbe Trutb in Lending Act, 15 
U.S.C. 1601 et $eq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR 
226, compliance with the di8ClosW'6 re(lwre­
mente under the Truth In Lending Act and 
Refula.tlon Z shllll constitllte compliance 
with 1310.3(1.)(1)(1) of this Rille. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edition) 

condJtlons of the negative option fea­
ture, Including, but not limited to. the 
Cact that the customer's account will 
be charged unless the customer takes 
an affirmative action to avoid the 
charge(s), the date(s) the charge(s) will 
be submitted Cor paymen t, and t he spe­
cWc steps the customer must take to 
avoid the charge(s). 

(2) Misrepresenting, directly or by 
implication, In the sale of goods or 
services any of the Collowlng material 
InCormation: 

(I) The total cost:.8 to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of. any 
goods or services that are the s ubject 
of a sales offer; 

(II ) Any material restriction, limita­
tion. or condition to purchase. receive, 
or use goods or services that are the 
subject of a sales offer: 

(Itt) Any material aspect of the per­
formance, em cacy. nature, or central 
characteristics of goods or services 
that are the subject of a sales oCfer; 

(Iv) Any material aspect of the na­
ture or terms of the seller 's refund, 
cancellation , exchange, or repurchase 
policies; 

(v) Any material aspect of a prize 
promotion IncludJng. but not limited 
to, the odds of being able to receive a 
prize. the nature or value of a prize, or 
that a purchase or payment is requ ired 
to win a prize or to par t icipate In a 
prize promotion; 

(vI) Any material aspect of an 1nvest­
ment opportunity Including, but not 
limited to, risk. Itquidity, earnings po­
tential. or profitabilit y: 

(vi i) A seller's or telemarketer's af­
nllation with, or endorsement or spon­
sorshJp by, any person or government 
entity: 

(viii ) That any customer needs of­
fered goods or services to provide pro­
tections a customer a lready bas pursu­
ant to 15 U.S.C. 1643; or 

(Ix) Any material aspect of a nega­
tive option reatu.r6 including. but not 
limited to. t be Cact that the customer's 
account wUl be charged unless tbe cus­
tomer takes an affirmative action to 
avoid the charge(s). the date(s) the 
charge(s) will be submitted Cor pay­
ment, and the speclnc steps the cus­
tomer must take to avoid the 
charge(s). 
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truthfully, Ln a c lear and conspicuous 
manner. t he following material Infor­
mation: 

(I) The total costs to purchase, re· 
celve, or use, and the quantity of. any 
goods or services that are t he subject 
of the salea offer: 2 

(11) All material restrictions. UmJta­
t iona, Or conditions to purchase, re­
ce ive. or use the goods or services tbat 
are the BUbJect of the sales offer: 

(1m u the seller bas a policy of not 
making rel\lndB. cancellations. ex­
changes, or repurchases, a statement 
Informing t he customer that this is the 
fieBe r's policy; or. If th e seller or tele­
marketer makes a representat.ion 
about a ref\md, cancellation. exchange. 
or repurchase policy. a statem ent of all 
material ter ms and condJtlons of such 
policy: 

(Iv) In any prl.:r.e promotion, th e Odde 
of being able to receive the prize. and, 
U the odds are not calculable in ad­
vance. the factors used In calculating 
the od.da: that no purcbase or payment. 
la r9Q,uired to win a prize or to partici­
pate In a prize promotion and t.hat any 
purcbase or payment. will not increase 
!.be person'a chances of winning; and 
t.he no-purcbaselno-paymen t met.bod of 
par ticipating in t.he prize promot.ion 
with eltber Instructions on bow to par­
t icipate or an address or local or toll­
free telephone n umber t o which cus­
tomers may wri te or call for Informa­
tion on how to par t icipate; 

(v) All materia l costs or condl t tona 
to r eceive or redeem a prize t bat Is the 
subject at tbe prize promotion ; 

(vi) In the sale ot any goods or serv­
ices represented to protect, Insure, or 
otberwise limit a customer's liability 
In the event ot unauthor1z.ed use ot the 
cUlltomer 'a credit card, the Um1ta on a 
cardholder'a liability for unauthorized 
u.ee at a. credit card PUl'Sua.nt to IS 
U.S .C. 1643; and 

(viI) It the offer Includes a negative 
option feat.ure. all material tertrul and 

dlreet.1llr a cutomer to have a cowier pick 
up pt.ymellt or autborlu.tloll for payment.. 

I For oUer. of COllBurnor ~t. producu 
lubJect. to the Trutb ill Lendlnr Act, lli 
U.S.C. 1601 el UQ .. and Regulation Z, 12 CF R. 
236, compliance with t he dl8Closure require­
menta under the Truth In Lendlnr Act. and 
R.elrUlatlon Z ahall conatltute compliance 
wi t h ISI0.3(a)(IXn of thla Rule. 

16 OR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edmon) 

conditions of the negative optton fea­
ture. Including. but not lim ited to, the 
fact that t he customer's a.ccount will 
be cha.rged unle88 the cUlltomer takes 
an affi rmat.lve action to a.vold th e 
charge(s). the date(s) the ch arge(s) will 
be submitted for pay men t, and t he spe­
clCic steps t be customel' must t ake to 
a void t he charge{II). 

(2) Misrepresent ing, direotly or by 
tm p1icatlon , In t he sale of goods or 
services any of the rollowlng material 
information: 

(I) The total COllts to purcha.se. re­
ceive. or usa. and t he Quantity 0[, any 
goodll or servicell that a re the lIubject 
of a sales offer ; 

(II) Any maLerial restriction. UmJt.a­
tlon. or condition to purchase, receive. 
or use goods or services that are the 
subject of a .... lea offar; 

(UI) Any ma.terial aspect of the per­
for mance. efficacy. nature. or central 
characterl8tlca of goods or services 
that are the aubJect ot a wes offer; 

(tv) Any mat.erla.l aspect of the na­
ture or terms ot the seller'lI refund, 
C&Dcellatlon. exchange, or repurch ase 
policies; 

(v) Any material aspect of a prize 
promotion Including. but not limited 
to. th e odds of being able to receive a 
prize, th e nature or value of a pl'lze, or 
th a t a purchase or payment Is required 
to win a prize or to part iCipate In a 
prize promotion ; 

(vI) Any materia l aspect of an invest.­
men t opportun ity Including. but not 
limi ted to. rlllk . liquidi ty, earnings po­
tential. or profi tabUlty; 

(vii) A selle r 'lI or telemarketer 's af­
" Hatlon with, or endorsemen t or spon­
sorship by, any person or government 
entity; 

(viII) Thac. any cUlltomer needs of­
fered goods or servlcell to provide pro­
tectloDa .. cUlltomer already has pursu­
ant. to IS U.S.O, 1M3; or 

(lJe) Any material aspect ot a nega­
tive optlOD feature IncludIng, but. not 
limited to. the fact that the CUlltomer's 
account. will be charred unless t.be cus­
tomer takes an amrrna.tlve action to 
avoid the eharre(s), the date(a) the 
charge(s) will be submitted for pay­
ment. and the specln c lleeps t he cus­
tomer must take to avoid the 
charge(s). 
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(3) Causing billing Information to be 
submitted for payment, or collecting or 
attempting to collect payment for 
goods or services or a charitable con­
tribution, directly or indJrectly, with­
out t he customer'S or donor 's express 
verlClable authorization, except when 
the method of payment used Is a credit 
card subject to protections of the 
Truth In Lending Act and Regulat.ion 
Z,' or a debi t card subject to the pro­
tections of the ElectrOnic Fund Trans­
fer Act and RegUlation E.4 Such au­
thOrization shall be deemed verutable 
If any of the fo llowing means Is em­
ployed: 

(I) Express written authorizat.lon by 
the customer or donor, which Includes 
the customer's or donor's signature; 5 

(it) Express oral authorization which 
Is audio-recorded and made available 
upon request to the customer or donor, 
and the customer's or donor's bank or 
other billing enti ty, and which evi­
dences clearly both the customer's or 
donor's authorizatlon or payment for 
the goods or services or charitable con­
tribution that are the subject of the 
telemarketing transaction and the cus­
tomer's or donor's receipt of all of the 
following Information: 

(A) The number of debits, charges, or 
payments (If more than one): 

(B) The date(s) the deblt(s), 
chuge(s), or payment(s) wtll be sub­
mitted for payment; 

(e) The amount(s) of the debtt(s}, 
charge{s), or payment(s); 

(0) The c ustomer's or donor's name; 
(E) The customer's or donor's billing 

information, Identified with sufficient 
specifiCity such that the customer or 
donor understands what account w1l1 
be used to collect payment for the 
goods or services or charitable con­
tribution that are the subject of the 
telemarketing t ransaction; 

' Trutb l.D Lend.lng Act, 15 U.S.C. 1601 et 
uq., and Regulation Z. 12 CFR part 226. 

'ElectroniC Fund Tran8rer Act, 15 U.S.C. 
1683 II stq., and Regulation E, 12 CFR part ... 

o For purpolII:IB or thl8 Rule. the term "8ig­
nature" 811all Include an electroniC or digital 
form oC algnature, to tbe extent tbat sucb 
Corm or IlIgnature 18 !'$Cognized. &II a valid IlIg­
nature under applicable CederaJ law or .tate 
contract law. 

§310.3 

(F) A telephone number for customer 
or donor inquiry that Is answered dur­
ing normal business hours; and 

(G) The date of the customer's or do­
nor's oral authorization: or 

(lit) Written confirmation of the 
transaction. Identlfled in a clear and 
conspicuous manner as such on the 
outside of the envelope, sent to the 
customer or donor via first clasa mall 
prior to the submiS$ton for payment of 
the c ustomer's or donor's billing InfOr­
mation, and that Includes all of the In­
formation contained In 
§§310.3(a)(3)(U)(A)-(G) and a clear and 
cnnsplcuous statement of the proce­
dures by which the customer or donor 
can obtain a refund from the seller or 
telemarketer or charitable organJza­
t lon in the event the confirmation Is 
Inaccurate: provided, however, that this 
means of authorization sha ll not be 
deemed verifiable in Instances In which 
goods or services are offered In a trans­
action involvIng a free-to-pay conver­
sion and preacqulred account informa­
tion. 

(4) Making a false or misleading 
statement to Induce any person to pay 
for goods or services or to Induce a 
charitable contribution. 

(b) Asmtifl9 and facllitatin9. It Is a de­
ceptive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of this Rule for a per­
son to provide substantial assistance or 
support to any seller or telemarketer 
when t hat person knows or consciously 
avoids knowing t hat the seller or tele· 
marketer Is engaged In any act or prac­
tice that violates §l310,3(a), (c) or (d), 
or §310.4 of this Rule. 

(c) Credit card laundering. Except as 
expressly permitted by the appltcable 
credit card system. It is a deceptIve 
telemarketing act or practice and a 
violation of this Rule for: 

(1) A merchant to present to or de­
posit into, or cause another to present 
to or deposi t into. the credit card sys­
tem for payment, a credit card sales 
draft generated by a telemarketing 
transaction that is not the result of a 
telemarkettng credit card transaction 
between the cardholder and the mer­
chant; 

(2) Any person to employ, solicit, or 
otherwise cause a merchant. or an em­
ployee, representative, or agent of the 
merchant, to present to or deposit into 

357 

Sipulated Judgment and Permanent Order of Injunction 
Appendix A 

Federal Trade Commission 

(3) Causing billing Information t o be 
submitted for payment, or collecting or 
attempting to collect payment for 
goods or services or a chari table con­
tribution, di rectly or indirectly, with­
out. t he customer'. or donor 's expre88 
verlrtable authorization , except when 
the method of payment used is a credit 
card subject to protections of t he 
Trut h In Lending Act and Regulat.lon 
Z, ' or a debit card subject to the pro­
tections of t.he Electronic Fund Tra.ns­
fer Act and Regwatton E , 4 Such au­
thorization sha ll be deemed verifiable 
tr a ny of t he following means Is em­
ployed: 

(I) Expre88 wrltten authortzaLlon by 
the customer or donor, whlcb Includes 
lObe customer's or donor's signature;. 

(II) Express oral authOrization which 
Is audio-recorded and made available 
upon reQuest to t.be customer or donor, 
and the customer 's or donor 's bank or 
other bUllng entity, and which evi­
dences clearly botb the customer'l or 
donor 's au t horization of payment (or 
the gooda or services or charitable con­
t ribut ion that are the subject o( the 
telemarketing transaction and t he cus­
tomer 's or donor's receipt o( all of the 
fol lowing information: 

(A) The number of debits, charges, or 
payments (If more than one); 

(B ) The date(s) the debit(s), 
chal'ge(s), or payment(s) wtll be sub­
mitted for payment; 

(C) The amount(s) of the deblt(s}, 
cbarge{s), or payment(s); 

(D) The customer's or donor's name; 
(E) The customer 'S or donor's billing 

Information, Identified with sufficient 
lpeclficl ty such that the customer or 
donor understands wbat account will 
be used to collect payment for the 
goods or services or cbarttable con­
tribution that are the subject of t he 
telemarketing transaction; 

ITruth LD Lendlna Act. 1~ U.S.C. 1601 d 
uti .. and Replatlon Z, 12 en put 2311, 

• Electrolllc Fund -rnn.Cer Act, 15 U.S.C, 
1683 t! WI .. and Reaulad.on E, 12 CPR pt.rt ... 

I For purpoeee oC tbll Rule. the term '"a1r­
nature'" Ihalii nolude lUI electroniC or dirltal 
form or Ilrnature, to the extent that lucb 
form or a1J11&ture II reooa-nlzed u a valid s.tr' 
nature under appllcablll Ceder&! law or ltate 
contract law. 

5310.3 

(F) A telepbone number for customer 
or donor inQ.ulry that Is answered dur­
Ing normal buslne8fJ hours; and 

(0) The date of the customer', or do­
nor's oral authorization; or 

(Itt) Written confinnatlon of the 
t ransaction , Identlrted In a clear and 
conspicuous manner as such on the 
outside o( the envelope. sent to the 
customer or donor via fi rs t olass mail 
prior to the submlaelon for payment ot 
the customer's or donor 's btlltng Infor­
mation. and t hat Includee all of the In­
formati on contained In 
U310.3(a )(3)(11)(A)-(0) and a clear and 
conspicuous statement of the proce­
dures by which the CUlJtomer or donor 
can. obtain a ref\lnd !'rom the seller or 
telemarketer or charitable orga.nJza­
tlon in the event the confinnatlon Is 
Inaccurate; provided , however , t hat this 
means o( authorization shall not be 
deemed verifiable In Instances In which 
goods or servioea ara offered in a trans­
action involvl.ng a free-to-pay conver­
l ion and preacqulred account informa­
tion, 

(4) Ma king a false or misleading 
statement to Induce a ny person to pay 
(or goods or services or to Induce a 
charitable con tribution . 

(b) Aul.!tfng and faCflltatfng. It Is a de­
ceptive telema.rketlng act or practice 
and a violation of t bl s Rule for a per­
son to provide suh8ta.ntla! assistanoe or 
support to any soller or telsmarketer 
when t hat pereon knOWI or consciously 
avold.8 knowing that the seller or tele­
marketer Is engaged In any act or pra.c­
tloo that violates H310,3(a). (c) or (d ), 
or § 310.4 of thls Rule. 

(c) Credit card laundering. Except as 
expressly permitted by the applicable 
credit card system, It Is a decept ive 
telemarketing act or practice and a 
violation of this Rule for: 

(1) A merchant to present to or de­
posit Into. or cause another to present 
to or deposit Into. the credit card sys­
tem (or payment, a credit card sales 
draft renerated by a telemarketing 
transaction that Is not the reswt of a 
telemarketing credit card transaction 
between the cardholder and the mer-­
chant; 

(2) Any person to employ, solicit. or 
ot herwise cause It merchant. or an em~ 
ployee, representative. or agen t of the 
merchan t, to present to or deposit into 
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the credit card system for payment. a 
credit card sales draft generated by a 
telemarketing transaction that is Dot 
the result of a telemarketing credit 
card transaction between the card­
holder and the merchant: or 

(3) Any person to obtain access to t he 
credit card system through the use of a 
business relationship or an affi liation 
wi th a merchant. when such access Is 
not authorized by the merchant agree­
ment or the appUcable credit card sys­
t<>m. 

(d) ProhibHed deceptive acts or prac­
tices In the solicitation of charitable con­
tributionJ. It Is a fraudulent charitable 
solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing 
act or practice, and a violation of this 
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting 
charitable contributions to misrepre­
sent. directly or by ImplicatioD, any of 
the following material Information: 

(l) The nature. purpose. or mJsslon of 
any entlt.y on behalf oC which a chari­
table contribution Is being requested; 

(2) That any charitable contribution 
Is tax deductible in whole or In part; 

(3) The purpose for which any chari­
table contribution will be used; 

(4) The percentage or amount of any 
charitable contribution that wUl go to 
a charitable organization or to any 
particular char itable program; 

(5) Any material aspect of a prize 
promotion Including, bu t not limited 
to: the odds of being able to r eceive a 
prize; the nature or value of a prize; or 
that a charitable contribution is re­
Quired to win a pr ize or to par ticipate 
In a prize promotion: or 

(6) A charitable organization's or 
telemarketer's arctUation with, or en­
dorsement or sponsorship by, any per­
son or government entity. 

f 310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Abusive conduct generally. It Is an 
abusive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of this Rule for any 
seller or telemarketer to engage In the 
rollowing conduct: 

(1) Threats. Intimidation, or the use 
of profane or obscene language; 

(2) Requesting or receiving payment 
of any fee or consideration for goods or 
services represented to remove deroga­
tory Information from, or Improve, a 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edition) 

person's credit history, credit record, 
or credit rating until: 

(I) The time frame In which the seller 
has represented all of the goods or 
services will be provided to that person 
has expired: and 

(tI) The seller has provided the person 
with documentation In t he form of a 
consumer report from a consumer re­
porting agency dsmonstratlng t hat t he 
promised results have been achieved, 
such report having been Issued more 
than six months after the results were 
achieved. Nothing In this Rule should 
be construed to affect the reQ.ulrement 
In the Fair Credit Reporting Act. 15 
U.S.C. 1681. that a consumer report 
may only be obtained for a specified 
permissible purpose; 

(3) Requeating or receiving payment 
of any fee or consideration Crom a per­
son for goods or services represented to 
recover or otherwise assist In the re­
turn of money or any other Item of 
value paid for by. or promised to, that 
pel"8on in a previOUS telemarketing 
transaction, until seven (7) business 
days after such money or other Item Is 
delivered to that person. This provision 
shall not apply to goods or services 
provided to a person by a licensed at­
torney; 

(4) Requesting or receiving payment 
of any fee or consideration In advance 
of obtaining a loan or other extension 
of cred.lt when the seller or tele­
mar keter has guaran teed or rep­
resented a h igh likelihood of success in 
obtaining or arranging a loan or other 
extension of cr edit for a person; 

(5) DisclOSing or receiving. for con­
sideration. unencrypted consumer ac­
count numbel'8 for use In tele­
marketing; provided, however, that this 
paragraph shall not. apply to the disclo­
sure or receipt of a. customer's or do­
nor's billing information to process a. 
payment for goods or services or a 
charitable contribution pursuant to a 
transaction; 

(6) causing bllling Information to be 
submitted for payment, direct.ly or in­
directly. without the express Informed 
consent of the customer or donor. In 
any telemarketing transaction. the 
seiler or telemarketer must obtain the 
express informed consent of the cus­
tomer or donor to be charged for the 
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the credit ca.rd system Cor payment. & 

credJt card 8&les draft. genera.ted by a 
telemarketing tra.nsa.ctlon that Is not 
the result oC a telemarketing credJt 
card transaction between the card­
holder IUld the merchlUlt; or 

(3) Any porson to obtain access to the 
credit card system througb the use of a 
business relatlonsb lp or an affi liation 
wltb a mercbant. wben sucb access Is 
not. authorized by the merchant agree­
ment or the applicable credJt card sye­
tern. 

(d) PTohibited d«eptive act3 or proe­
ticu In the $olicitation 0/ charitable con­
tributioru. It Is a fraudulent charitable 
8Oltcltatlon. a deceptive telemarketing 
act or practice, and a violation oC thlll 
Rule Cor any telemarketer sollcltiDg 
charItable contMbuttons to misrepre­
sent, dJrectly or by Implication. any oC 
the following material tnfonnatlon: 

(1) The nature, purpose. or mJsaton or 
any entity on behalf of whJch a chari­
table contribution Is being requested: 

(2) That any charitable contribution 
La tax deductible In whole or In part; 

(3) Tbe pu.rpoee ror which any chari­
table contribution will be used; 

(4) The percentage or amount of any 
cbaMtable contribution that will go to 
a oharitable organization or to any 
particular charitable program: 

(5) Any material aspect of a prize 
promotion IncludJng, bu t not limi ted 
to: the odds of being a ble to receive a 
prize; the nature or value oC a prize: or 
that a charitable contribution Is re­
quired to win a prize or to participate 
in a prize promotion: or 

(6) A cbaMtable organization's or 
telemarketer's affiliation witb, or en­
dorsement or sponsorship by, any per­
son or government entity. 

1310.4 Abusive telemarketin, acta or 
practice8. 

(a) AblU'ive conduct generallJl. H. is an 
abualve telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation oC thls Rule Cor any 
seller or telemarketer to engage in the 
followln8' conduct: 

(1) Threats, Intimidation, or the uae 
oC prorane or obscene language; 

(2) Requesting or receiving payment 
oC any fee or consideration for goods or 
serllces represented to remove deroga­
tory Information from, or Improve, a 

16 CFR Ch. I (1 -I~ Edmon) 

person's credit hJstory, credit. record, 
or credit rat.ing until: 

(I) The t 1me !rame In whlcb tbe seller 
bas represented all of the goods or 
servIces will be provided to that person 
has expired; and 

( II ) The seller baa provided the person 
with docum entation In the Corm Of a 
consumer report from a consumer re­
porting agency demonstrating tbat the 
promised results have been achieved, 
such report having heen iuued more 
than IIlx months alter the results were 
achieved. Nothing In this Rule should 
be construed to arrect the requirement 
in the Fair Credit Report!.ng Act, 15 
U.S.C. 1681 , that a consumer report 
may only be obtained ror a spectoed 
permlulble purpose; 

(3) Requesting or receiving payment 
of any fee or consideration from a per­
lIOn for goods or services represented to 
recover or otberwise assist In the re­
turn of money or any other Item of 
value paid Cor by, or promised to, that 
person In a previoua telemarketln8' 
transaction, until &even (7) business 
d&y1 alter such money or other Item Is 
delivered to that person. ThIs provision 
sball not apply t o goods or servioes 
provided to a person by a licensed at.­
torney; 

(4) Requesting or receiving payment 
or any ree or conelderatlon In advance 
of obtain ing a loan or other extension 
oC credit when t be seller or tele­
marketer haa guaranteed or rep­
resented a high lIkelibood of succeu in 
obtaJnlng or arranging & loan or other 
extension of credit Cor a person; 

(5) Disclostng or receiving, for con­
sideration, unencrypted consumer ac· 
count. number!! for use In tele­
marketing; provided, however, that this 
paragraph 8hall not apply to the d1sclo­
sure or receipt. oC a customer's or do­
nor's billing information to process a 
payment Cor goods or services or a 
charitable contribution pureuant to a 
transaction; 

(6) O&u8ln8' btlling Information to be 
submitted ror payment, directly or in­
directly, without tbe exprea8 informed 
consent of the customer or donor. In 
any teiemarkettng transact.lon, the 
seiler or telema.rketer must obtain the 
expreu informed consent of the CUB-­
tomer or donor to be charged ror the 
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goods or services or charitable con· 
trlbution and to be cbarged using the 
Identl.ned account. In any tele­
marketing t ransaction Involving 
preacqulred account Information, t he 
requirements In paragraphs (0.)(6)(1) 
through ( II) of this section must be met 
to evidence express Informed consent. 

(I) In any telemarketing transaction 
Involving preacquired account Informa· 
tlon and a free·to·pay conversion fea· 
ture, the seller or telemarketer must: 

(A) obtain from the customer, at a 
minimum, t he last fou r (4) digits of the 
account number to be charged: 

(B ) obtain from the customer his or 
her express agreement to be charged 
for the gOOds or services and to be 
charged using tbe account number pur· 
suant to paragraph (aX6XiXA) of tMs 
section: and, 

(C) make and maintain an audio re­
cording of the entire telemarketing 
transaction. 

( II) In any other telemarketing trans· 
action Involving preacqulred account 
info rmation not described In paragraph 
(0.)(6)(1) of this section. the seller or 
telemarketer must: 

(A) at a minimum, Identtry the ac· 
count to be charged wit h su[ficlent 
speclf1clty for t he customer or donor to 
understand what account will be 
charged: and 

(B) obtain from the customer or 
donor his or her express agreement t o 
be charged for the goods or services 
and to be charged uSing t he account 
number Ident ified purs l.l3.n t to para· 
graph (a)(6)(II)(A) of this section : or 

(7) Fatllng to t ransmit or cause to be 
transmitted the telephone n umber, 
and, when made available by the tele­
marketer's carrier, the name of the 
telemarketer, to an y caller Identifica· 
t lon service in use by a recipient of a 
telemarketing call; provided that It 
shall not be a violation to substitute 
(ror the name and phone number used 
In. or btlled fqr, making the call) tbe 
name of the seller or charitable organl· 
mtlon on behalf of which a tele· 
marketing call Is placed. and the sell· 
er's or charitable organization's CWl-­
tamer or donor service telephone num· 
ber, which Is answered during regular 
business hours. 

(b) Pattern of calis. (1) It Is an abusive 
telemarketing act or practice and a 

§ 31D.4 

violation of this Rule for a tele· 
marketer to engage In, or for a seller 
to cause a telemarketer to engage In, 
the fo llowing conduct: 

( I) Causing any telephone to ring, or 
engaging any person In telephone con­
versation , r epeatedly or continuously 
with Intent to a nnoy, abuse, or harass 
any person at t he called number; 

( tI ) Denying or Interfering in any 
way, directly or Indirectly, with a per-­
son's right to be placed on any r egistry 
of names and/or telephone numbers of 
persons who do not wish to receive out,. 
bound telephone calls established to 
comply with §310.4{b)(l)(Il1): 

(111) Initiating any outbound tele· 
phone call to a person when: 

(A) that person previously has stated 
that he or she does not wish to receive 
an outbound telephone call made by or 
on behaU or the seller whose goods or 
services are being ortered or made on 
behalf or the charitable organization 
for which a charitable contribution is 
being solicited: or 

(B) that person's telephone number Is 
on the "do·not.-call" registry, main· 
talned by the Commission, of persons 
who do not wish to receive outbound 
telephone calls to Induce the purchase 
of goods or services unless the seller 

(i) has obtained the express agree-­
ment. in wri t ing. of such person to 
place calls to that person. Such written 
agreement shall clearly evidence such 
person's a ut horization t hat calls made 
by or on bebaIr of a specifi c party may 
be placed to that person , and shall in· 
clude t he telephone number to which 
the calls may be placed and the signa-­
ture a Of t hat person: or 

(Ii) has an established bUsiness reta-­
tlonship with such person, and that 
person bas not stated that he or she 
does not wish to receive outbound tele­
phone calls under paragraph 
(b)(l)(IUXA) of this section; or 

(Iv) Abandoning any outbound tele­
phone call . An outbound telephone call 
Is "abandoned" under this section 1£ a 
person answers It and the telemarketer 

- For pl1fl)Oe8ll or t bla Rule, tbe term "alg­
natlll"ll" allaH include an electronle or digital 
rorm ot fI1gnature, to tba axtent that aucb 
rorm or signature Is r llCQ&'nl:r.ed all a valid Blg­
nature under applicable roderal law or lltate 
contract law . 
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good8 or services or charitable con· 
t rlbutlon and to be cbarged using tbe 
Identlne<! a.ooount. In any tele­
market ing transaction Involving 
preaoqulred account Information, the 
reQulrementa In paragraphs (a)(6)(1) 
through (II ) of this section must be met 
to evidence expl'ess Informed consent. 

(I) In any telemarketing transaction 
Involving preacQ.ulred account Informa· 
tlon and a frae·to-pay conversion relY 
ture. tbe seller or telemarketer must: 

(A) obtain from the customer. at a 
mJnlmum. the last four (4) digita of the 
account number to be cbarged: 

(B) obtaIn from the customer his or 
her express agreement to be charged 
for the il'oods or services and to be 
cbarged u&Lng the account number pur­
suant to paragraph (aX6XI)(A) of this 
section: and, 

(C) make and maintain an audio r&­

cording of the entire telemarketing 
transaction. 

(II) In any other telemarketLng tran.s-. 
action Involving preacquJred ac<:Ount 
information not described in paragraph 
(a)(6)(1) of this section, the seller or 
telemarketer must: 

(A) at a minimum. Identify the ac· 
count. to be cbarged with sufficient 
speclnclty for the customer or donor to 
understand what account wUl be 
charged: and 

(B) obtain (l'om the customer or 
donor his or her express agreement. to 
be charged for the goods or services 
and to be charged using the account 
number Identified pursuant to para· 
graph (a)(6)(II)(A) of this section: or 

(7) FaUiog to transmit or cause to be 
transmitted the telephone number, 
and. when made avaUable by the tele-­
marketer'S carrier. the name of the 
telemarketer, to any caller Ident.IOca· 
tlon service I.n use by a recipient of a 
telemarketing call; provided that It 
aball not be a violation to substitute 
(for the name and phone number used 
In. or billed for. making the call) t.be 
name of the seller or charitable organl· 
u.tlon on behalf of which a tele· 
marketing cal l 18 placed, and the sell· 
er's or charitable organization's Cll&­
tomer or donor service telephone num· 
bel', which Is answered durtng regular 
business hours. 

(b) PatteNI 0/ calls. (1) It Is an abusive 
telemarketing act or practice and a 

,31004 

V1olatlon of t.hls Rule for a tele­
marketer to engage In, or for a seller 
to cause a telemarketer to engage tn. 
the following conduct: 

( I) Caus ing any telephone to ring, or 
engaging any person In telephone con· 
vel'8&tlon. r epeatedly or continuously 
with Intent to annoy, abtlse. or harass 
any person at the called number; 

( It) Denying or Interfering In any 
way, directly or Indirectly, with a per­
son'8 right to be placed on any registry 
or names andlor telepbone numbers of 
pel'8Ons who do not wish to receive out,. 
bound telephone calls established to 
comply with 1310.4(bXl)(UI): 

(III) initiating any outbound tele­
phone call to a person when: 

(A) tbat person previously baa stated 
that he or abe does not wish to receive 
an outbound telephone call made by or 
on bebaU of the seHer whose goods or 
services are being offered or made on 
behalf of the chlU1table organization 
for which a charitable contribution is 
being solicited.: or 

(B ) that penon'8 telepbone number is 
on the "do·notrcall " registry. main· 
talned by the Commt88lon. or persons 
wbo do not wish to receive outbound 
telophone calls to Induce the purchase 
of gooda or services unless the seUer 

(I) haa obtained the eXpN!88 agree­
ment, In writ ing, of such person to 
place calls to t hat person. Such written 
agreement. shall clearly evidence such 
person's authorization that calls made 
by or on behalf or a specific party may 
be placed to that person, and shall In· 
elude the telephone number to wblch 
the calls may be placed and the signa· 
ture' of that person: or 

(Ii) haa an e&tabllsbed business rela­
tionship with such peraon. and tha.t 
person baa not stated. that he or she 
does not wish to receive outbound tele-­
pbone calls under paragraph 
(bXIXIlIXA) of this section: or 

(Iv) Aba.ndonlng any outbound tele-­
phone C&ll. An outbound telephone call 
Is "abandoned" under this section tr a 
peraon answers It and t.be telemarketer 

• For pllJ"ll<IMII or t.hll Rule, the t.um "ei&:­
nl.ture" .hrJl i.nclude an elClttronJe or dll1tal 
rorm ot .ignature, to tbe e:rtent that '!leb 
tonn or lirnll.ture I. recccnited ... II. valid IIlg­
natufe under I.pplicAble federal law or at.ate 
oontnt.ct 11.". 
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does not connect the call to a sales rep­
resentative wi thin two (2) seconds of 
the person's completed greeting. 

(v) Initiating any outbound telephone 
call that delivers a prerecorded mes­
sage. other than a prerecorded message 
permitted for compliance with the call 
abandonment safe harbor in 
§310.4(b)(4)(IH), unless: 

(A) in any such call to Induce the 
purchase of any good or service. t he 
seller has obtained from the recipient 
of the call an express agreement, in 
writing, that: 

(I) The seller obtained only after a 
clear and conspicuous disclosure that 
the purpose of the agreement is to au­
thOrize the seller to place prer ecorded 
calls to such person: 

(ii) The seller obtained without r e­
quiring, d irectly or indirectly. that the 
agreement be executed as a condition 
of purchasing any good or service: 

(iii) Evidences the wllllngness of the 
recipient of the call to receive calls 
that deliver prerecorded messages by 
or on beha lf of a specific seBer; and 

(iv) Includes such person's telephone 
number and s ignature;' and 

(B) In any such call to Induce the 
purchase of any good or service, or to 
induce a charitable contribution from a 
mem ber of. or previous donor to, a non­
profit charitable organization on whose 
behalf t he call Is m ade, the seller or 
telemarketer: 

(i) Allows the telephone to ring for at 
least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) 
rings before disconnecting an unan­
swered call; and 

(ii) Within two (2) seconds after the 
completed greeting of the person 
called, plays a prerecorded message 
that prompt ly provides the disclosures 
required by §310.4(d) or (el. followed 
Immediately by a disclosure of one or 
both of t he following: 

(Al In the case of a call that could be 
answered In person by a consumer, that 
the person called can use an automated 
interactive voice and/or keypress-acti­
vated opt-out mechanism to assert a 
Do Not Call request pursuant to 

• For purposes oC this Rule, the term "sIg­
nature" shall Include an electronic or digital 
form of signature , to the extent that such 
Corm of signature is r ecognized. B.S a val1d sig­
nature under applicable federal law or state 
contract law. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edition) 

§310.4(b)(1)(ttl)(A) at any time during 
the message. The mechanism must: 

(1) Automatically add the number 
called to the seller's entlty~speclfic Do 
Not Call list; 

(2) Once invoked. Immediately dis­
connect the call ; and 

(3) Be available for use at any time 
during the message: and 

(B) In the case of a call that could be 
answered by an answering machine or 
voicemall service, that the person 
called can use a toll-free telephone 
n umber to assert a Do Not Call request 
pursuant to §310.4(b)(1)(III)(A). The 
number provided must connect directly 
to an automated Interactive voice or 
k eypress-activated opt-out mechanism 
that: 

(1) Au tomatically adds the number 
called to the seller 's entity-specific Do 
Not Call list: 

(2) Immediat ely thereafter dis­
connects the call; and 

(3) Is accessible at any time through­
out the duration of the telemarketing 
campaign; and 

(iii) Complies w1tb a ll other require­
ments of this part and other applicable 
federal and state laws, 

(0) Any call that complies with a ll 
applicable requirements of this para­
graph (v) shall not be deemed to violate 
§310.4(b)(1)(1v) of this part. 

(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply 
to any outbound telephone call that de­
livers a prerecor ded healt hcare mes­
sage made by, or on behal! of, a covered 
entity or its business associate, as 
those terms are defined in the HIP AA 
Privacy Rule, 45 CFR 160,103. 

(2) It Is an abusive telemarketing act 
or practice and a violation of this Rule 
for any person to sell , rent, lease, pur­
ch ase, or use any list established to 
comply wit h §310.4(b)(1)(ili)(A), or 
maintained by the Commission pursu­
ant to §310.4(b)(I)(IU)(B). for any pur­
pose except compliance with the provi­
sions of this R ule or otherwise to pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone num­
bers on such lists . 

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not 
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(lXIi) 
and (Iii) If It can demonst rate that, as 
part of the seller's or telemarketer's 
routine business practice: 
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does Dot connect the call to a. sales rep­
resentative within two (2) seconds of 
tho person's completed greeting. 

(v) Ini t iating any outbound telephone 
call that delivers a prerecorded mes­
sage. other than a prerecorded message 
permitted for compHance with the call 
abandonment safe harbor In 
§310.4(b)(4)(I11), unless: 

(A) in any such call to Induce the 
purchase of any good or service. t he 
seller has obtained from t he recipient 
of t he call an express agreem en t, in 
writing, that: 

(0 The seller obtained only after a 
clear and conspicuous disclosure that 
the purpose oC t he agreement 18 to au­
thonze tbe seller to place prerecorded 
calls to such person: 

(Ii) The seller obtained without re­
quiring. directly o r indirectly. that tbe 
agreement be executed as a condition 
ot purchasing any good or service: 

(iii) Evidences tbe will1ngness oC the 
recipient of the call to receive calls 
that deliver prerecorded messages by 
or on behalf of a specific seller ; and 

(iv) Includes such person 's telephone 
number and signature;' and 

(B) In any such call to induce the 
purchase of any good or service, or to 
induce a charitable contribut ion from a 
member of, or previous donor to, a non­
pront charitable organization on whose 
behalf t he call Is made, the seller or 
telemarketer: 

(I) Allows the telephone to ring for at 
least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) 
rings before disconnecting an unan­
swered call: and 

( Ii ) Within t wo (2) seconds after the 
completed greeting of the person 
called, plays a prerecorded message 
that promptly provides the disclosurt!s 
required by §310.4(d) or (e). followed 
Immediately by a disclosure of one or 
both of the following: 

( A) In the case of a call that could be 
answered in person by a consumer . that 
the person called can use an automated 
Intera.ctlve voice andlor keypress-acti­
vated opt-out mechanism to assert a 
Do Not call request pursuant to 

T For pUrpoIIes of this Rule. the term "Sig­
nature" 'hall inolude an electroniC or d.1g1.tal 
fOfm of eignatufe, to the extent that such 
form of signature Is r ecognized l1.li11. vaUd Big­
nature under appllcahle federal law or state 
contract law. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1- 1-09 Edition) 

§310.4(b)(l)(Ut)(A) at any time during 
the message. Tbe mechan.lsm must: 

(1) Automatically add the number 
called to the eell er's enti ty-specific Do 
Not C&UlIst; 

(2) Once Invoked, Immediately dis­
connect the call: and 

(3) Be aval1able for use at any time 
during the message: and 

(8) In the case oC a call that could be 
answered by an answering machine or 
voicematl service, that the person 
called can use a toll-free telephone 
number to a.ssert a Do Not Call request 
pursuant to §310.4(b)(lXIU)(A). The 
number provided must COMect directly 
to an automated Interactive voice or 
keypress-activated optrout mecha.nJsm 
that: 

(1) Automatically adds the number 
called to the seller's entlty-specinc Do 
Not Call list; 

(2) Inunedtately thereafter dis­
cormects the call: and 

(3) Is accessible at any time through­
out the duration of the telemarketing 
campaign; and 

(Iii) CompUes with all other require­
ments of this part a nd other applicable 
federal a nd state laws. 

(e) Any call that com plies with all 
appl1cable r equirements of this para­
graph (v) shall not be deemed to violate 
§310.4{b)(1)(tv) of this part. 

(D) ThIs paragrapb (v) shall not apply 
to any outbound telephone call that de­
livers a prerecorded healt hcare mes­
sage made by, or on behalf of. a covered 
entity or Its business associate, as 
those terms are denned in the HIPAA 
Privacy Rule, 45 CFR 160.103. 

(2) It is an abllIllve telemarketing act 
or practice and a violation of this Rule 
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur­
chase, or use any list established to 
comply with 1310.4(b)(I )(Ui)(A), or 
maintained by the CommissIon pursu­
ant to §310.4(b)(1}(11I)(B), Cor any pur­
pose except compliance with the provi­
sions or this Rule or otherwise to pre­
vent telepbone calls to telephone num­
bers on such lists. 

(3) A seller or telemarketer w1l1 not 
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(1)(H) 
and (111) If It can demonstrate that, as 
part of the seUer's or telemarketer's 
routine business practice: 
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(1) It has establisbed and Imple­
mented written procedures to comply 
with §310.4(bXl)(II) and (III); 

(iI) It bas trained its personnel, and 
any enti ty assistin g in its compliance, 
in the procedures established pursuant 
t o §310,4(b)(3)(I); 

(111) The sellel', or a telemarketer or 
another person acting on behalf of t he 
seller or charitable organization, bas 
maintained and recorded a Hst of tele­
phone numbers the seller or charitable 
organization may not contact, in com­
pliance with §310.4(b)(1)(IU)(A); 

(Iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses 
a process to prevent telemarketing to 
any telephone number on any list es­
tablished pursuant to §310.4(b}(3XlII) or 
310.4(b)(I}{Ui}(B). employing a version 
of t he "do-nokall" registry obtained 
from the Commission no more than 
thlrty-one (31) days prior to the date 
any call i8 made, and maintains 
records docum enting this process; 

(v) The seller or a telemarketer or 
another person acting on behalf of t he 
seUer or charitable organization, mon­
Itors and enforces compliance with the 
procedures established pursuant to 
I 310.4(b)(3}(1); and 

(vi) Any subsequent call otherwise 
violating §310.4(b)(l)(ii) or (111) Is the 
resul t of error. 

(4) A sen er or telemarketer will not 
be liable for violating 310.4(b)(I)(lv) If: 

(1) The seller or telemar keter em­
ploys technology that ensures aban­
donment of no more t han three (3) per­
cent or all calls answered by a person, 
measured over the duration of a s ingle 
calling campaign, if less than 30 days. 
or separately over each successive 30-
day period or portion thereof that the 
campaign con tinues. 

Of) The seller or telemarketer. for 
each telemarketing call placed, a llows 
the teleph one to ring for at least fif­
teen (15) seconds or four (4) rings berore 
disconnecting an unanswered call; 

(ttl) Whenever a sales representative 
Is not available to speak with the per­
son answertng the call within t wo (2) 
seconds after the person's completed 
greeting, the seller or telemarketer 
promptly plays a recorded message 
that states the name and telephone 

§3IO.4 

number of the seller on whose behalf 
the call was placed 8; and 

(tv) The seUer or telemarketer, in ac­
cordance with §310.5(b)-(d), retains 
records establishing compliance with 
§ 310.4(b)( 4)(1)-(111), 

(c) Calling time restrictions. Without 
the prior consent of a person, It is an 
abusive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of this Rule for a tele­
marketer to engage In outbound tele­
phone calls to a person's residence at 
any time other than between 8:00 a.m, 
and 9:00 p.m, local time at the called 
person's location. 

(d) Required oral dfsciosure$ in the sale 
o[ good$ or serotces. It is an abusive tele­
marketing act or practice and a viola­
tion Or th.i8 Rule for a teiemarketer In 
an outbound telephone call or interna.i 
or externa.l upaell to Induce the pur­
chase or goods or services to fa ll to dis­
close truthfully, prompt ly, and In a 
clear and conspicuous manner to the 
person receiving the call, the following 
information: 

(1) The Identity of the seller ; 
(2) That the purpose of t b e call Is to 

sell goods 0 1' services; 
(3) The nature of the goods or serv­

Ices; and 
(4) That no purchase or payment is 

necessary to be able to win a prize or 
participate tn a prtze promotion if a 
prize promotion is offered and t hat any 
purchase or payment will not Increase 
the person's chances of winning. This 
disclosure must be made before or in 
conjunction with the description of the 
prize to t he person called. If requested 
by that person, the telemarketer must 
disclose the no-purchaselno-payment 
entry method for t he prize promotion; 
provided, however, that, In any Internal 
upaell for the sale of goods or services, 
the seller or telemarketer must pro­
vtde the disclosures listed In this soo­
tlon only to t he extent that the infor­
mation In the upsell differs irom the 
dIsclosures provided in the Initial tele­
marketing transaction, 

ITbls pl'O\'illioD doea not aCfe-et any l1611er ', 
or telemll.rketer', obllptlon to comply with 
relevant ltat.e and lederal lawI, including 
bu t not limited to the TCPA, 47 U.S,C. m, 
and 47 CI-' R part 64.1200, 
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(I) It has established and imple­
mented written procedures to comply 
with f31{).4(bXl){tt) and (UI); 

(11) It has trained Ita personnel. and 
any entity assisting in Ita compl1ance. 
in the procedures established pursuant 
to I 310.4(b)(3)(I): 

(tit) The seller. or a telemarketer or 
a.nother person acting on bebalf of the 
seller or charitable organization. has 
maintained and recorded a list of tele­
phone numbers the seller or cha.ritable 
organization may not contact. in com­
pliance with 1310.4(b){IXili)(A); 

(tv) The seller or a telemarketer uses 
a proce88 to prevent telemarketing to 
any telephone number on any Ust. es­
tabll8hed pursuant to 1310.4(bX3)(UI) or 
310.4(bXl)(U1)(B), employing a version 
of the ·'do-not.-<:all " reg1stry obtained 
from the Commission no more than 
thlrty-one (31) days prior to the date 
any call 18 made. and maintains 
records documenting this procell8: 

(v) The seller or a telemarketer or 
anot.her person acting on behalf of the 
seller or chari table organi~tion, mon­
Itors and enforces compliance with the 
proceduree establtshed pursuant to 
f310.4(b)(3){1): and 

(v1) Any eubseQuent call otherwise 
violating §310.4(b)(1)(ti) or (Ui) Is the 
result of errol'. 

(4) A seller or telemarketer will not 
be liable for violating 310.4(b)(1)(lv) IJ: 

(I) The seller or telemarketer em­
ploya technology that ensures aban­
donment of no more tban three (3) per­
cent. of all cans a.nswered by a person, 
measu.red over the duration of a single 
calling campaign, If less than 30 days, 
or separately over each successive 30-
day period or portion thereof that the 
campajgn continues. 

(II) The seller or telemarketer. for 
each telemarketing call placed. allows 
tbe telephone to ring for at least. nf­
tee.n (lS) seconds or four (4) ringB before 
dlsconne.oting an unanswered call: 

( ttl) Wbenever a sales representative 
18 not available to speak with the per­
son 8.Dawertng the call within two (2) 
seconds after the person's oompleted 
greetlnr. the seller or telemarketer 
promptly plays a recorded message 
that 8tates the name and telephone 

5310.4 

number of the seller on whose behalf 
the call waa placed I: and 

(tv) The aeller or telemarketer, In ac­
cordance with 131,O.5(b)..{d), retains 
records establl shlng compliance with 
§ 31O.4(b){ 4)(1)-(111). 

(c) Callil1{1 time restricUol1S. Withou t 
the prior consen t Of a paNlon, It Is an 
a busive telemarketing act or practice 
and a violation of thIs Rule for a tele­
marketer to engage in outbound tele­
phone calla to a person'8 re81dence at 
any time otber than between 8:00 a.m. 
and 9:00 p.m . local time at the called 
J)8r'&On'slocatlon. 

(d) Rl!quJred oral di.fCIOfUru fn the 80le 
of go0d3 or mvicu. It 18 an abusive tele­
marketing act or practice and a vtola­
tlon of this Rule for a telemarketer in 
an outbound telephone call or internal 
or external up&ell to induce the pur­
chase of goods or services to fail to dis­
close truthfully, promptly, and In a 
clear and consplouoU8 manner to the 
person receiving the call, the following 
Information: 

(1) The Identity of the 88l1el'; 
(2) That the pUI'))088 of the call Is to 

sell gooda or aervlces: 
(3) The natu.re of the goods 01' serv­

Ices: and 
(4) That no purcba.se or payment Is 

necessary to be able to win a prize 01' 
partiCipate In a prize promotion If a 
prize promotion la offered and that any 
purchase or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning. This 
disci08ure must be made before or In 
conjunct.lon with the deac.rlptlon of the 
prize to t.he person called. If requested 
by t hat person. the telemarketer must 
disclose the no-purchasetno-payment 
entry method for the prize promotion: 
provided, however. that.. In any internal 
up&ell for the sale of roods or services, 
the seller or telemarketer must. pro­
vide the dllCI08urea listed In this sec.­
tion only to the estent that the infor­
mation in the upeell dlt!era from the 
disclosures provided i.n the Initial tele­
marketing transaction. 

·Tbll pl'O'Il llon doea not. affect. &ttY Ileller'lI 
or t.elemarket.er'l obU .... uoll to comply with 
rele'lll..IIt. It.l.t.e and federal lawlI. incJud.1ng 
but not. limited to the TCPA, 47 U.S.C, 'ZZ1. 
and 47 Cnt part 84.1a:JO. 
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§310.5 

(0) Required oral disclosures in chari­
table 8olldtations. It Is an abusive tele­
marketing act or practice and a vIola­
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer. In 
an outbound telepbone call to induce a 
charitable contribution. to faU to di s­
c lose t ru t hfully. promptly, and in a 
clear and conspicuous manner to the 
person receiving t he call, the following 
Information: 

(1) The Identity of the charitable or­
ganization on behalf of which the re­
quest Is being made; and 

(2) That the purpose of the call Is to 
wHclt a chari table contribution. 

(88 FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, as amended at 69 
FR 16373, Mar. 29, 2004; 73 FR M204, Aug. 29. 
"""1 

1 310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
(a) Any seller or telema.rketer shall 

keep. for a period of 24 months from 
the date the record Is produced, the fol­
lowing records relating to Its tele­
marketing activities: 

(1) All substantially different adver-
tising, brocbures, telemarketing 
scripts. and promotional materIals: 

(2) The name and last known address 
of eacb prize recipient and the prize 
awarded for prIzes that are re~ 

resented. directly or by implIcation. to 
have a value of $25.00 or more; 

(3) The name and last known address 
of each customer. t he goods or services 
pw·chased. the date such goods or serv­
ices were shipped or provided, and the 
a mount paid by the customer for the 
goods or services: g 

(4) The name. any fict itious name 
used, t he last known home address and 
telephone number. and the lob t t t le(s) 
fo r a ll current and former employees 
directly Involved In telephone sales or 
80ltc!ta.tlons: provided, however. that If 
the seller or telema.rketer permIts fi c­
titious names to be used by employees, 
each !tctlttous name must be traceable 
to only one specific employee; and 

(5) All verifiable authorizatIons or 
records of express Informed consent or 

' )0'01' otters o r consumer credit products 
eubjllCt to t he Truth In Lending Act. 15 
U.S.C. 1601 at uq .. and Regula.tlon Z. 12 CFR 
226. compliance with the rllCordkeeplng re­
Quirements under the Truth In Lending Act. 
and Regulation Z. sha.lI constitu te comIIli­
Mce with 1310.5(a.)(3) or this Rule. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1 - 1-09 Edition) 

express agreement required to be pro­
vided or received under t his Rule. 

(b) A seller or telemarketer may 
keep tbe records required by §310.5(a) 
In any form. and in the same manner. 
format . or place as they keep such 
records in the ordinary course of busi­
ness. Fa ilure to keep a ll records re­
quired by §310.5(a) shall be a violat ion 
of this Rule. 

(c) The seller and the telemarketer 
calling on beha lf of the seller may. by 
written agreement, a llocate respensl­
billty between themselves for the rec­
ordkeeplng required by this Section. 
When a seller and telemarketer have 
entered Into such an agTeement, the 
terms of that agreement shall govern. 
and the sell er or telema.rketer. as the 
case may be. need not keep records 
t hat duplicate those of the other . If the 
agreement Is unclear as to who must 
malntaLn any required reeord(s). or If 
no such agreement exists. the seller 
sball be responsible for complying with 
§§310.5(aX l )-(3) and (5): the tele­
marketer shall be responsible for com­
plying with 1310.5(a)(4). 

(d) In the event of any dissolution or 
termination of the seller's or tele­
marketer 's busl.ness, the prIncipal of 
that seller or telema r keter shall main­
tain all records as required under this 
section . In t he event of any sale, as­
signment. or other change in ownership 
of the seller 'S or telemarketer's busi­
ness. t he successor business shall main­
tain a ll records required under this sec­
tion. 

(68 FR 4669. Jan. 29. 2003. &II amended liLt 51204. 
Aug. 29. 20031 

1310.6 h emptionl. 

(a) Solicitations to induce charitable 
contributions via outbound telephone 
calls are not covered by 
1 310.4(b)(l Xtll)(B) of this Rule. 

(b) The following acts or practices 
are exempt from this Rule: 

(l) The sale of pay-per-call services 
subject to the Commission 's Rule enti­
tled "Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant 
to the Telephone Di sclosure and DIs­
pute Resolution Act of 1992," 16 CFR 
Part 308. Jl1'olrlded, however, that this 
exemption does not apply to the re­
quirements of §§310.4(a )(l), (a)(7), (b). 
and (c): 
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(8) Required oral disclorures in chari· 
table solicitaUons. It is an abusive tele­
marketing act or pract ice and a viola­
ti on of this Rule for a telemarketer, In 
an outbound telephone call to Induce a 
oha.rl table contribution. to fan to di s­
close t ruthfully. promptly, and in a 
clear and conspicuous manner to the 
person receiving the call, the following 
Inrormatlon: 

(1 ) The Identity of t h e charitable Of­
ranlutlon on behalf of whJch the re­
quest Is being m ade; and 

(2) Tbat the purpose of the call Is to 
solicit a charitable contribution. 

[ae FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, &II amended at 69 
FR 18313. Mar. 29, 2004; 73 FR 51204. AUI. 29, 
_1 

1310.5 Recontkeeping requirementa. 
(a) Any seller o r telemarketer shall 

keep. for a period of 24 months from 
the date the record 18 produced. the fol­
lowing records relating to Its tele­
marketing activities: 

(1) All Bubstantially different adver-
t is ing, brochures. telemarketing 
scripts, and promotional materta ls; 

(2) Tbe name a nd last known address 
of each prize recIpIent and the prtze 
awarded for prizes that are rep­
resented, dIrectly or by implication , to 
have a value of S25.00 or more; 

(3) The name and last known address 
of each customer, the goods or sel'Vices 
tlUrchased, the date such goods or serv· 
Ices were shipped or provided, and the 
amount paid by the customer for the 
rooda or services: a 

(4) The name, any fictitious name 
used, the last known home address and 
telephone number. and the job t lt le(s) 
(or all current and fonner employees 
directly involved in telephone a lee or 
IOliclt&tioDS: provided, however. that Ii 
tbe seller or t.elemarketer permits ne-­
titlous names to be used by employees, 
each nctitlous name must be traceable 
to only one specinc employee: and 

(5) All verifiable autborlzatioll8 or 
records of express informed. coasent or 

• For offer. of coDJIumer cred.1t product.­
lubject. t.O tbe Truth In Lending Act, 15 
U.S .C. 1601 t/ uq .• and Regulation Z. 12 CPR 
226. oomplllllce with the recon1k lllplnl' ttl· 
qulttlmentl undor t bo Truth 1D Lending Act, 
a nd Rel'UlatJoll Z. abaH constitu te com pl!. 
anco with 1310.5(a)(3) or t.hla Rule. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edition) 

expreu agreement required to be pro-­
vlded or received under thIs Rule. 

(b) A sell er or t;elema rketer may 
keep the records reQ.ulred by §310.5(a) 
In any form , and In t he same manner, 
for mat. or place lUI they keep sucb 
recol'ds In the ordlna l'Y course of busl~ 
ness. Fa ilure to keep all records re· 
qulrod by 1310,5(a) sha ll be a violation 
of thJs Rule. 

(c) The Beller and tbe telemarketer 
calling on behaU ot the seller may, by 
written aKreement, allocate respens!· 
blllty between themselves for the r ae-­
ordkeeptng required by thIs Section. 
When a sell er and telemarket.er have 
entered tnto such a n agreement, the 
terms of that agreement shall govern. 
and the seller or telemarketer, as the 
case may be. need not keep records 
that duplicate those ot the other . If the 
agreement Is unclear aa to who must 
maintain any requIred record(s), or if 
no such agreement exists, the seller 
shall be responsible for oomplying with 
H 310.5(a)(1}-(S) and (5): the tele-­
ma.rketer shall be reapoll8!ble for com· 
plying wi th 1310.5(11.)(4). 

(d) In the event of any dissolution or 
termination or the seller 's or tale-­
marketer 's business, t he principal of 
t hat seller or t.elema rketer shall main· 
eal.n all reoords as reQ.ulred under this 
section. In t he event of any sale, as-­
slgnment, 0 1' other change In ownership 
ot the seller 's or telemarketer 's busi­
ness, t he suocessor business shall main· 
taln all records reQ.ulred under this sec-­
tlon. 

(68 )'R 4669, JaIl.~. 2003," amended at 51204, 
AUI. 29, 3OOlI1 

t310.8 Exemption.. 
(a) Solloltations to Induce charitable 

cODt.rlbutloDS via ou tbound telephone 
calls are not coverad by 
1310.4(bXl)(III)(8) of this Rule. 

(b) The rollowin&" aota or practices 
are exempt from !.hIs Rule: 

(1) The sale of pa.y·per-eall services 
subject t.o the Commiulon's Rule entl· 
t ied "Trade Rerulatlon Rule Pursuant 
to the Telephone Disclosure and DIs-­
pute Resolution Act of 1992." 16 CFR 
Part 308. provided, however , that this 
exempt ion does not a pply to the re· 
Qu.lrements of IISI0.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), 
and (0): 
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Federal Trade Commission 

(2) The sale of fra nchises subject to 
t he Commission 's Rule entitled "Dis­
closure Requirements and Prohibi tion s 
Concerning Franchising and Business 
Oppor t unity Ventures." ("Franchise 
Rule") 16 CFR Part 436. provided. how­
ever. that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310A(a)(1). (a)(7). (b). and (c): 

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale 
of goods or services or chari table solic­
Itation Is not completed. and payment 
or authorization of payment is not re­
quired. until after a face-to-face sales 
or donation presentation by t he seller 
or charitable organization. provided, 
however . that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310.4(a)(1). (a)(7). (b). and (c): 

(4) Telepbone calls initiat ed by a cus­
tomer or donor t hat are not the r esult 
of any solicitation by a seller. chari­
table organization. or telemarketer. 
provided, however . t hat t his exempt ion 
does not apply to any instances of 
upsell1ng included in such telephone 
calls; 

(5) Telephone calls in itiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to an adver­
tisem en t through any medium, other 
than direct mail solici tation. provided , 
however. that this exemption does not 
apply to calls tnJ t1ated by a customer 
or donor In response to an advertise­
ment relating to Investment opportuni­
t ies. business opportunities other than 
business arrangements covered by the 
F ra nchise Rule, or advertisements in­
volving goods or services described In 
§§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310A(a)(2)-(4); or to 
any instances of upsel1ing included In 
such telephone calls; 

(6) T elephone calls initiated by a cus­
tom er or donor In response to a direct 
mati solicitation. Including sollcl ta· 
t ions via the U.S. Postal Service, fac­
simile t ransmission , e lectr onic mall. 
and other similar methods of delivery 
in which a soliCitation is directed to 
specific addressees) or person(s), t hat 
clearly. conspicuously. and truthfully 
discloses all material Information Hst· 
ed in §310.3(a)(1) of t his Rule, for any 
goods or services offered in the direct 
m ail solicitation , a nd th at contains no 
m at erial misrepresentation regarding 
any i tem contained in §310 .3(d) of this 
Rule for any requested charitable con­
t r i1)ution ; provided, however. that this 

§310.8 

exemption does not apply to calls InJtl­
ated by a customer in response to a di­
rect m all solicitation relating to prize 
prom otions, investment opportunities, 
business opportuni t ies other than 1)usl­
ness arrangements covered by the 
Franchise Rule, or goods or services de­
scribed in §§310.3(a)(l)(vi) or 310.4(a){2}­
(4); or to any Instances of upselllng in· 
cluded In such telephone calls; and 

(7) T elephone calls between a tele­
m arketer and any business. except 
calls to induce the retail sale of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies: pro­
vided. however . t hat §310A(b)(1)(ili)(B) 
and § 310.5 of this Rule sball not apply 
to sellers or telemarketers of non, 
dura1)le office or cleaning supplies. 

§SIO.7 AdioIlB by states and private 
persons. 

(a) Any attorney general or other of­
ficer of a state authorized by the state 
to bring an action under t he T ele­
market ing and Consumer Fraud and 
A1)use Prevention Act. and any private 
person who 1)rings an action under tbat 
Act. sball serve written notice of Its 
action on the Commission, U feasible, 
prior to i ts initiating an action under 
this Rule. The notice shall 1)e sent to 
the Office of the Director. Bureau of 
Consumer Protection. Federal Trade 
Commission. Washington. D.C. 20580. 
and shall Include a copy of the state's 
or private person's compla int a nd any 
other pleadings to be fil ed with t he 
court. If prior notice is not feasible. 
the state or private person shall serve 
the Commission with the required no­
tice immediately upon Instituting its 
action. 

(1» Nothing contained in this Section 
shall proh ibit any attorney general or 
oth er authorized state offiCial from 
proceeding in state court on t he basis 
of an alleged violation of any civil or 
criminal statute of such state. 

§SlO.8 Fee for access to the National 
Do Not Call Regh,try. 

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for 
any seller to ini tiate, or cause any 
telem arketer to initiate. an out1)ound 
teleph one call to any person whose 
telephone number is within a given 
area code unless such seller, e i ther di· 
rectly or t hrough another person. first 
has paid the annua.l fee. required by 
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(2) The sale of franchises subject to 
the Commission's Rule entitled "Dis­
closure Requirements and ProhibItIons 
Concerning Franchising and Business 
Opportunity Ventures." ("Franchise 
Rule") 16 CFR Part 436. provided, how­
ever. that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310A(a)(1). (a)(7), (b). and (c): 

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale 
of goods or services or charitable solic­
Itation is not completed. and payment 
or authorization of payment is not re­
quired, until after a face-to-face sales 
or donation presentation by t he seller 
or charitable organization, provided, 
however. that t his exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310.4(a)(1). (a)(7), (b), and (c): 

(4) Telephone calls Initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor t hat are not the result 
of any sol1cltation by a seller, chari­
table organization. or telemarketer. 
provided, however. t hat t his exemption 
does not apply to any instances of 
upsell1ng inCluded in such telephone 
calls; 

(5) Telephone calls Initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to an adver­
tisement through any medium, other 
than direct mail solicitation. provided. 
however. that this exemption does not 
apply to calls 1nJt1ated by a CWltomer 
or donor In response to an advertise­
ment relating to Investment opportuni­
ties. business opportunities other than 
bWliness arrangements covered by the 
Franchise Rule. or advertisements in­
volving goods or services described in 
§§310.3(a)(I)(vl) or 310A(a)(2)-(4); or to 
any instances of upsel1ing included In 
such telephone calls; 

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor In response to a direct 
mati solicitat ion. including solici ta­
t ions via the U.S. Postal Service. fac­
simile t ransmission. electronic mall. 
and other similar methods of delivery 
In which a soliCitation is directed to 
specifi c addressees) or person(s), that 
c learly. conspicuously. and truthfully 
discloses all material Information Hst­
ed in §310.3(a)(1) of t his Rule, for any 
goods or services offered in the direct 
mail solicitation. a nd that contains no 
material misrepresentation regarding 
any i tem contained in §310.3(d) of this 
Rule for any requested charitable con­
trll)ution; provided. however. that this 

§310.8 

exemption does not apply to calls inJti­
ated by a customer in response to a di­
rect m ail solicitation relating to prize 
promotions, investment opport uni ties, 
business opportunities other than busi­
ness arrangements covered by the 
FranchIse Rule. or goods or services de­
scribed in §§310.3(a)(l)(vl) or 310.4(a){2}­
(4); or to any Instances of upsel11ng in­
cluded In such telephone calls; and 

(7) Telephone calls between a tele­
marketer and any business. except 
calls to induce the retail sale of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies: pro­
vided. however. that §31OA(b)(1)(ili)(B) 
and § 310.5 of this Rule shall not apply 
to sellers or telemarketers of non­
durable office or c leaning supplies. 

§310.7 ActioIlB by states and private 
persons. 

(a) Any attorney general or other of· 
ficer of a state authorized by the state 
to bring an action under t he Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act. and any private 
person who brings an action under that 
Act. shall serve written notice of Its 
action on the Commission. U feasible. 
prior to its initiat ing an action under 
this Rule. The notice shall be sent to 
the Office of the Director. Bureau of 
Consumer Protection. Federal Trade 
Commission. Washington. D.C. 20580. 
and shall include a copy of the state's 
or private person's compla int and any 
other pleadings to be filed with t he 
court. If prior not ice is not feasible, 
the state or private person shall serve 
the Commission with the required no­
tice immediately upon Instituting its 
action. 

(b) Nothing contained in this Section 
shall prohibit any attorney general or 
other authorized state offiCial from 
proceeding in state court on t he basis 
of an alleged violation of any civil or 
criminal statute of such state. 

§3to.8 Fee for access to the National 
Do Not Call Regh,try. 

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for 
any seller to initiate, or cause any 
telem arketer to initiate. an outbound 
telephone call to any person whose 
telephone number is within a given 
area code unless such seller. either di­
rectly or t hrough another person. first 
has paid t he annual fee. required by 
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§310.8 

§310.8(c), for access to telephone num­
bers within that area code that are In­
cluded In the National Do Not call 
Registry maintained by the Commis­
sion under §310.4(b)(1)(iU)(B); provided, 
however, that such payment Is not nec­
essary If the seller initiates, or causes 
a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely 
to persons pursuant to 
U310.4(b)(1)(111)(B)(1) or (ii). and the 
seller does not access the National Do 
Not Call Registry for any other pur­
pose. 

(b) It is a violation of this Rule for 
any teiemarketer. on behalf of any sell­
e r, to Initiate an outbound telephone 
call to any person whose telephone 
Dumber Is within a given area. code un­
less that seller, either directly or 
through another person. first has paid 
the annual fee, required by §310.8(c). 
for access to tbe telephone numbers 
within that area code that are included 
In the National Do Not Call Registry: 
provided, however. that such payment 
Is not necessary if the seller initiates, 
or calUles a telemarketer to inItiate, 
calls solely to persons pUl'fluant to 
1§310.4(bXl)(lU)(B)(i) or (ii). and the 
selier does not access the National Do 
Not Call Registry for any other pur­
po",. 

(c) The annual fee. which must be 
paid by any person prior to obtaining 
access to the National Do Not Call 
Registry. is S54 for each area code of 
data accessed. up to a maximum of 
$14,850: provided, however. that there 
shall be no charge to any person for ac­
cessing the first five area codes of data. 
and provided further, that there shall be 
no charge to any person engaging in or 
causing others to engage in outbound 
telephone calls to consumers and wbo 
Is accessing area codes of data In the 
National Do Not Call Registry tt the 
person Is permitted to access, but is 
not required to access. the National Do 
Not Can Registry under this Rule. 41 
CFR 64.1200. or any other Federal regu­
lation or law. Any person accessing the 
National Do Not Call Registry may not 
participate in any arrangement to 
share the cost of accessing the reg­
istry. Including any arrangement with 
any telemarketer or service provider to 
divide the costs to access the registry 
among various clients of tbat tale­
marketer or service provider. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edmon) 

(d) Eacb person who pays, either di­
rectly or through another person, the 
annual fee set fort h In 1 310.8(c), each 
person excepted under 1310.8(c) from 
paying the annual fee, and each person 
excepted from paying an annual fee 
under §310.4(b)(l)(UI)(B). will be pro­
vided a unique account number that 
w11l allow that pel'son to access the 
registry data for the selected area 
codes at any time for t he twelve month 
period beginning on the first day of the 
month tn which the person paid the fee 
("the annual period"). To obtain access 
to additional area codes of data dw1ng 
the first six months of the annual pe­
riod. each person required to pay the 
fee under 1310.8(c) mW:\t first pay S54 
for each addlttonal area code of data 
not Initially selected. To obtain access 
to additional area codes of data during 
the second six months of the annual pe­
riod. each person required to pay the 
fee under 1310.8(c) must first pay S27 
for each additional area code of data. 
not initially selected. The payment of 
t he additional fee will permit the per­
son to access the additional area codes 
of data for the remainder of the annual 
period. 

(e) Access to the National Do Not 
Call Registry Is limited to tele+ 
marketers, seUers, others engaged In or 
causing others to engage In telephone 
calls to consumers. service providers 
acting on behalf of such persons, and 
any government agency that has law 
enforcement au t hori ty. Prior to access­
ing the National Do Not Call Registry, 
a person must provide the Identifying 
information required by tbe operator of 
the registry to collect the fee. and 
must certify. under penalty of law. 
that the person Is accessing the reg­
Istry solely to com ply with the provi­
sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone num­
bers on the registry. If the person Is ac­
cessing the registry on behalf of seU­
ers, that person a lso must Identify 
each or the sellers on whose behalf it Is 
accessing the registry, must provide 
each seller's unique account number 
for access t.o the national registry. and 
must cert ify, under penalty of law, 
that t he sellers will be using the infor­
mation gathered from the reg:lstry 
solely to comply with t he provisions of 
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1310.8(c), for access to telephone num­
bers within that. area code that are in­
cluded In the National Do Not call 
Rell18try maintained by the Caromi&­
sian under 1310.4(b)(l)(il1)(B): provided, 
however. that such payment Is not n ec­
esslLry If tbo seller Initiates, or causes 
a teJemarketer to Initiate. calls solely 
to persons pursuant to 
U310.4(b)(IXIU){B)(i) or (ii). and the 
seHer does not access the National Do 
Not Call Registry tor any otber pur­..... 

(b) It Is a v101ation of this Rule for 
any telemarketer, on behalf of any Bell­
e r , t.o initiate an outbound telephone 
call to any person whose telephone 
number Is within a given area code un­
lea tbat seller. either directly or 
through another person, first h8.!i paid 
the annual fee, required by tslO.8(c), 
for accesa to the telephone numbers 
within t.bat area code tha.t are included 
In the National Do Not Call Registry: 
J'Tovfded, bowever. that such payment 
Is not neceasary if the selJer in1tlates. 
or causes a telemarketer to inlttate. 
calls solely to persons pursuant to 
"310.4(b}(1}(ttt}(B}(i> or (ii). and the 
seller doea not access the National Do 
Not Call Registry for any other pur-. 
pose. 

(c) The annual fee . which must be 
paid by any person prior to obtaining 
access to the National Do Not Call 
Registry. Is S54 for each area code of 
data accessed, up to a maximum of 
$14,850: provided, however. that there 
8hall be no charge to any person for ac~ 
caaaing the first !lve area codes of data, 
and provided further, that there shall be 
no cbarge to any person engaging In or 
causlnr others to engage In outbound 
telephone calls to consumers and who 
Is &teeaslng area codes of data in the 
National Do Not Call Registry if the 
penon Is pennltt.ed to access, but. Is 
not required to access. the National Do 
Not caJl Registry under thJs Rule. 47 
CFR 64 .1200. or any other Pederal regu­
lation or law. Any person accessing the 
National Do Not. Call Registry may not 
participate In any arrangement. to 
Share the cost of accessing the reg~ 
Istry, including any arrangement with 
any telemarketer or service provider to 
divide the costa to access the registry 
among various cHents of that tele­
marketer or service provider. 

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-09 Edmon) 

(d) Each person who pays. either dJ­
rectly or through another person. the 
annual fee set Corth In 1 310.8(c), each 
person excepted under 1310.8(c) f'l'om 
paying the annual fee, and each person 
excepted from paying an annual fee 
under ISIO.4(b)(I)(tll)(B), will be pro­
vided a unique account number that 
wl1\ allow that person to access the 
regilltry data for the lIelected area 
codes at any t ime for the t.welve month 
period beginning on the nrst day of the 
month In whloh the penon paid tbe fee 
("the annual perlod"). To obtain access 
to additional area codes of data durtng 
the firs t six months of the annual pe­
riod , each person requLred to pay the 
fee under 1310.8(0) must nrst pay S54 
for each additional area code oC data 
not Initially selected. To obtain access 
to addlt.lonal area codes oC data durlng 
the second atx montha oC the annual pe­
Mod. each penon required to pay the 
fee under 1310.8(0) must. Orst pay S27 
for each additional area code of data 
not initially selected. The payment of 
th e additional fee will pennlt tbe per­
son to acce88 the additional area. codes 
of dat.a Cor the r emainder of the annual 
perlod. 

(e) Aocess to the Nat ional Do Not 
Call Registry III limited to tele· 
mar ketel'8, soll ers, othll!'S en gaged In or 
causing othera to engage In telephone 
oalls to oonsumers. service providers 
acting on behalf or lIuoh persons, and 
any governmont agency that has law 
enforcement a ut hority. Prior to access­
tng the National Do Not Call Registry, 
a peJ'80n must provide tbe Identtfy1ng 
Information required by tbe operator of 
the registry to collect t.be fee. and 
must. certlCy. u.nder penalty of law, 
that the penon Is acces.alng the reg· 
Istry solely to comply with the prov1~ 
s lons of this Rule or to otherwise pre­
vent telephone calla to telephone num· 
bers on the ~stry. lC the perBOn Is ac­
cessing Lbe reg1.lItry on behalf oC sell­
en. that penon also must Identify 
each Of the sellers on whose behalf It Is 
acoeaelng the registry, muat provide 
each seller's unique account number 
for access t.o the national registry, and 
muet certll'y, under penal ty of law, 
that tbe sellers will be using the infor­
mation gat.hered from the registry 
sole ly to comply with tbe provisions of 
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Federal Trade Commission 

this Rule or other wise to prevent tele~ 

phone calls to telephone numbers on 
t he r egistry. 

(68 FR 45144, July 31, 2003, 8$ amended at 69 
FR 45585, July 30, 2004; 70 FR 43280, July 2'1. 
2005: 71 FR 43054. July 31. 2006; 73 FR 43355, 
July 25, 2008] 

§S10,9 Severability, 
The provisions of this Rule are sepa~ 

rate and severable from one another . If 
any provision Is stayed or determined 
to be Inva lid, It Is the Commission's In~ 
t entlon that t he remaining provisions 
shall con t inue in effect, 

PART 31l-TEST PROCEDURES AND 
LABELING STANDARDS FOR RE­
CYCLED Oil 

Soc. 
311 .1 Definitions. 
311.2 Stayed or lnval1d parts. 
311.3 P reemption. 
311.4 Testing. 
311 .5 Labellng. 
311.6 Prohlbltlld acts. 

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 6363(d). 

SOURCE: 60 FR 55421. Oct. 31, 1995. unless 
otherwlllll noted. 

§SIl.I DefinitioD&. 

As ll8ed in t his part: 
(a) Manujacturer means any person 

wh o re-refines or otherwise processes 
used oil to remove physical or chem~ 
lcal impurities acquired through use or 
whO iJlends such re~reftned or otherwise 
processed used oil with new oil or addl~ 
tives. 

(b) New oil means any synthetic oU or 
oil that has been refined from crude 011 
and wblch has not been used and may 
or may not contain addi t ives. Such 
term does not Include used oil or re<:y~ 
cled oil. 

(c) Processed used 011 means re~reflned 
or otherwise processed used 011 or iJlend 
of 011. consisting of such re~refined or 
otherwise processed used oil and new 
011 or addi tives. 

(d) Recycled oil means processed used 
011 that t he ma nufacturer has deter~ 
mined, pursuant t o section 311.4 of this 
part, is suiJstantlally equivalen t to new 
oil for use as engine oil . 

(e) Used oil means any synthetic 011 
or oil that bas been r efined from crude 
011. which has been used and, as a re-

§311.4 

suIt of such use. has been contaml~ 
nated by physical or chemical impur1~ 

t ies. 
(0 Re~Tejined oil means used 0 11 from 

which physical and chemical contaml~ 
nants acquired thr ough use have been 
removed. 

tsll.2 Stayed or invalid parts. 
If any par t of this rule Is stayed or 

held Invalid, t be rest of i t will r emain 
in force. 

UlI.3 Preemption. 

No law, regulation, or order of any 
State or political subdiviSion t bereof 
may apply, or remain applicable, to 
any container of recycled 011, if su ch 
law. regulation , or order requires a ny 
container of r ecycled 011 , wbich con­
tainer iJears a label in accordance with 
th e terms of §31l.5 of t bis part, to bear 
any label with respect to t he compara~ 
t ive characteristics of such recycled 011 
with new 011 that Is not identical to 
t hat permitted by §311.5 of this part. 

U llA Testing, 
To determine the substantial equlva~ 

lency of processed used 011 with new oil 
for use as engine 0 11 , manufacturers or 
tbelr designees must use the test pro­
cedures that were r eported to the Com~ 
mission by t he National Insti t utes of 
Standards a nd Technology ("NIST") on 
July 27, 1995, enti t led "Engine Oil LI~ 
censlng and Certification System, " 
American Petroleum Institu te (,' API"), 
Publication 1509, Thlrteentb Edition, 
January 1995. API PuiJllcation 1509, 
Thirteent h Edition has been updated to 
API Publication 1509. Fiftee nth Edi~ 

t ion, April 2002. API Publ1catlon 1509, 
Fifteenth Edition, April 2002, Is Incor­
porated by r eference. This Incorpora~ 

tion by reference is approved by the Di~ 
rector of the Federal Register In ac-­
cordance with 5 U.S.C. 552(0.) and 1 CFR 
par t 51. Copies of the materials Incor­
porated iJy reference may be obtained 
from: API, 1220 L Street, NW., Wash~ 
ington, DC 20005. Copies may be in ~ 
spected at the Federal Trade Commis~ 

sion, Consumer Response Cen ter , Room 
130, 600 P ennsylvania Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20580, or at t he Na~ 

tiona l Archives and Records Adminis­
t ration ("NARA"). For Information on 
t he avaJlablllty of this material a t 
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t he r egistry. 

[68 FR 45144, July 31, 2003, 8$ amended at 69 
FR 45585, July SO, 2004; 70 FR 43280, July 2'1. 
2005; 71 FR 43054. July SI. 2006; 73 FR 43355, 
July 25, 2008] 

1310,9 Severability. 
The provis ions of this Rule are sepa~ 

rate and severable fro m one anot her . If 
any provis ion is stayed or determined 
to be Invalid, It Is t he Commission's I n~ 
tentlon t hat t he rema ining provisions 
shall con t inue in effect, 

PART 31l-TEST PROCEDURES AND 
LABELING STANDARDS FOR RE­
CYCLED Oil 

Soc. 
311 .1 Definitions. 
311 .2 Stayed or lnval1d parts. 
311 .S P reemption . 
311.4 T esting . 
311 .5 Labellng . 
311 .6 P rohlbltlld acts. 

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 6363(d). 

SOURCE: 60 FR 5M21. Oct. 31. 1995. unless 
otherwlllll noted. 

1311.1 DefinitioD&. 
As ll8ed in t his part: 
(a) Manujacturer m eans any person 

wh o re-refines or otherwise pr ocesses 
used 011 t o rem ove physical or chem~ 
Ical im purities acquired t hrough use or 
whO iJlends such re~refined or otherwise 
pr ocessed used 011 with new oil or addl~ 
t ives. 

(b) New oil m eans any synthet ic oil or 
oil t hat haa been refined from crude 011 
and which has not been used and may 
or may not contain addi t ives. Such 
term does not Include used 011 or recy~ 
clM oil. 

(c) Processed used 011 m eans re~refined 
or oth erwise processed used 011 or iJlend 
of 0 11 , consisting of such re~refined or 
otherwise processed used 0 11 and new 
011 or addi tives. 

(d) Recycled oil means processed used 
011 that t he m a nufacturer has deter~ 
m ined, pursuant t o section 311 .4 of this 
part . is suiJstantlally equivalen t t o new 
011 for use as engine oil. 

(e) Used oil m eans any syn thetic 011 
or oil t hat has been r efined fr om crude 
0 11. which has been used and. as a re-

§311 .4 

sui t of such use. has been contami~ 
nated by physical or chemical impurt~ 

t ies. 
(0 Re~Tejined oil m eans used 0 11 from 

which physical and ch emical contaml~ 
nants acquired through use have been 
rem oved. 

U ll.2 Stayed or invalid parts. 
If any par t of this rule is stayed or 

held Invalid, t he rest of i t will r em ain 
in force. 

u n.S Preemption. 
No law, regulation, or order of any 

State or political subdiviSion t hereof 
may apply, or remain applicable, t o 
any container of recycled oil , if su ch 
law. regulation . or order requires a ny 
con tainer of r ecycled 011, which con­
tainer bears a label in accordance with 
th e terms of §31l.5 of this par t, to bear 
a ny la bel with respect t o t he compara~ 
t ive characteristics of such recycled oil 
with new oil that Is not identical to 
t hat permitted by §31l.5 of this part . 

U llA Testing. 
To determ in e the subst ant ial equiva~ 

lency of processed used 011 with new oil 
for use as engine oil , manufacturers or 
their designees must use t he test pro­
cedures tha t wer e r eported to the Com~ 
mission by t he National Insti t utes of 
Standards a nd Technology (" NIST") on 
J uly 27, 1995, ent i t led "Engine on LI~ 

censing and Certification System ," 
American P etroleum Institu te (" API"), 
Publication 1509, Thir t een t h Edi t ion, 
J anuary 1995. API PublIcation 1509, 
Thirteent h Edition has been updated to 
API Publication 1509. Fiftee nth Edi ~ 

t ion, April 2002. API Publ1cation 1509, 
Fifteenth Edition . April 2002, Is incor­
porated by r eference. This Incorpora~ 

tion by reference is approved by the Di~ 
rector of the Federal Register in ac.­
cordance with 5 U.S.C. 552(a) and 1 CFR 
par t 51. Copies of the materials In cor ­
porated iJy refer ence may be obtained 
from: API, 1220 L Street . NW., Wash~ 
Ington, DC 20005. Copies may be in ~ 
spected at the F ederal Trade Commis~ 

sion , Consumer Response Cen ter , Room 
130, 600 P ennsylvania Avenue. NW., 
Washington , DC 20580, or at t he Na~ 

tional Archives and Records Adminis­
t ration ("NARA"). For information on 
t he avaJlablllty of this material a t 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

NORTHERN DIVISION
___________________________________
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )

Plaintiff, )
)  Case No. 2:09-cv-11100-MOB-PJK

v. )
)  STIPULATED JUDGMENT

NEW EDGE SATELLITE, INC., )  AND ORDER FOR
and )  PERMANENT INJUNCTION

)
DEREK LAVICTOR, individually and )
as an officer of NEW EDGE )
SATELLITE, INC., )

Defendants. )
___________________________________  )

Plaintiff, acting upon notification and authorization to the Attorney General by the

Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or the “Commission”), has commenced this action by filing

the complaint herein, and defendants New Edge Satellite, Inc., and Derek LaVictor, have waived

service of the summons and complaint.  Plaintiff, and the above-named Defendants, have agreed

to settlement of this action.

THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED,

ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to

28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), and

57b.

2. Plaintiff, and Defendants consent to jurisdiction and venue in this District.
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3. The activities of Defendants are in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section 4

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

4. The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against

Defendants under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act

(“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 57b.

5. Defendants have entered into this Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent

Injunction (“Order”) freely and without coercion.  Defendants further acknowledge that they

have read the provisions of this Order and are prepared to abide by them.

6. Defendants hereby waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the

validity of this Order.

7. Defendants have agreed that this Order does not entitle Defendants to obtain

attorneys’ fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, as

amended, and Defendants further waive any rights to attorneys’ fees that may arise under said

provision of law.

8. Entry of this Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Asset” means any legal or equitable interest in, or right or claim to, any real or

personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment, fixtures,

general intangibles, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts,

credits, contracts, receivables, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever located.
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2. “Customer” means any person who is or may be required to pay for goods or

services offered through telemarketing.

3. “Defendants” means New Edge Satellite, Inc., and Derek LaVictor.

4. “Established business relationship” means a relationship between the seller and a

person based on:  (a) the person’s purchase, rental, or lease of the seller’s goods or services or a

financial transaction between the person and seller, within the eighteen (18) months immediately

preceding the date of the telemarketing call; or (b) the person’s inquiry or application regarding a

product or service offered by the seller, within the three (3) months immediately preceding the

date of a telemarketing call.

5. “National Do Not Call Registry” means the National Do Not Call Registry

maintained by the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B). 

6. “Outbound telephone call” means a telephone call initiated by a telemarketer to

induce the purchase of goods or services or to solicit a charitable contribution. 

7. “Person” means any individual, group, unincorporated association, limited or

general partnership, corporation, or other business entity.

8. “Representatives” means Defendants’ successors, assigns, officers, agents,

servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive

actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise. 

9. “Seller” means any person who, in connection with a telemarketing transaction,

provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide goods or services to the customer in

exchange for consideration, whether or not such person is under the jurisdiction of the Federal

Trade Commission.
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10. “Telemarketer” means any person who, in connection with telemarketing, initiates

or receives telephone calls to or from a customer or donor.

11.  “Telemarketing” means a plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to

induce the purchase of goods or services or a charitable contribution, by use of one or more

telephones and which involves more than one interstate telephone call.  The term does not

include the solicitation of sales through the mailing of a catalog which:  contains a written

description or illustration of the goods or services offered for sale; includes the business address

of the seller; includes multiple pages of written material or illustrations; and has been issued not

less frequently than once a year, when the person making the solicitation does not solicit

customers by telephone but only receives calls initiated by customers in response to the catalog

and during those calls takes orders only without further solicitation.  For purposes of the

previous sentence, the term “further solicitation” does not include providing the customer with

information about, or attempting to sell, any other item included in the same catalog which

prompted the customer’s call or in a substantially similar catalog.

12. The “Telemarketing Sales Rule” or “Rule” means the FTC Rule entitled

“Telemarketing Sales Rule,” 16 C.F.R. § 310, attached hereto as Appendix A, or as it may be

amended.

ORDER

I.  PROHIBITION AGAINST ABUSIVE TELEMARKETING PRACTICES

IT IS ORDERED that, in connection with telemarketing, Defendants and their

Representatives are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, causing other
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persons to engage in, or assisting other persons to engage in, violations of the Telemarketing

Sales Rule, including but not limited to:

A. Initiating any outbound telephone call to any person at a telephone number on the

National Do Not Call Registry unless the seller proves that:

1. the seller has obtained the express agreement, in writing, of such person to

place calls to that person.  Such written agreement shall clearly evidence such person’s

authorization that calls made by or on behalf of a specific party may be placed to that person,

and shall include the telephone number to which the calls may be placed and the signature of that

person; or 

2. the seller has an established business relationship with such person and

that person has not previously stated that he or she does not wish to receive outbound telephone

calls made by or on behalf of the seller; or

B. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a person when that person has

previously stated that he or she does not wish to receive an outbound telephone call made by or

on behalf of the seller whose goods or services are being offered or made by or on behalf of the

charitable organization for which a charitable contribution is being solicited; or

C. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a telephone number within a given area

code without first paying the required annual fee for access to the telephone numbers within that

area code that are on the National Do Not Call Registry; or

D. Initiating any outbound telephone call that delivers a prerecorded message, other

than a prerecorded message permitted for compliance with the call abandonment safe harbor in

16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(4)(iii), unless:
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(1) in any such call to induce the purchase of any good or service, the seller has

obtained from the recipient of the call an express agreement, in writing, that:

(a) the seller obtained only after a clear and conspicuous disclosure that the

purpose of the agreement is to authorize the seller to place prerecorded

calls to such person;

(b) the seller obtained without requiring, directly or indirectly, that the

agreement be executed as a condition of purchasing any good or service;

(c) evidences the willingness of the recipient of the call to receive calls that

deliver prerecorded messages by or on behalf of a specific seller; and

(d) includes such person’s telephone number and signature. The term

“signature” shall include an electronic or digital form of signature, to the

extent that such form of signature is recognized as a valid signature under

applicable federal law or state contract law; and

(2) in any such call to induce the purchase of any good or service, the seller or

telemarketer:

(a) allows the telephone to ring for at least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4)

rings before disconnecting an unanswered call; and

(b) within two (2) seconds after the completed greeting of the person called,

plays a prerecorded message that promptly provides the disclosures

required by 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(d) or (e), followed immediately by a

disclosure of one or both of the following:
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(i) in the case of a call that could be answered in person by a

consumer, that the person called can use an automated interactive

voice and/or keypress-activated opt-out mechanism to assert a Do

Not Call request pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A) at any

time during the message.  The mechanism must:

(A) automatically add the number called to the seller’s entity-

specific Do Not Call list;

(B) once invoked, immediately disconnect the call; and

(C) be available for use at any time during the message; and

(ii) in the case of a call that could be answered  by an answering

machine or voicemail service,  that the person called can use a toll- 

free telephone number to assert a Do Not Call request pursuant to

16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A).  The number provided must

connect directly to an automated interactive voice or keypress-

activated opt-out mechanism that:

(A) automatically adds the number called to the seller’s entity-

specific Do Not Call list;

(B) immediately thereafter disconnects the call; and is

accessible at any time throughout the duration of the

telemarketing campaign; and

(C) Complies with all other requirements of the Telemarketing

Sales Rule and other applicable federal and state laws.
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(iii) Any call that complies with all applicable requirements of this

paragraph [D] of this order shall not be deemed to violate 16

C.F.R. §310.4(b)(1)(iv).

Provided, however, that if the Commission promulgates any rule that modifies or

supersedes the Telemarketing Sales Rule, in whole or part, Defendants shall comply fully and

completely with all applicable requirements thereof, on and after the effective date of any such

rule.

II.  CIVIL PENALTY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Judgment in the amount of Five Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars

($570,000.00) is hereby entered against Defendants New Edge Satellite, Inc., and Derek

LaVictor, jointly and severally, as a civil penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the Federal

Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A).  Based upon Defendants’ sworn

representations in financial statements provided to the Commission, full payment for the

foregoing is suspended contingent upon the accuracy and completeness of the financial

statements as set forth in subparagraph B and C of this Paragraph. 

B. Plaintiff’s agreement to this Order is expressly premised upon the truthfulness,

accuracy, and completeness of Defendants’ sworn financial statements and supporting

documents submitted to the Commission and dated January 25, 2009, all of which include

material information upon which Plaintiff relied in negotiating and agreeing to this Order.  

C. If, upon motion by Plaintiff, this Court finds that Defendants failed to disclose

any material asset, materially misrepresented the value of any asset, made any other material
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misrepresentation or omission in the sworn financial statements described above, then this Order

shall be reopened and  suspension of the judgment shall be lifted for the purpose of requiring

payment of a civil penalty in the full amount of the judgment ($570,000.00) by any Defendant

who made such material misstatement or omission.  Provided, however, that in all other respects

this Order shall remain in full force and effect, unless otherwise ordered by the Court. 

D. In accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, Defendants are hereby required, unless they

have done so already, to furnish to Plaintiff and the FTC their taxpayer identifying number(s)

(social security numbers or employer identification numbers) which shall be used for purposes of

collecting and reporting on any delinquent amount arising out of Defendants’ relationship with

the government.

E. This judgment represents a civil penalty owed to the United States Government,

is not compensation for actual pecuniary loss, and, therefore, is not subject to discharge under

the Bankruptcy Code pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(7).  Defendants agree that the facts as

alleged in the complaint filed in this action shall be taken as true, without further proof, in any

subsequent civil litigation filed by or on behalf of the Commission to enforce its rights to any

payment or money judgment pursuant to this Order.

F. Proceedings instituted under this Paragraph are in addition to, and not in lieu of,

any other civil or criminal remedies as may be provided by law, including any other proceedings

that the Plaintiff may initiate to enforce this Order.

III.  RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order, Defendants, and their successors and assigns, shall maintain and make available to
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the Plaintiff or Commission, within seven (7) days of the receipt of a written request, business

records demonstrating compliance with the terms and provisions of this Order. 

IV.  DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS AND
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, and their successors and assigns, shall

within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Order, provide a copy of this Order with Appendix A

to all of their owners, principals, members, officers, and directors, as well as managers, agents,

servants, employees, and attorneys having decision-making authority with respect to the subject

matter of this Order; secure from each such person a signed statement acknowledging receipt of

a copy of this Order; and shall, within ten (10) days of complying with this Paragraph, file an

affidavit with the Court and serve the Commission, by mailing a copy thereof, to the Associate

Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600

Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580, setting forth the fact and manner of its

compliance, including the name and title of each person to whom a copy of the Order has been

provided.

V.  NOTIFICATION OF BUSINESS CHANGES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall

notify the Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade

Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580, at least thirty (30) days

prior to any change in such Defendant’s business, including, but not limited to, merger,

incorporation, dissolution, assignment, and sale, which results in the emergence of a successor
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corporation, the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary or parent, or any other change, which may

affect such Defendant’s obligations under this Order.

VI. NOTIFICATION OF INDIVIDUAL’S AFFILIATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Derek LaVictor shall, for a period of five

(5) years from the date of entry of this Order, notify Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau

of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington,

D.C. 20580, within thirty (30) days of his affiliation with a new business or employment whose

activities include telemarketing or his affiliation with a new business or employment in which

his duties involve the sale or offering for sale of satellite programming.

VII.  COMMUNICATION WITH DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for the purposes of compliance reporting, Plaintiff

and the Commission are authorized to communicate directly with Defendants.

VIII.  FEES AND COSTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its

own costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with this action.

IX.  SEVERABILITY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of this Order are separate and

severable from one another.  If any provision is stayed or determined to be invalid, the remaining

provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
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X.  RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for

purposes of construction, modification and enforcement of this Order.

XI.  COMPLETE SETTLEMENT

The parties hereby consent to entry of the foregoing Order which shall constitute a final

judgment and order in this matter.  The parties further stipulate and agree that the entry of the

foregoing Order shall constitute a full, complete and final settlement of this action.

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE ENTERED in favor of Plaintiff and against

Defendants, pursuant to all the terms and conditions recited above.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED: August 28, 2009 s/Marianne O. Battani
MARIANNE O. BATTANI
United States District Judge
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Dated:  August 14, 2009

RUSSELL DEITCH
GARY IVENS
Attorneys
Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Ave. NW
Washington, DC  20580

FOR PLAINTIFF THE UNITED STATES
OF AMERICA:

TONY WEST
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TERRENCE BERG
United States Attorney

Assistant U.S. Attorney
U.S. Attorney’s Office for the
Eastern District of Michigan
211 W. Fort Street, Suite 2001
Detroit, MI 48226
Telephone:  313-226-9114
Fax:  313-226-3800
Email:  Carolyn.Bell-Harbin@usdoj.gov
P27350

EUGENE M. THIROLF, Director
KENNETH L. JOST, Deputy Director
Office of Consumer Litigation

DANIEL K. CRANE-HIRSCH
Trial Attorney
Office of Consumer Litigation
U.S. Department of Justice
PO Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
Telephone:  202-616-8242
Fax:  202-514-8742
E-mail:   Daniel.Crane-Hirsch@usdoj.gov
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[60 FR 26955, May 19, 1995, as amended at 69 FR 55339, Sept. 14, 2004] 

PART 310—TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE 310.9310.8Call Registry. Severability. Fee for access to the National Do Not  Sec. 

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 6101–6108. 

310.1 Scope of regulations in this part. SOURCE: 68 FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, unless  310.2 Definitions. 
otherwise noted. 

310.4310.3tices. Abusive telemarketing acts or prac-Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac- §310.1part. Scope of regulations in this 
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tices. This part implements the Tele310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
marketing and Consumer Fraud and  310.6 Exemptions. Abuse Prevention

Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101-  310.7 Actions by states and private persons.  6108, as amended. 

§310.2 Definitions. 
(a) Acquirer means a business organization,

financial institution, or an  agent of a business
organization or financial institution that has authority 
from an organization that operates or  licenses a
credit card system to authorize merchants to accept,
transmit, or  process payment by credit card  through
the credit card system for  money, goods or services,
or anything  else of value. 

(b) Attorney General means the chief  legal officer
of a state. 

(c) Billing information means any data  that
enables any person to access a  customer’s or donor’s
account, such as  a credit card, checking, savings,
share  or similar account, utility bill, mortgage loan
account, or debit card. 

(d) Caller identification service means a  service
that allows a telephone subscriber to have the
telephone number,  and, where available, name of the
calling party transmitted contemporaneously with the
telephone call, and  displayed on a device in or
connected  to the subscriber’s telephone. 

(e) Cardholder means a person to  whom a credit
card is issued or who is  authorized to use a credit
card on behalf of or in addition to the person to 
whom the credit card is issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any  donation or
gift of money or any other  thing of value. 

(g)  Commission means the Federal  Trade
Commission. 

(h) Credit means the right granted by  a creditor to
a debtor to defer payment  of debt or to incur debt and
defer its  payment. 

(i) Credit card means any card, plate,  coupon
book, or other credit device existing for the purpose
of obtaining  money, property, labor, or services on 
credit.

(j) Credit card sales draft means any  record or
evidence of a credit card  transaction. 

(k)  Credit card system means any  method or
procedure used to process  credit card transactions
involving credit cards issued or licensed by the oper-
ator of that system. 

(l) Customer means any person who is  or may be
required to pay for goods or  services offered

through telemarketing. 

(m) Donor means any person solicited  to make a
charitable contribution. 

(n)  Established business relationship  means a
relationship between a seller  and a consumer based
on:

(i) the consumer’s purchase, rental,  or lease of the
seller’s goods or services  or a financial transaction
between the  consumer and seller, within the eight-
een (18) months immediately preceding  the date of a
telemarketing call; or 

(ii) the consumer’s inquiry or application
regarding a product or service offered by the seller,
within the three (3)  months immediately preceding
the  date of a telemarketing call. 

(o)  Free-to-pay conversion  means, in  an offer or
agreement to sell or provide  any goods or services, a
provision  under which a customer receives a  product
or service for free for an initial  period and will incur
an obligation to  pay for the product or service if he or
she does not take affirmative action to  cancel before
the end of that period. 

(p) Investment opportunity means anything,
tangible or intangible, that is offered, offered for
sale, sold, or traded  based wholly or in part on
representations, either express or implied, about 
past, present, or future income, profit,  or
appreciation. 

(q) Material means likely to affect a  person’s
choice of, or conduct regarding, goods or services or
a charitable  contribution. 

(r) Merchant means a person who is  authorized
under a written contract  with an acquirer to honor or
accept  credit cards, or to transmit or process  for
payment credit card payments, for  the purchase of
goods or services or a  charitable contribution. 

(s) Merchant agreement means a written contract
between a merchant and  an acquirer to honor or
accept credit  cards, or to transmit or process for 
payment credit card payments, for the  purchase of
goods or services or a charitable contribution. 

(t) Negative option feature  means, in  an offer or
agreement to sell or provide  any goods or services, a
provision  under which the customer’s silence or
failure to take an affirmative action to  reject goods or
services or to cancel the  agreement is interpreted by
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the seller  as acceptance of the offer. 
(u)  Outbound telephone call  means a  telephone

call initiated by a telemarketer to induce the purchase
of  goods or services or to solicit a charitable
contribution. 

(v)  Person  means any individual,  group,
unincorporated association, limited or general
partnership, corporation, or other business entity. 

(w) Preacquired account information  means any
information that enables a  seller or telemarketer to
cause a  charge to be placed against a customer’s or
donor’s account without obtaining the account
number directly  from the customer or donor during
the  telemarketing transaction pursuant to  which the
account will be charged. 

(x) Prize means anything offered, or  purportedly
offered, and given, or purportedly given, to a person
by chance.  For purposes of this definition, chance 
exists if a person is guaranteed to receive an item
and, at the time of the  offer or purported offer, the
telemarketer does not identify the specific  item that
the person will receive. 
(y) Prize promotion means: 

(i) A sweepstakes or other game of  chance; or 
(ii) An oral or written express or implied

representation that a person has  won, has been
selected to receive, or  may be eligible to receive a
prize or  purported prize. 

(z) Seller means any person who, in  connection
with a telemarketing transaction, provides, offers to
provide, or  arranges for others to provide goods or 
services to the customer in exchange  for
consideration. 

(aa) State means any state of the  United States,
the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the Northern
Mariana  Islands, and any territory or possession  of
the United States. 

(bb)  Telemarketer  means any person  who, in
connection with telemarketing,  initiates or receives
telephone calls to  or from a customer or donor. 

(cc) Telemarketing means a plan, program, or
campaign which is conducted  to induce the purchase
of goods or services or a charitable contribution, by 
use of one or more telephones and  which involves
more than one interstate telephone call. The term
does not  include the solicitation of sales  through the
mailing of a catalog  which: contains a written
description  or illustration of the goods or services 
offered for sale; includes the business  address of the
seller; includes multiple  pages of written material or
illustrations; and has been issued not less frequently

than once a year, when the  person making the
solicitation does  not solicit customers by telephone
but  only receives calls initiated by customers in
response to the catalog and  during those calls takes
orders only  without further solicitation. For pur-
poses of the previous sentence, the  term ‘‘further
solicitation’’ does not  include providing the
customer with  information about, or attempting to 
sell, any other item included in the  same catalog
which prompted the customer’s call or in a
substantially similar catalog. 

(dd)  Upselling means soliciting the  purchase of
goods or services following  an initial transaction
during a single  telephone call. The upsell is a
separate  telemarketing transaction, not a con-
tinuation of the initial transaction. An  ‘‘external
upsell’’ is a solicitation  made by or on behalf of a
seller different from the seller in the initial 
transaction, regardless of whether the  initial
transaction and the subsequent  solicitation are made
by the same telemarketer. An ‘‘internal upsell’’ is a
solicitation made by or on behalf of the  same seller
as in the initial transaction, regardless of whether the
initial transaction and subsequent solicitation are
made by the same telemarketer. 

§310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Prohibited deceptive telemarketing  acts or
practices. It is a deceptive telemarketing act or
practice and a violation of this Rule for any seller or
telemarketer to engage in the following  conduct: 

(1) Before a customer pays1 for goods  or services
offered, failing to disclose 

1 When a seller or telemarketer uses, or directs a customer
to use, a courier to transport payment, the seller or
telemarketer  must make the disclosures required by  §
310.3(a)(1) before sending a courier to pick  up payment or
authorization for payment, or 

Continued
truthfully, in a clear and conspicuous  manner, the
following material information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and
the quantity of, any  goods or services that are the
subject  of the sales offer;2

(ii) All material restrictions, limitations, or
conditions to purchase, receive, or use the goods or
services that  are the subject of the sales offer; 

(iii) If the seller has a policy of not  making
refunds, cancellations, exchanges, or repurchases, a
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statement  informing the customer that this is the 
seller’s policy; or, if the seller or telemarketer makes
a representation  about a refund, cancellation,
exchange,  or repurchase policy, a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of such  policy; 

(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds  of being
able to receive the prize, and,  if the odds are not
calculable in advance, the factors used in calculating 
the odds; that no purchase or payment  is required to
win a prize or to participate in a prize promotion and
that any  purchase or payment will not increase  the
person’s chances of winning; and  the
no-purchase/no-payment method of  participating in
the prize promotion  with either instructions on how
to participate or an address or local or toll-  free
telephone number to which customers may write or
call for information on how to participate; 

(v) All material costs or conditions  to receive or
redeem a prize that is the  subject of the prize
promotion; 

(vi) In the sale of any goods or services
represented to protect, insure, or  otherwise limit a
customer’s liability  in the event of unauthorized use
of the  customer’s credit card, the limits on a 
cardholder’s liability for unauthorized  use of a credit
card pursuant to 15  U.S.C. 1643; and 

(vii) If the offer includes a negative  option
feature, all material terms and 

directing a customer to have a courier pick  up payment or
authorization for payment. 

2 For offers of consumer credit products  subject to the
Truth in Lending Act, 15  U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and
Regulation Z, 12 CFR  226, compliance with the disclosure
requirements under the Truth in Lending Act and  Regulation
Z shall constitute compliance  with §310.3(a)(1)(i) of this
Rule.
conditions of the negative option feature, including,
but not limited to, the  fact that the customer’s
account will  be charged unless the customer takes 
an affirmative action to avoid the  charge(s), the
date(s) the charge(s) will  be submitted for payment,
and the specific steps the customer must take to 
avoid the charge(s). 

(2) Misrepresenting, directly or by  implication, in
the sale of goods or  services any of the following
material  information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and
the quantity of, any  goods or services that are the
subject  of a sales offer; 

(ii) Any material restriction, limitation, or

condition to purchase, receive,  or use goods or
services that are the  subject of a sales offer; 

(iii) Any material aspect of the performance,
efficacy, nature, or central  characteristics of goods
or services  that are the subject of a sales offer; 

(iv) Any material aspect of the nature or terms of
the seller’s refund,  cancellation, exchange, or
repurchase  policies; 

(v) Any material aspect of a prize  promotion
including, but not limited  to, the odds of being able to
receive a  prize, the nature or value of a prize, or  that
a purchase or payment is required  to win a prize or to
participate in a  prize promotion; 

(vi) Any material aspect of an investment
opportunity including, but not  limited to, risk,
liquidity, earnings potential, or profitability; 

(vii) A seller’s or telemarketer’s affiliation with,
or endorsement or sponsorship by, any person or
government  entity; 

(viii) That any customer needs offered goods or
services to provide protections a customer already has
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1643; or 

(ix) Any material aspect of a negative option
feature including, but not  limited to, the fact that the
customer’s  account will be charged unless the cus-
tomer takes an affirmative action to  avoid the
charge(s), the date(s) the  charge(s) will be submitted
for payment, and the specific steps the customer
must take to avoid the  charge(s). 

(3) Causing billing information to be  submitted
for payment, or collecting or  attempting to collect
payment for  goods or services or a charitable con-
tribution, directly or indirectly, without the
customer’s or donor’s express  verifiable
authorization, except when  the method of payment
used is a credit  card subject to protections of the 
Truth in Lending Act and Regulation  Z,3 or a debit
card subject to the protections of the Electronic Fund
Transfer Act and Regulation E.4 Such authorization
shall be deemed verifiable  if any of the following
means is employed: 

(i) Express written authorization by  the customer or
donor, which includes  the customer’s or donor’s
signature;5

(ii) Express oral authorization which  is
audio-recorded and made available  upon request to
the customer or donor,  and the customer’s or
donor’s bank or  other billing entity, and which evi-
dences clearly both the customer’s or  donor’s
authorization of payment for  the goods or services
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or charitable contribution that are the subject of the 
telemarketing transaction and the customer’s or
donor’s receipt of all of the  following information: 

(A) The number of debits, charges, or  payments
(if more than one); 

(B) The date(s) the debit(s), charge(s), or payment(s)
will be submitted for payment; 

(C) The amount(s) of the debit(s),  charge(s), or
payment(s); 
(D) The customer’s or donor’s name; 

(E) The customer’s or donor’s billing 
information, identified with sufficient  specificity
such that the customer or  donor understands what
account will  be used to collect payment for the 
goods or services or charitable contribution that are
the subject of the  telemarketing transaction; 

3 Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. 1601 et  seq., and
Regulation Z, 12 CFR part 226. 

4Electronic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C.  1693 et seq., and
Regulation E, 12 CFR part  205. 

5For purposes of this Rule, the term ‘‘signature’’ shall
include an electronic or digital  form of signature, to the
extent that such  form of signature is recognized as a valid
signature under applicable federal law or state  contract law. 

(F) A telephone number for customer  or donor
inquiry that is answered during normal business
hours; and 

(G) The date of the customer’s or donor’s oral
authorization; or 

(iii) Written confirmation of the  transaction,
identified in a clear and  conspicuous manner as such
on the  outside of the envelope, sent to the  customer
or donor via first class mail  prior to the submission
for payment of  the customer’s or donor’s billing
information, and that includes all of the information

contained in §§310.3(a)(3)(ii)(A)-(G)
and a clear and  conspicuous statement of the proce-
dures by which the customer or donor  can obtain a
refund from the seller or  telemarketer or charitable
organization in the event the confirmation is 
inaccurate; provided, however, that this  means of
authorization shall not be  deemed verifiable in
instances in which  goods or services are offered in a
transaction involving a free-to-pay conversion and
preacquired account information. 

(4) Making a false or misleading  statement to
induce any person to pay  for goods or services or to
induce a  charitable contribution. 

(ii) Assisting and facilitating. It is a deceptive
telemarketing act or practice  and a violation of this

Rule for a person to provide substantial assistance or 
support to any seller or telemarketer  when that
person knows or consciously  avoids knowing that
the seller or telemarketer is engaged in any act or
practice that violates §§310.3(a), (c) or (d),  or
§310.4 of this Rule. 

(iii)  Credit card laundering.  Except as  expressly
permitted by the applicable  credit card system, it is a
deceptive  telemarketing act or practice and a  violation
of this Rule for: 

(1) A merchant to present to or deposit into, or
cause another to present  to or deposit into, the credit
card system for payment, a credit card sales  draft
generated by a telemarketing  transaction that is not
the result of a  telemarketing credit card transaction 
between the cardholder and the merchant; 

(2) Any person to employ, solicit, or  otherwise
cause a merchant, or an employee, representative, or
agent of the  merchant, to present to or deposit into 
the credit card system for payment, a  credit card
sales draft generated by a  telemarketing transaction
that is not  the result of a telemarketing credit  card
transaction between the cardholder and the merchant;
or 

(3) Any person to obtain access to the  credit card
system through the use of a  business relationship or
an affiliation  with a merchant, when such access is 
not authorized by the merchant agreement or the
applicable credit card system. 

(d)  Prohibited deceptive acts or practices in the
solicitation of charitable contributions. It is a
fraudulent charitable  solicitation, a deceptive
telemarketing  act or practice, and a violation of this 
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting  charitable
contributions to misrepresent, directly or by
implication, any of  the following material
information: 

(1) The nature, purpose, or mission of  any entity
on behalf of which a charitable contribution is being
requested; 

(2) That any charitable contribution  is tax
deductible in whole or in part; 

(3) The purpose for which any charitable
contribution will be used; 

(4) The percentage or amount of any  charitable
contribution that will go to  a charitable organization or
to any  particular charitable program; 

(5) Any material aspect of a prize  promotion
including, but not limited  to: the odds of being able
to receive a  prize; the nature or value of a prize; or 
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that a charitable contribution is required to win a
prize or to participate  in a prize promotion; or 

(6) A charitable organization’s or  telemarketer’s
affiliation with, or endorsement or sponsorship by,
any person or government entity. 

§310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Abusive conduct generally. It is an  abusive
telemarketing act or practice  and a violation of this
Rule for any  seller or telemarketer to engage in the
following conduct: 

(1) Threats, intimidation, or the use  of profane or
obscene language; 

(2) Requesting or receiving payment  of any fee or
consideration for goods or  services represented to
remove derogatory information from, or improve, a 
person’s credit history, credit record,  or credit rating
until:

(i) The time frame in which the seller  has
represented all of the goods or  services will be
provided to that person  has expired; and 

(ii) The seller has provided the person  with
documentation in the form of a  consumer report
from a consumer reporting agency demonstrating
that the  promised results have been achieved,  such
report having been issued more  than six months
after the results were  achieved. Nothing in this Rule
should  be construed to affect the requirement  in the
Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15  U.S.C. 1681, that a
consumer report  may only be obtained for a
specified  permissible purpose; 

(3) Requesting or receiving payment  of any fee or
consideration from a person for goods or services
represented to  recover or otherwise assist in the re-
turn of money or any other item of  value paid for by,
or promised to, that  person in a previous
telemarketing  transaction, until seven (7) business 
days after such money or other item is  delivered to
that person. This provision  shall not apply to goods
or services  provided to a person by a licensed at-
torney;

(4) Requesting or receiving payment  of any fee or
consideration in advance  of obtaining a loan or other
extension  of credit when the seller or telemarketer
has guaranteed or represented a high likelihood of
success in  obtaining or arranging a loan or other 
extension of credit for a person; 

(5) Disclosing or receiving, for consideration,
unencrypted consumer account numbers for use in

telemarketing; provided, however, that this 
paragraph shall not apply to the disclosure or receipt
of a customer’s or donor’s billing information to
process a  payment for goods or services or a 
charitable contribution pursuant to a  transaction; 

(6) Causing billing information to be  submitted
for payment, directly or indirectly, without the
express informed  consent of the customer or donor.
In  any telemarketing transaction, the  seller or
telemarketer must obtain the  express informed
consent of the customer or donor to be charged for
the  goods or services or charitable contribution and
to be charged using the  identified account. In any
telemarketing transaction
involving preacquired account information, the 
requirements in paragraphs (a)(6)(i)  through (ii) of
this section must be met  to evidence express
informed consent. 

(i) In any telemarketing transaction  involving
preacquired account information and a free-to-pay
conversion feature, the seller or telemarketer must: 

(A) obtain from the customer, at a  minimum, the
last four (4) digits of the  account number to be
charged;

(B) obtain from the customer his or  her express
agreement to be charged  for the goods or services
and to be  charged using the account number pur-
suant to paragraph (a)(6)(i)(A) of this  section; and, 

(C) make and maintain an audio recording of the
entire telemarketing  transaction. 

(ii) In any other telemarketing transaction
involving preacquired account  information not
described in paragraph  (a)(6)(i) of this section, the
seller or  telemarketer must: 

(A) at a minimum, identify the account to be
charged with sufficient  specificity for the customer
or donor to  understand what account will be 
charged; and 

(B) obtain from the customer or  donor his or her
express agreement to  be charged for the goods or
services  and to be charged using the account 
number identified pursuant to paragraph (a)(6)(ii)(A)
of this section; or 

(7) Failing to transmit or cause to be  transmitted
the telephone number,  and, when made available by
the telemarketer’s carrier, the name of the 
telemarketer, to any caller identification service in
use by a recipient of a  telemarketing call;  provided
that it  shall not be a violation to substitute  (for the
name and phone number used  in, or billed for,
making the call) the  name of the seller or charitable
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organization on behalf of which a telemarketing call
is placed, and the seller’s or charitable organization’s
customer or donor service telephone number, which
is answered during regular  business hours. 

(b) Pattern of calls. (1) It is an abusive 
telemarketing act or practice and a  violation of this
Rule for a telemarketer to engage in, or for a seller 
to cause a telemarketer to engage in,  the following
conduct:

(i) Causing any telephone to ring, or  engaging any
person in telephone conversation, repeatedly or
continuously  with intent to annoy, abuse, or harass 
any person at the called number; 

(ii) Denying or interfering in any  way, directly or
indirectly, with a person’s right to be placed on any
registry  of names and/or telephone numbers of 
persons who do not wish to receive outbound
telephone calls established to  comply with
§310.4(b)(1)(iii);

(iii) Initiating any outbound telephone call to a
person when: 

(A) that person previously has stated  that he or she
does not wish to receive  an outbound telephone call
made by or  on behalf of the seller whose goods or
services are being offered or made on  behalf of the
charitable organization  for which a charitable
contribution is  being solicited; or 

(B) that person’s telephone number is  on the
‘‘do-not-call’’ registry, maintained by the
Commission, of persons  who do not wish to receive
outbound  telephone calls to induce the purchase  of
goods or services unless the seller 

(i) has obtained the express agreement, in writing,
of such person to  place calls to that person. Such
written  agreement shall clearly evidence such 
person’s authorization that calls made  by or on
behalf of a specific party may  be placed to that
person, and shall include the telephone number to
which  the calls may be placed and the signature6 of
that person; or 

(ii) has an established business relationship with
such person, and that  person has not stated that he or
she  does not wish to receive outbound telephone

calls under paragraph
(b)(1)(iii)(A) of this section; or 

(iv) Abandoning any outbound telephone call. An
outbound telephone call  is ‘‘abandoned’’ under this
section if a  person answers it and the telemarketer 

6 For purposes of this Rule, the term ‘‘signature’’ shall

include an electronic or digital  form of signature, to the
extent that such  form of signature is recognized as a valid
signature under applicable federal law or state  contract law. 

does not connect the call to a sales representative
within two (2) seconds of  the person’s completed
greeting. 

(v) Initiating any outbound telephone  call that
delivers a prerecorded message, other than a
prerecorded message  permitted for compliance with
the call  abandonment safe harbor

in § 310.4(b)(4)(iii), unless: 
(A) in any such call to induce the  purchase of any

good or service, the  seller has obtained from the
recipient  of the call an express agreement, in  writing,
that:

(i) The seller obtained only after a  clear and
conspicuous disclosure that  the purpose of the
agreement is to authorize the seller to place
prerecorded  calls to such person; 

(ii) The seller obtained without requiring, directly
or indirectly, that the agreement be executed as a
condition  of purchasing any good or service; 

(iii) Evidences the willingness of the  recipient of
the call to receive calls  that deliver prerecorded
messages by  or on behalf of a specific seller; and 

(iv) Includes such person’s telephone  number and
signature;7 and

(B) In any such call to induce the  purchase of any
good or service, or to  induce a charitable contribution
from a  member of, or previous donor to, a non-  profit
charitable organization on whose  behalf the call is
made, the seller or  telemarketer: 

(i) Allows the telephone to ring for at  least fifteen
(15) seconds or four (4)  rings before disconnecting
an unanswered call; and 

(ii) Within two (2) seconds after the  completed
greeting of the person  called, plays a prerecorded
message  that promptly provides the disclosures
required by §310.4(d) or (e), followed  immediately by
a disclosure of one or  both of the following: 

(A) In the case of a call that could be  answered in
person by a consumer, that  the person called can use
an automated  interactive voice and/or keypress-acti-
vated opt-out mechanism to assert a  Do Not Call
request pursuant to 

7 For purposes of this Rule, the term ‘‘signature’’ shall
include an electronic or digital  form of signature, to the
extent that such  form of signature is recognized as a valid
signature under applicable federal law or state  contract law. 
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§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A) at any time during  the message.
The mechanism must: 

(1) Automatically add the number  called to the
seller’s entity-specific Do  Not Call list; 

(2) Once invoked, immediately disconnect the
call; and 

(3) Be available for use at any time  during the
message; and 

(B) In the case of a call that could be  answered by
an answering machine or  voicemail service, that the
person  called can use a toll-free telephone  number to
assert a Do Not Call request  pursuant to
§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A). The  number provided must
connect directly  to an automated interactive voice or
keypress-activated opt-out mechanism  that: 

(1) Automatically adds the number  called to the
seller’s entity-specific Do  Not Call list; 

(2) Immediately thereafter disconnects the call;
and

(3) is accessible at any time throughout the
duration of the telemarketing  campaign; and 

(iii) Complies with all other requirements of this
part and other applicable  federal and state laws. 

(C) Any call that complies with all  applicable
requirements of this paragraph (v) shall not be
deemed to violate  §310.4(b)(1)(iv) of this part. 

(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply  to any
outbound telephone call that delivers a prerecorded
healthcare message made by, or on behalf of, a
covered  entity or its business associate, as  those
terms are defined in the HIPAA  Privacy Rule, 45
CFR 160.103. 

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act  or practice
and a violation of this Rule  for any person to sell,
rent, lease, purchase, or use any list established to 
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A), or  maintained by
the Commission pursuant to §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), for
any purpose except compliance with the provisions
of this Rule or otherwise to prevent telephone calls
to telephone numbers on such lists. 

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not  be liable for
violating §310.4(b)(1)(ii)  and (iii) if it can
demonstrate that, as  part of the seller’s or
telemarketer’s  routine business practice: 

(i) It has established and implemented written
procedures to comply  with § 310.4(b)(1)(ii) and
(iii);

(ii) It has trained its personnel, and  any entity
assisting in its compliance,  in the procedures

established pursuant  to § 310.4(b)(3)(i); 
(iii) The seller, or a telemarketer or  another

person acting on behalf of the  seller or charitable
organization, has  maintained and recorded a list of
telephone numbers the seller or charitable 
organization may not contact, in compliance with §
310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A);

(iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses  a process to
prevent telemarketing to  any telephone number on
any list established pursuant to § 310.4(b)(3)(iii) or 
310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), employing a version  of the
‘‘do-not-call’’ registry obtained  from the
Commission no more than  thirty-one (31) days prior
to the date  any call is made, and maintains  records
documenting this process; 

(v) The seller or a telemarketer or  another person
acting on behalf of the  seller or charitable
organization, monitors and enforces compliance with
the  procedures established pursuant to  §
310.4(b)(3)(i); and 

(vi) Any subsequent call otherwise  violating §
310.4(b)(1)(ii) or (iii) is the  result of error. 

(4) A seller or telemarketer will not  be liable for
violating 310.4(b)(1)(iv) if: 

(i) The seller or telemarketer employs technology
that ensures abandonment of no more than three (3)
percent of all calls answered by a person,  measured
over the duration of a single  calling campaign, if
less than 30 days,  or separately over each successive
30-  day period or portion thereof that the  campaign
continues. 

(ii) The seller or telemarketer, for  each
telemarketing call placed, allows  the telephone to
ring for at least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) rings
before  disconnecting an unanswered call; 

(iii) Whenever a sales representative  is not
available to speak with the person answering the call
within two (2)  seconds after the person’s completed 
greeting, the seller or telemarketer  promptly plays a
recorded message  that states the name and telephone 
number of the seller on whose behalf  the call was
placed 8; and 

(iv) The seller or telemarketer, in accordance with
§ 310.5(b)-(d), retains  records establishing
compliance with  § 310.4(b)(4)(i)-(iii). 

(c) Calling time restrictions. Without  the prior
consent of a person, it is an  abusive telemarketing
act or practice  and a violation of this Rule for a tele-
marketer to engage in outbound telephone calls to a
person’s residence at  any time other than between
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8:00 a.m.  and 9:00 p.m. local time at the called 
person’s location. 

(d) Required oral disclosures in the sale  of goods
or services. It is an abusive telemarketing act or
practice and a violation of this Rule for a
telemarketer in  an outbound telephone call or
internal  or external upsell to induce the purchase of
goods or services to fail to disclose truthfully,
promptly, and in a  clear and conspicuous manner to
the  person receiving the call, the following 
information: 
(1) The identity of the seller; 

(2) That the purpose of the call is to  sell goods or
services;

(3) The nature of the goods or services; and 
(4) That no purchase or payment is  necessary to

be able to win a prize or  participate in a prize
promotion if a  prize promotion is offered and that
any  purchase or payment will not increase  the
person’s chances of winning. This  disclosure must
be made before or in  conjunction with the
description of the  prize to the person called. If
requested  by that person, the telemarketer must 
disclose the no-purchase/no-payment  entry method
for the prize promotion;  provided, however, that, in
any internal  upsell for the sale of goods or services, 
the seller or telemarketer must provide the
disclosures listed in this section only to the extent
that the information in the upsell differs from the 
disclosures provided in the initial telemarketing
transaction.

8This provision does not affect any seller’s  or telemarketer’s
obligation to comply with  relevant state and federal laws,
including  but not limited to the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. 227,  and 47
CFR part 64.1200. 

(e) Required oral disclosures in charitable
solicitations. It is an abusive telemarketing act or
practice and a violation of this Rule for a
telemarketer, in  an outbound telephone call to
induce a  charitable contribution, to fail to disclose
truthfully, promptly, and in a  clear and conspicuous
manner to the  person receiving the call, the
following  information: 

(1) The identity of the charitable organization on
behalf of which the request is being made; and 

(2) That the purpose of the call is to  solicit a
charitable contribution. 

[68 FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, as amended at 69  FR 16373, Mar.

29, 2004; 73 FR 51204, Aug. 29,  2008] 

§310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall  keep, for a

period of 24 months from  the date the record is
produced, the following records relating to its tele-
marketing activities: 

(1) All substantially different advertising, brochures,
telemarketing scripts, and promotional

materials; 
(2) The name and last known address  of each

prize recipient and the prize  awarded for prizes that
are represented, directly or by implication, to  have a
value of $25.00 or more; 

(3) The name and last known address  of each
customer, the goods or services  purchased, the date
such goods or services were shipped or provided,
and the  amount paid by the customer for the  goods
or services;9

(4) The name, any fictitious name  used, the last
known home address and  telephone number, and the
job title(s)  for all current and former employees 
directly involved in telephone sales or  solicitations;
provided, however, that if  the seller or telemarketer
permits fictitious names to be used by employees, 
each fictitious name must be traceable  to only one
specific employee; and 

(5) All verifiable authorizations or  records of
express informed consent or 

9 For offers of consumer credit products  subject to the
Truth in Lending Act, 15  U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and
Regulation Z, 12 CFR  226, compliance with the
recordkeeping requirements under the Truth in Lending Act, 
and Regulation Z, shall constitute compliance with
§310.5(a)(3) of this Rule. 
express agreement required to be provided or
received under this Rule. 

(b) A seller or telemarketer may  keep the records
required by §310.5(a)  in any form, and in the same
manner,  format, or place as they keep such  records
in the ordinary course of business. Failure to keep all
records required by §310.5(a) shall be a violation  of
this Rule. 

(c) The seller and the telemarketer  calling on
behalf of the seller may, by  written agreement,
allocate responsibility between themselves for the
recordkeeping required by this Section.  When a
seller and telemarketer have  entered into such an
agreement, the  terms of that agreement shall govern, 
and the seller or telemarketer, as the  case may be,
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need not keep records  that duplicate those of the
other. If the  agreement is unclear as to who must 
maintain any required record(s), or if  no such
agreement exists, the seller  shall be responsible for
complying with  §§310.5(a)(1)-(3) and (5); the tele-
marketer shall be responsible for complying with
§310.5(a)(4). 

(d) In the event of any dissolution or  termination
of the seller’s or telemarketer’s business, the
principal of  that seller or telemarketer shall maintain
all records as required under this  section. In the
event of any sale, assignment, or other change in
ownership  of the seller’s or telemarketer’s business,
the successor business shall maintain all records
required under this section. 

[68 FR 4669, Jan. 29, 2003, as amended at 51204,  Aug. 29,
2008] 

§310.6 Exemptions. 
(a) Solicitations to induce charitable  contributions

via outbound telephone  calls are not
covered by §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B) of this

Rule.
(b) The following acts or practices  are exempt

from this Rule: 
(1) The sale of pay-per-call services  subject to the

Commission’s Rule entitled ‘‘Trade Regulation Rule
Pursuant  to the Telephone Disclosure and Dispute
Resolution Act of 1992,’’ 16 CFR  Part 308, 
provided,  however, that this  exemption does not
apply to the requirements of §§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7),
(b),  and (c); 

(2) The sale of franchises subject to  the
Commission’s Rule entitled ‘‘Disclosure
Requirements and Prohibitions  Concerning
Franchising and Business  Opportunity Ventures,’’
(‘‘Franchise  Rule’’) 16 CFR Part 436, provided,
however, that this exemption does not  apply to the
requirements of §§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and (c); 

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale  of goods or
services or charitable solicitation is not completed,
and payment  or authorization of payment is not re-
quired, until after a face-to-face sales  or donation
presentation by the seller  or charitable organization, 
provided,  however, that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of §§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7),
(b), and (c); 

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or
donor that are not the result  of any solicitation by a
seller, charitable organization, or telemarketer, 

provided, however, that this exemption  does not
apply to any instances of  upselling included in such
telephone  calls; 

(5) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or
donor in response to an advertisement through any
medium, other  than direct mail solicitation,
provided,  however, that this exemption does not 
apply to calls initiated by a customer  or donor in
response to an advertisement relating to investment
opportunities, business opportunities other than 
business arrangements covered by the  Franchise
Rule, or advertisements involving goods or services
described in  §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-(4); or
to  any instances of upselling included in  such
telephone calls; 

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or
donor in response to a direct  mail solicitation,
including solicitations via the U.S. Postal Service,
facsimile transmission, electronic mail,  and other
similar methods of delivery  in which a solicitation is
directed to  specific address(es) or person(s), that 
clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully  discloses all
material information listed in §310.3(a)(1) of this
Rule, for any  goods or services offered in the direct 
mail solicitation, and that contains no  material
misrepresentation regarding  any item contained in
§310.3(d) of this  Rule for any requested charitable
contribution; provided, however, that this  exemption
does not apply to calls initiated by a customer in
response to a direct mail solicitation relating to prize 
promotions, investment opportunities,  business
opportunities other than business arrangements
covered by the  Franchise Rule, or goods or services
described in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-  (4); or
to any instances of upselling included in such
telephone calls; and 

(7) Telephone calls between a telemarketer and
any business, except  calls to induce the retail sale of
nondurable office or cleaning supplies; provided, 
however, that §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B)  and §310.5 of this
Rule shall not apply  to sellers or telemarketers of
nondurable office or cleaning supplies. 

§310.7 Actions by states and private 
persons. 

(a) Any attorney general or other officer of a state
authorized by the state  to bring an action under the
Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and  Abuse
Prevention Act, and any private  person who brings
an action under that  Act, shall serve written notice
of its  action on the Commission, if feasible,  prior to
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its initiating an action under  this Rule. The notice
shall be sent to  the Office of the Director, Bureau of 
Consumer Protection, Federal Trade  Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580,  and shall include a copy
of the state’s  or private person’s complaint and any 
other pleadings to be filed with the  court. If prior
notice is not feasible,  the state or private person
shall serve  the Commission with the required notice
immediately upon instituting its  action. 

(b) Nothing contained in this Section  shall prohibit
any attorney general or  other authorized state official
from  proceeding in state court on the basis  of an
alleged violation of any civil or  criminal statute of
such state. 

§310.8 Fee for access to the National  Do Not
Call Registry. 

(a) It is a violation of this Rule for  any seller to
initiate, or cause any  telemarketer to initiate, an
outbound  telephone call to any person whose 
telephone number is within a given  area code unless
such seller, either directly or through another person,
first  has paid the annual fee, required by  §310.8(c),
for access to telephone numbers within that area
code that are included in the National Do Not Call 
Registry maintained by the Commission under
§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B); provided,  however, that such
payment is not necessary if the seller initiates, or
causes  a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely  to

persons pursuant to
§§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B)(i) or (ii), and the  seller does
not access the National Do  Not Call Registry for any
other purpose. 

(b) It is a violation of this Rule for  any
telemarketer, on behalf of any seller, to initiate an
outbound telephone  call to any person whose
telephone  number is within a given area code unless
that seller, either directly or  through another person,
first has paid  the annual fee, required by §310.8(c), 
for access to the telephone numbers  within that area
code that are included  in the National Do Not Call
Registry;  provided,  however, that such payment  is
not necessary if the seller initiates,  or causes a
telemarketer to initiate,  calls solely to persons
pursuant to  §§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B)(i) or (ii), and the 
seller does not access the National Do  Not Call
Registry for any other purpose. 

(c) The annual fee, which must be  paid by any
person prior to obtaining  access to the National Do
Not Call  Registry, is $54 for each area code of  data
accessed, up to a maximum of  $14,850;  provided, 

however, that there  shall be no charge to any person
for accessing the first five area codes of data,  and
provided further, that there shall be  no charge to any
person engaging in or  causing others to engage in
outbound  telephone calls to consumers and who  is
accessing area codes of data in the  National Do Not
Call Registry if the  person is permitted to access, but
is  not required to access, the National Do  Not Call
Registry under this Rule, 47  CFR 64.1200, or any
other Federal regulation or law. Any person
accessing the  National Do Not Call Registry may
not  participate in any arrangement to  share the cost
of accessing the registry, including any arrangement
with  any telemarketer or service provider to  divide
the costs to access the registry  among various clients
of that telemarketer or service provider. 

(d) Each person who pays, either directly or
through another person, the  annual fee set forth in
§310.8(c), each  person excepted under §310.8(c)
from  paying the annual fee, and each person 
excepted from paying an annual fee  under
§310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), will be provided a unique
account number that  will allow that person to access
the  registry data for the selected area  codes at any
time for the twelve month  period beginning on the
first day of the  month in which the person paid the
fee  (‘‘the annual period’’). To obtain access  to
additional area codes of data during  the first six
months of the annual period, each person required to
pay the  fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $54  for
each additional area code of data  not initially
selected. To obtain access  to additional area codes
of data during  the second six months of the annual
period, each person required to pay the  fee under
§310.8(c) must first pay $27  for each additional area
code of data  not initially selected. The payment of 
the additional fee will permit the person to access the
additional area codes  of data for the remainder of
the annual  period. 

(e) Access to the National Do Not  Call Registry is
limited to telemarketers, sellers, others engaged in or 
causing others to engage in telephone  calls to
consumers, service providers  acting on behalf of
such persons, and  any government agency that has
law  enforcement authority. Prior to accessing the
National Do Not Call Registry,  a person must
provide the identifying  information required by the
operator of  the registry to collect the fee, and  must
certify, under penalty of law,  that the person is
accessing the registry solely to comply with the
provisions of this Rule or to otherwise prevent
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telephone calls to telephone numbers on the registry.
If the person is accessing the registry on behalf of
sellers, that person also must identify  each of the
sellers on whose behalf it is  accessing the registry,
must provide  each seller’s unique account number 
for access to the national registry, and  must certify,
under penalty of law,  that the sellers will be using
the information gathered from the registry  solely to
comply with the provisions of  this Rule or otherwise
to prevent telephone calls to telephone numbers on 
the registry. 

[68 FR 45144, July 31, 2003, as amended at 69  FR 45585, July
30, 2004; 70 FR 43280, July 27,  2005; 71 FR 43054, July 31,
2006; 73 FR 43355,  July 25, 2008] 

§310.9 Severability. 
The provisions of this Rule are separate and

severable from one another. If  any provision is
stayed or determined  to be invalid, it is the
Commission’s intention that the remaining
provisions  shall continue in effect. 

PART 311—TEST PROCEDURES
AND  LABELING STANDARDS FOR

RECYCLED OIL 

Sec. 
311.1 Definitions. 
311.2 Stayed or invalid parts. 
311.3 Preemption. 
311.4 Testing. 
311.5 Labeling. 
311.6 Prohibited acts. 

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 6363(d). 

SOURCE: 60 FR 55421, Oct. 31, 1995, unless  otherwise
noted.

§311.1 Definitions. 
As used in this part: 

(a) Manufacturer means any person  who
re-refines or otherwise processes  used oil to remove
physical or chemical impurities acquired through use
or  who blends such re-refined or otherwise 
processed used oil with new oil or additives. 

(b) New oil means any synthetic oil or  oil that has
been refined from crude oil  and which has not been
used and may  or may not contain additives. Such 
term does not include used oil or recycled oil. 

(c) Processed used oil means re-refined  or
otherwise processed used oil or blend  of oil,

consisting of such re-refined or  otherwise processed
used oil and new  oil or additives. 

(d) Recycled oil means processed used  oil that the
manufacturer has determined, pursuant to section
311.4 of this  part, is substantially equivalent to new 
oil for use as engine oil. 

(e) Used oil means any synthetic oil  or oil that has
been refined from crude  oil, which has been used and,
as a re
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sult of such use, has been contaminated by physical
or chemical impurities. 

(f) Re-refined oil means used oil from  which
physical and chemical contaminants acquired
through use have been  removed. 

§311.2 Stayed or invalid parts. 
If any part of this rule is stayed or  held invalid, the

rest of it will remain  in force. 

§311.3 Preemption. 
No law, regulation, or order of any  State or

political subdivision thereof  may apply, or remain
applicable, to  any container of recycled oil, if such 
law, regulation, or order requires any  container of
recycled oil, which container bears a label in
accordance with  the terms of §311.5 of this part, to
bear  any label with respect to the comparative
characteristics of such recycled oil  with new oil that
is not identical to  that permitted by §311.5 of this
part. 

§311.4 Testing. 
To determine the substantial equivalency of

processed used oil with new oil  for use as engine
oil, manufacturers or  their designees must use the
test procedures that were reported to the Commission
by the National Institutes of  Standards and
Technology (‘‘NIST’’) on July 27, 1995, entitled
‘‘Engine Oil Licensing and Certification System,’’ 
American Petroleum Institute (‘‘API’’),  Publication
1509, Thirteenth Edition,  January 1995. API
Publication 1509,  Thirteenth Edition has been
updated to  API Publication 1509, Fifteenth Edition,
April 2002. API Publication 1509,  Fifteenth Edition,
April 2002, is incorporated by reference. This
incorporation by reference is approved by the Di-
rector of the Federal Register in accordance with 5
U.S.C. 552(a) and 1 CFR  part 51. Copies of the
materials incorporated by reference may be obtained 
from: API, 1220 L Street, NW., Washington, DC
20005. Copies may be inspected at the Federal Trade
Commission, Consumer Response Center, Room 
130, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW.,  Washington,
DC 20580, or at the National Archives and Records
Administration (‘‘NARA’’). For information on  the
availability of this material at 
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